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Chairman’s Statement
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On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the
“Directors”), | would like to present the annual report of
G-Vision International (Holdings) Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (together the “Group”)
for the financial year ended 31 March 2023.

RESULTS

REEHZE2023F3A3IB L FERE
Z iR & IR R FE (L B 1B 49 /21,600,000
JC (20224 : #914,100,00078 7T) ° 1B &
1,946,314,108B T E AR E 2 BK
B8 A1 117800 (20224 - 0.72781(L) -

The audited consolidated loss attributable to the
shareholders of the Group for the year ended 31 March
2023 was approximately HK$21.6 million (2022:
approximately HK$14.1 million). Loss per share based on
1,946,314,108 ordinary shares in issue amounted to
HK$1.11 cents (2022: HK$0.72 cents).

R B DIVIDEND

EEGERATERIREEZT2023F3A The Board has resolved not to recommend the payment

3B IEFEZEAARBRE (20224 « &) - of a final dividend for the year ended 31 March 2023
(2022: Nil).
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For the year ended 31 March 2023, the Group recorded
consolidated revenue of approximately HK$45.2 million,
representing a decrease of approximately HK$69.4
million or 60.6% from last year’'s consolidated revenue
of approximately HK$114.6 million.

Restaurant Operations in Hong Kong

The Group is mainly engaged in the operation of
Chinese restaurants in Hong Kong which specialise in
Chiu Chow cuisine. Revenue from the restaurant
operations amounted to approximately HK$45.2 million
for the year under review, representing an increase of
approximately HK$4.6 million or 11.3% from the
previous year of approximately HK$40.6 million.

The Group ceased its restaurant operations at the
Cheung Sha Wan Plaza (with floor area approximately
1,683 sq. m.) following the expiry of lease on 30
September 2021. On 7 December 2021, the Group
opened a new branch at Yue Man Square, Kwun Tong
(with floor area approximately 509 sq. m.) under the
trade name “Kwun Tong City Chiu Chow Restaurant”
("KTCCC"). The Group's turnover for the first half of the
year under review was approximately HK20.6 million,
representing a decrease of approximately 30.8% or
HK9.2 million compared to the last corresponding period
mainly due to the drop in revenue as a result of the
change in operating floor area of the two venues.

2022/23 Annual Report &3k
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Restaurant Operations in Hong Kong (Continued)

The Group’s turnover for the second half of the year
under review was approximately HK24.6 million,
representing a significant increase of approximately
HK13.8 million compared to the last corresponding
period’s turnover of approximately HK10.8 million as the
business rebounded from a low base last year. In
particular, the revenue for the Group in October and
November 2021 were lower as KTCCC was still under
renovation. In addition, the fifth wave of the COVID-19
pandemic which started from January 2022 had a severe
impact on the Group's restaurant operations. For safety
measures, the Group suspended its restaurant
operations for almost two months from mid-February
2022, resulting in a record low revenue of approximately
HK$2.6 million in the first quarter of 2022.

The revenue for Tsimshatsui branch improved following
the progressive relaxation of the social distancing
measures since January 2023. The resumption of local
and overseas tours as well as the uplift of restrictions on
operating hours and number of persons per table had
brought a positive impact on the corporate and tourist
businesses. As a result, the turnover for the second half
of the financial year under review increased by
approximately HK$3.6 million compared to the first half
of the financial year under review.

The revenue growth for KTCCC, however, was limited
by (i) the more competitive operating environment in the
Kwun Tong district; (ii) the reduction in expenditure per
head; and (iii) very slow business in the evening on
weekdays. In view of the uncertainties casted on the
outlook and cashflows for KTCCC, the Group has
decided to make non-cash impairment on the remaining
balances of the right-of-use assets and the property,
plant and equipment of approximately HK$7.5 million
and HK$4.6 million, respectively.

G-VISION INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED BHNEREEERAR
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Property Development in Australia

On 18 October 2019, GV Australia Pty Ltd (a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company) entered into
an agreement with a connected party in relation to the
development and construction of a low-rise apartment
block on the land comprising 26 apartments and certain
communal facilities situated in Camden, Sydney, New
South Wales, Australia. The transaction was approved by
the shareholders of the Company at the special general
meeting held on 29 November 2019.

The construction commenced following the appointment
of HT Building Pty Ltd as the main contractor in March
2020. Rider Lovett Bucknall RLB Sydney, a reputable
quantity surveyor firm, had been appointed as the
certified quantity surveyor for the project. A project
control team was set up to oversee and monitor the
sales and development progress. The construction
progressed well amidst the COVID-19 pandemic and the
various lockdown measures in the state of New South
Wales. Following the issue of the occupation certificate
for the apartment block in October 2021, the Group
received and recognised property development income
of approximately A$12.9 million (HK$ equivalent of
HK$74.0 million) and cost of sales of approximately
A$11.5 million (HK$ equivalent of HK$66.3 million)
contributing a gross profit of approximately A$1.4
million (HK$ equivalent of HK$7.7 million) to the Group
for the year ended 31 March 2022. Owing to
completion of the abovementioned property
development project during the year ended 31 March
2022, no revenue was generated from this segment for
the year under review.

2022/23 Annual Report &3k
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The easing of COVID-19 measures in Hong Kong has
sparked hope among the food and beverages industry
for market rebound. However, we expect the recovery to
pre-pandemic levels to take considerable time. The end
of mandatory hotel quarantines and the reopening of
border with Mainland China from 6 February 2023 have
boosted outbound travels from Hong Kong especially to
the Greater Bay Area. As a result, there was a sudden
slowdown in restaurant business after the Chinese New
Year holiday. The unfavourable market sentiment
coupled with the surge in food and labour costs imply
the outlook remains bleak. Amid the severely
challenging operating environment, the Group will adopt
a more cautious approach in committing further capital
expenditure and will implement various measures to
mitigate the loss during this difficult time such as
increasing promotion and discount to boost dine-in and
takeaway businesses, relentlessly negotiating rental
concession with the landlords and suspending the hiring
of full-time and temporary workers.

The Group will continue to review and revise its business
strategies from time to time with an aim to better
position itself to meet the challenges ahead and to
capture any new investment opportunities as they arise.
The property development project is considered as a
suitable opportunity for the Group to expand its
business activities and diversify risks with an aim to
improve the returns for its shareholders.
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| would like to express my gratitude to the management
and staff members of the Group for their dedication and
invaluable efforts and contributions to the Group during
the year.

Cheng Hop Fai
Chairman

Hong Kong, 19 June 2023

G-VISION INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED BHNEREEERAR



8

BRI

Management Discussion and Analysis

Bt 7% 0 g8

FINANCIAL REVIEW

BMARZBER
HZE2023F3A31BH L E  AEE&E
Z 4R AU A 445,200,000 7T © BEF U
A #1114,600,0007% JT 5 4 £960.6% ° I
ARXBRLEEZEAHNRAERBMN2021F
1VANEZKBMNAOWEREEE %
DEREBEFENETHE —TERAK
A (20224 : #774,000,000/ JT) K B
BB EE KU A L 545,200,000 7T
# 2% F 4940,600,00058 JT #9 48 A 18 0 49
11.3% o

AEBREBEFEANAZSFEERY
21,600,000 7T - MEFR RIS FE
8 #4914,100,000/8 7T © JF & B KI5 0=
ZEHRAEBENFTFREEERDE K
ENEFEOIERSBERED MG
4,400,000 7T }2.2,700,0005% 7T °

E7

HE2023F3A3MHEFERZEFNLD
31,500,000/ JT * A& £2022F3 A 31
H It &% A #%35,500,000% T8 4 4
4,000,000/ 7T + T Z RN E £2023F3A4
BMALFERYTERBMERRSBZE
A (20224 : 497,700,000/ 7T) * &
B # B2 S 75 > BB FHE AN4Y3,700,000
BT - BEEBNEFEMNEZR
PEEEREIER MM D EIBEFELEME -

G-VISION INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED BN EREEERAT

Revenue and Net Loss

For the year ended 31 March 2023, the Group recorded
consolidated revenue of approximately HK$45.2 million,
representing a decrease of approximately 60.6% from
the previous year's revenue of approximately HK$114.6
million. The substantial decrease in revenue was
primarily attributable to the completion of the Group's
property development project in Australia in October
2021 and no further revenue (2022: approximately
HK$74.0 million) was recognised for this segment in the
year under review. The revenue from the restaurant
operations in Hong Kong was approximately HK$45.2
million, representing an increase of approximately
11.3% from previous year’s revenue of approximately
HK$40.6 million.

The Group recorded a net loss of approximately
HK$21.6 million for the year under review compared to
a net loss of approximately HK$14.1 million for the last
corresponding period. The significant increase in net loss
was mainly due to the increase in non-cash impairment
losses of approximately HK$4.4 million and HK$2.7
million on the Group's right-of-use assets and property,
plant and equipment respectively.

Gross Profit

The decrease in gross profit of approximately HK$4.0
million from approximately HK$35.5 million for the year
ended 31 March 2022 to approximately HK$31.5 million
for the year ended 31 March 2023 was the combined
effect of no gross profit being recognised from the
property development segment for the year ended 31
March 2023 (2022: approximately HK$7.7 million),
which was partially offset by the increase in gross profit
from the restaurant operations segment of
approximately HK$3.7 million. The increase in gross
profit for the restaurant operations segment was in line
with the increase in turnover and the improvement in
gross profit margin of the segment.

2022/23 Annual Report &3k
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Other Income and Other Gains and Losses

The other income and other gains and losses of
approximately HK$3.4 million for the year ended 31
March 2023 mainly consists of approximately HK$2.3
million (2022: approximately HK$2.1 million) subsidies
granted by the Hong Kong Government (“HK Govt"”). The
Group had received in total approximately HK$10.0 million
subsidies from the HK Govt under various stages of the
Anti-epidemic Fund relief schemes since April 2020. The
COVID-19-related rent concessions of approximately
HK$1.1 million received for the Group were recognised as
other income in the year under review.

Staff Costs

Total staff costs were approximately HK$22.5 million for
the year under review, representing an increase of
HK$3.3 million from the previous year's staff costs of
approximately HK$19.2 million. The Group’s staff costs
were lower in the last quarter of 2021 following the
closure of Hover City Chiu Chow Restaurant and in the
first quarter of 2022 due to the adoption of the unpaid
leave arrangement during the suspension of operations
of both restaurants at the height of the pandemic.
However, the effect of the aforementioned reduction in
staff costs was partially offset by the surge in staff costs
in the second half of the year as the Group had to offer
higher pay to hire or to retain staff amid labour shortage
in the catering business.

Lease Rentals and Related Expenses

The adoption of HKFRS 16 on the Group’'s lease
agreements resulted in the recognition of short-term lease
rentals of approximately HK$4.8 million (2022:
approximately HK$6.2 million); depreciation of
right-of-use assets of approximately HK$2.2 million (2022:
approximately HK$2.4 million) and interest expenses on
lease liabilities of approximately HK$0.6 million (2022:
approximately HK$0.4 million) for the year under review.
The reduction in short-term lease rentals of approximately
HK$1.4 million was mainly due to the closure of Hover
City Chiu Chow Restaurant in October 2021.

G-VISION INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED BHNEREEERAR
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Impairment Loss on Property, Plant and Equipment
and Right-of-Use Assets

After considering (i) the latest development of the
Group’s restaurant operations, (ii) the challenges ahead
and (iii) the uncertainties casted on the Group’s future
cash flows stream, the management had adjusted the
cash flow forecast of the Group and adopted a more
prudent view on the business growth resulting in the
recognition of approximately HK$7.5 million (2022:
approximately HK$3.1 million) and HK$4.6 million
(2022: approximately HK$1.9 million) non-cash
impairment losses on the Group's right-of-use assets and
the property, plant and equipment respectively.

Write-off of Property, Plant and Equipment

For the year ended 31 March 2022, there was an
additional loss of approximately HK$2.0 million due to
the write-off of the remaining balances of property,
plant and equipment for Hover City Chiu Chow
Restaurant following its closure in the beginning of
October 2021.

Other Operating Expenses

The decrease in other operating expenses of
approximately HK$1.4 million from approximately
HK$14.2 million for the year ended 31 March 2022 to
approximately HK$12.8 million for the year ended 31
March 2023 was mainly attributable to (i) the
year-on-year decrease in repair & maintenance costs of
approximately HK$0.7 million; (ii) the decrease in
building management fees and rates of approximately
HK$0.6 million and (iii) the decrease in professional fees
of approximately HK$0.2 million.

Finance Costs

The Group obtained loan facilities on 1 February 2021 of
HK$40 million from its ultimate parent, Kong Fai
International Limited, which bear interest at a rate of
5% per annum. On 1 September 2021, the loan facilities
were increased to HK$50 million. During the year ended
31 March 2022, the total sum drawn down by the
Group was approximately HK$43 million with accrued
loan interests of approximately HK$1.1 million. The
loans and accrued interest amounted to approximately
HK$44.1 million were fully repaid in October 2021, so
there was no interest on loan from the ultimate parent
for year ended 31 March 2023.

2022/23 Annual Report &3k
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Restaurant Operation in Hong Kong

The Group is mainly engaged in the operation of
Chinese restaurants in Hong Kong which specialise in
Chiu Chow cuisine. Revenue from the restaurant
operation amounted to approximately HK$45.2 million
for the year under review, representing an increase of
approximately HK$4.6 million from the previous year.
Hover City Chiu Chow Restaurant with floor area of
approximately 1,683 sq. m. at Cheung Sha Wan Plaza
ceased operation following the expiration of its lease on
30 September 2021. The Group opened a new
restaurant, Kwun Tong City Chiu Chow Restaurant with
floor area of approximately 509 sg. m. at Yue Man
Square, Kwun Tong on 7 December 2021. As a result of
the above, the operating floor areas were largely
reduced by approximately 1,174 sg. m., hence limiting
the revenue growth for the period under review while at
the same time resulting in costs saving in rental related
expenses and other operating expenses.

Impact of COVID-19

Since January 2020, the food and beverage industry in
Hong Kong has been hit hard by the outbreak of the
COVID-19 pandemic and the various social distancing
and quarantine measures imposed by the HK Govt. The
prolonged period of the pandemic continued to have an
adverse impact on the operations and financial results of
the Group’s restaurants during the year under review:

Fifth Wave of COVID-19 Outbreak — January 2022 to
April 2022

From 7 January 2022, catering businesses in Hong Kong
had to cease dine-in services from 6 p.m. to 4.59 a.m.
of the subsequent day. The maximum number of
persons per table was two during business hours. On 27
January 2022, the HK Govt outlined its plan to expand
the Vaccine Pass arrangements whereby, starting from
24 February 2022, all persons aged 12 or above entering
certain specified premises are required to adhere to the
Vaccine Pass arrangements by using the
“LeaveHomeSafe” mobile application and presenting
their vaccination record.

As a result of the surge in the number of COVID-19
cases in February 2022 and for the safety of the patrons
and staff of the Group, the operations of the Tsim Sha
Tsui branch were suspended from 14 February 2022 to 9
April 2022, while the operations of the Kwun Tong
branch were also suspended from 8 February 2022 to 12
April 2022.

G-VISION INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED BHNEREEERAR

11



BRI

Management Discussion and Analysis

EH O (E)

BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)

ERBEEK (&)

20197k 5 ZEFFCOVID-1959 2 2 (48 )
MAMNCOVID-19B HmBIZ THBE - 8
2022F4F21B R BEEBNHE D =@
PEER R E REB MDA R BB HE - 55 —PEER
F2022F 421 B8 - BERERE T Tolkk
Fip FORSIODMERRE B A L
PRIGINZEMA - FIBEIMNAEB=RRE
AR FTAT ST — KRR LR 08 ([HRRT
JRAagAl]) o

2022F5H F20224F9H

NE ZEER - BIH2022F5 ASHAE - B8R
X¥ERAMBEHHE—FIHREETR  8F
AZBEREMENAN - BEBITEFE =M
ERFA2022F5A3THMABE B T RE A
WESAI MBS ZES ZHICOVID-19
B e

H2022F6 R FAK - BHHEEH ML
COVID-19/A Il 2 EAEBE  WHAHRZ
ERNAEA - BIEFIRSEERR &5
B ERSENELERERE BN ZTM
BEZERIGCEMNEEITHEEER B
BFRAEHFEBENLEIEHER - T8
HE—PWE EEREETREBTE (&
DHITIEHERERAUALFESIREE
KEAIR T RFMBERGAIETES
FTitiEL® - FTE ANBELINESHI24
NEFRETTIRRIUR A - WA B RIS
BEANTEELERBE A EA - #EA
15 AT ATAS /)N N BLAS HO 4% 6 A0RI RS 1 45 R
AT AW B E R R LR R Bk o
2022F9A30BH#E SHEEITHRNRES
EETREBIELE BETENESR
LR —BICOVID- 19 H 4 e AT &
B BT RE R B F 35 P o

G-VISION INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED BN EREEERAT

Restaurant Operation in Hong Kong (Continued)
Impact of COVID-19 (Continued)

In light of the downward trend of the daily number of
COVID-19 cases at the time in Hong Kong, from 21 April
2022, the HK Govt planned to relax most of the social
distancing measures in three phases. During phase one,
effective from 21 April 2022, dine-in services of catering
businesses from 6 p.m. to 9.59 p.m. resumed, with the
maximum number of persons per table increased to four.
All staff had to undergo a rapid antigen test (“RAT")
once every three days before entering the premises.

May 2022 to September 2022

During phase two, effective from 5 May 2022, the
restrictions on dine-in service hours for catering
businesses were further relaxed to extend to midnight,
with the maximum number of persons per table
increased to eight. The third stage of the Vaccine Pass
arrangements, which required citizens to receive the third
dose of COVID-19 vaccines before entering specified
premises, was also implemented on 31 May 2022.

Since the beginning of June 2022, the daily number of
COVID-19 cases in Hong Kong began to show an
upward trend and a number of cluster infections
emerged again. In order to contain the risk of virus
transmission, the HK Govt reiterated that there was no
room to relax any social distancing measures. However,
considering the needs for social and economic activities,
the HK Govt maintained the then social distancing
measures without any further tightening. All catering
premises and scheduled premises were allowed to
continue operating subject to strict compliance with the
requirements including the Vaccine Pass, the
“LeaveHomeSafe” mobile application as well as virus
testing. In addition, every person participating in a
banquet must produce to the persons-in-charge of the
catering premises a photo of the negative result of RAT
conducted within the preceding 24 hours before
entering the premises. A negative nucleic acid test result
obtained within 48 hours before entering the premises
could also be used to fulfil the above RAT requirement.
From 30 September 2022, the Vaccine Pass
arrangements were extended to apply to children aged 5
to 11, who were required to have received at least one
dose of the COVID-19 vaccine for entering premises
subject to the Vaccine Pass arrangements.
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Restaurant Operation in Hong Kong (Continued)
Impact of COVID-19 (Continued)

May 2022 to September 2022 (Continued)

The imposition of strict social distancing measures on
elderlies and children continued to deter the patrons of
the Group from dining out and had a direct adverse
impact on the turnover for the Group’s restaurants
during the summer holiday and the Mid-Autumn Festival
periods in 2022. There was an increase in ad-hoc
cancellation in booking amid the surge in confirmed
cases since June 2022. As a result, the turnover for the
first half of the year under review was 40% below the
pre-COVID-19 level.

October 2022 to December 2022

From 6 October 2022, as the COVID-19 epidemic
situation in Hong Kong became relatively stable, certain
social distancing measures were further relaxed, with the
maximum number of persons per table increased from 8
to 12 and the maximum number of persons for
banquets increased from 120 to 240. From 3 November
2023, the restrictions on the operating and dine-in
service hours for catering businesses were lifted.

Despite the gradual relaxation of social distancing
measures, the market sentiment continued to remain
unfavorable in the third quarter as outbound travels
from Hong Kong increased, resulting in an unexpected
decrease in revenue compared to the previous quarter.

January 2023 to March 2023

From 29 December 2022, the requirements of the
Vaccine Pass arrangements, the isolation order for close
contacts of COVID-19 patients and the restriction on the
number of people allowed to be seated together at one
table in restaurants were lifted. Inbound tour group
travellers holding an amber code under the Vaccine Pass,
who were received by licensed travel agents, were
allowed to enter designated catering premises that met
special anti-epidemic requirements.
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Restaurant Operation in Hong Kong (Continued)
Impact of COVID-19 (Continued)

January 2023 to March 2023 (Continued)

The turnover showed signs of improvement in January
2023 before Chinese New Year but was stagnant in
February and March 2023. The tour business did pick up
but poor market sentiment and increasing competition
hindered the business from returning to pre-COVID level.
As a result, the overall turnover for the Group's
restaurant operations for the year under review was
25% below the target revenue.

As compensation and financial support for various
business sectors in light of the impact of the tightened
social distancing measures, the HK Govt launched
further rounds of the Anti-epidemic Fund in 2022. The
Group received a total of approximately HK$1.9 million
under the Employment Support Scheme and
approximately HK$0.4 million under the sixth round of
the Catering Business (Social Distancing) Subsidy Scheme
for the year ended 31 March 2023. The Group also
received approximately HK$1.1 million of COVID-19
related rental concession for the year under review.

Property Development in Australia

The property development project in Australia
commenced from March 2020 and completed in
October 2021. A project control team had been set up
to oversee and monitor the marketing and construction
progress. Following the issue of the occupation
certificate for the apartment block in the end of October
2021, the Group recognised development management
fees of approximately A$12.9 million (HK$74.0 million
equivalent) and cost of sales of approximately A$11.5
million (HK$66.3 million equivalent) for the year ended
31 March 2022 accordingly. The profit margin was
approximately A$1.4 million (HK$7.7 million equivalent)
for the year ended 31 March 2022. Owing to
completion of the abovementioned property
development project during the year ended 31 March
2022, no revenue was generated from this segment for
the year under review.
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The Group's bank and cash balances amounted to
approximately HK$24.5 million as at 31 March 2023. As
the Group had no bank borrowings, the Group’s gearing
ratio was zero (defined as total bank borrowings divided
by total assets) as at 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022.

With the cash generated from the Group’s operations in
its ordinary course of business and the existing unutilised
banking and credit facilities, the Directors consider that
the Group has sufficient working capital for its operations.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE
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Most of the Group’s sales, purchases, bank and cash
balances from the restaurant operations are
denominated in Hong Kong dollars. The Group is
exposed to foreign currency risk primarily through its
property development operations in Australia as the
relevant transactions, assets, liabilities and bank balances
are denominated in Australian dollar. The management
would closely monitor such risk and would consider
hedging significant foreign currency exposure should the
need arise.

EMPLOYEES
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As at 31 March 2023, the Group had approximately 95
staff. Total staff costs including directors’ emoluments
amounted to approximately HK$22.5 million (2022:
approximately HK$19.2 million) for the year under review.

Review of the employees’ remuneration packages is
normally conducted annually and as required from time
to time. The salary and benefit levels of the Group's
employees are competitive and individual performance is
rewarded through the Group’s bonus scheme. Other
benefits including medical coverage and mandatory
provident fund scheme are also provided to employees.
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The Group strives to generate positive return to preserve
values of shareholders through its sustainable business
development. For the Group’s traditional business, the
Group will try to seek growth and higher returns by
offering more innovative products and/or services to
customers, to implement more stringent cost control
measures and to apply and manage resources as
effectively as possible. In order to further enhance the
value of the Group and to achieve higher returns to the
shareholders of the Company, the longer term approach
is to expand the income source through business
diversification. The aim is to maximise the overall returns
to the shareholders of the Company in the long run by
identifying and selecting new business opportunities
which are of great potential and include them in the
Group's existing business portfolio.

OUTLOOK

BEXEBRFEARNEB 2 ZOER - #
SACOVID-192 KA RITEIBEBEE -
AT NEEEEER 2 KERRENDAK
B8t - WBEEXE A ASBEHR
BMEFITREEFRRE  ARERAN
MR E IR o ¥R R AR 5T B A R —
PHEAAY  AEBBHEDMEZENRE
B -AEBBEETRESRBRMNDEYE
BREEBNRERS - Zb BRI S
1 B 7N 5 B &R 7 o g 1 IR AR TR
WAAEEREREFRIERDR -

G-VISION INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED BN EREEERAT

The restaurant business will continue to serve as the
core operation of the Group. However, the operating
environment for the Group’s restaurant operation
remains challenging amid the more stable condition of
the COVID-19 pandemic. For the restaurant business,
the Group’s strategy is to concentrate on operating
medium-sized restaurants while achieving efficient risk
management. It will also adopt a more cautious
approach in future expansion plan as well as in
committing further capital expenditure. The Group will
continue to seek investment opportunities in property
development projects both in Hong Kong and in
Australia. The diversification into the property
development segment will give the Group ample
opportunities to acquire additional source of income and
achieve a positive return to the Group and the
shareholders of the Company.
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The Board acknowledges the importance and benefits of
good corporate governance and strives to manage the
Company and the business in accordance with the
guidelines of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the "Stock Exchange”) for effective corporate
governance emphasising transparency, fairness, integrity
and accountability.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE
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The Company has adopted the Corporate Governance
Code (the "Code”) contained in Appendix 14 to the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) as its own corporate
governance code. The Company has complied with the
code provisions set out in the Code throughout the year
ended 31 March 2023 except for code provision C.2.1 in
respect of the role separation of the chairman and the
chief executive and code provision C.3.3 in respect of
the letters of appointment for directors.

Code provision C.3.3 sets out that issuers should have
formal letters of appointment for directors setting out
the key terms and conditions of their appointment. The
Company did not have formal letters of appointment for
certain Directors. All of the directors of the Company
are, however, required to refer to the guidelines set out
in “A Guide on Directors’ Duties” issued by the
Companies Registry and “Guidelines for Directors” and
“Guide for Independent Non-Executive Directors”
published by the Hong Kong Institute of Directors in
performing their duties and responsibilities as Directors.
In the opinion of the Directors, this meets the objective
of the code provision C.3.3.
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The Company has adopted the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the
“Model Code”) contained in Appendix 10 to the Listing
Rules as its own code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by the Directors. Following specific enquiry
by the Company, all the Directors confirmed that they
have complied with the required standards as set out in
the Model Code during the year ended 31 March 2023.
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The Board currently comprises four executive Directors
and three independent non-executive Directors
("INEDs"):

Executive Directors

CHENG Hop Fai (Chairman and Managing Director)
CHENG Pak Ming, Judy

CHENG Pak Man, Anita

CHENG Pak Lai, Lily

Independent Non-Executive Directors

LAW Toe Ming
HUNG Chi Yuen, Andrew
YUEN Shiu Cheong, Johnny

Ms. Cheng Pak Ming, Judy, Ms. Cheng Pak Man, Anita
and Ms. Cheng Pak Lai, Lily are sisters and are daughters
of Mr. Cheng Hop Fai, the chairman and managing
director. Save as aforesaid, the Board members have no
financial, business, family or other material relationship
with each other.
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All the Directors are subject to retirement by rotation
and re-election at the annual general meetings. In
accordance with the Company’s bye-laws, at each
annual general meeting one-third of the Directors for
the time being (or, if their number is not a multiple of
three, the number nearest to but not less than one third)
shall retire from office by rotation provided that every
Director shall be subject to retirement at least once
every three years. Accordingly, Ms. Cheng Pak Ming,
Judy, Ms. Cheng Pak Man, Anita and Mr. Yuen Shiu
Cheong, Johnny will retire from the office of Director by
rotation and, being eligible, will offer himself/herself for
re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

During the year ended 31 March 2023, there were seven
Board meetings, one general meeting and one special
general meeting held. Individual attendance of each of
the Board members is as follows:

R
Attendance

g BREAXE #HiBRRARE

Special

Board General General

= Name of Director Meeting Meeting Meeting
B 5 pE CHENG Hop Fai 4/7 1/1 0/1
Zf 5 B CHENG Pak Ming, Judy 4/7 1/1 1/1
LIRS CHENG Pak Man, Anita 4/7 1/1 1/1
EEE CHENG Pak Lai, Lily 4/7 1/1 1/1
B LAW Toe Ming 7/7 1/1 11
HEER HUNG Chi Yuen, Andrew 717 1/1 1/1
RAE YUEN Shiu Cheong, Johnny 717 1/1 1/1
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The members of the Board are experienced individuals
having a mix of core competencies in areas of
accounting and finance, business management, industry
knowledge and marketing strategies. The Directors are
collectively responsible for formulating and
implementing the Group’s strategies and policies,
monitoring the performance of the Group and reviewing
the corporate governance practices. The mix of
professional skills and experience of the INEDs is an
important element in the proper functioning of the
Board. Their participation in Board and committee
meetings brings independent judgment and helps to
ensure that adequate checks and balances are provided
and that the interests of all shareholders are taken into
account. Directors have full access to board papers and
related materials, and appropriate business documents
and information about the Group on a timely basis. The
Directors can also obtain independent professional
advice at the Group’s expense if they require it. The
Board delegates the day-to-day operation and
administration to the management.

The Company has complied with rules 3.10(1) and (2) of
the Listing Rules in maintaining at all times sufficient
number of INEDs on the Board including an INED with
professional accounting and financial qualifications. The
Company has complied with rule 3.10A since 1
December 2012 and has INEDs representing at least
one-third of the Board. The Company considers all of
the INEDs are independent and has received from each
INED an annual confirmation of independence pursuant
to rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
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All the Directors, including the INEDs, are given equal
opportunity and channels to communicate and express
their views to the Board and have separate and
independent access to the management of the Group in
order to make informed decisions. All Directors also have
access to the company secretary of the Company (the
“Company Secretary”).

An agenda and accompanying Board/committee papers
are distributed to the Directors/Board committee
members with reasonable notices in advance of the
meetings. Minutes of Board meetings and meetings of
Board committees with sufficient details recorded of the
matters considered by the Board and Board committees
and decisions reached, including any concerns raised by
the Directors or dissenting views expressed, are kept by
the Company Secretary and are open for inspection by
the Directors.

The chairman of the Board holds meetings with the
independent non-executive Directors without the
involvement of other Directors at least annually to
discuss any issues and concerns.

If any Director or his/her associate has a conflict of
interest in a matter to be considered by the Board and
the Board has determined that such conflict of interest
to be material, such matter will be dealt with by a
physical Board meeting rather than by written
resolutions. Such Director will be required to declare his/
her interests before the meeting and abstain from voting
on the relevant resolutions.

The Board has reviewed and considered that the
mechanisms have been duly implemented and are
effective in ensuring that independent views and input
are available to the Board during the year ended 31
March 2023.
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The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for the
preparation of financial statements of the Group that
give a true and fair view of the Group’s financial
position and are in accordance with applicable
accounting standards and statutory rules and guidelines.
The Board is not aware of any material uncertainties
relating to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue on a
going concern basis. The Company has also received a
statement by the auditor of the Company about their
reporting responsibilities.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS
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The Board recognises its overall responsibility for the
establishment, maintenance and review of the risk
management and internal control systems that provide
reasonable assurance on the reliability and integrity of
financial and operational information, effective and
efficient operations, safeguarding of assets and
compliance with laws and regulations. The review also
covers the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications
and experience, training programmes and budget of the
Company’s accounting and financial reporting functions.
The Group’s environmental and social governance
("ESG") management team, which consists of all
executive Directors and senior management of its major
subsidiaries, and the audit committee of the Company
conduct an annual review of the Company’s ESG
performance and reporting. Such systems are designed
to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to
achieve business objectives, and can only provide
reasonable and not absolute assurance against material
misstatement or loss.
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The Group’s risk management and internal control
systems are based on a set of policies, rules and
guidelines as outlined in the Group’s internal control
manual and governed by the following types of control
principles:

a. Organisation — to have clearly defined line of
responsibility and delegation

b. Segregation of duties — to reduce risk of intentional
manipulation or error

c.  Physical Control — to restrict unauthorised access to
all kinds of assets

d. Authorisation and approval — to have clearly defined
limits for authorisations

e. Arithmetical and accounting — to ensure accuracy of
transactional records

f.  Personnel — to have qualified staff to perform
day-to-day duties

g. Supervision — to observe and closely monitor, to
identify and report on control weaknesses

h. Management — to maintain overall controls; to
manage and mitigate significant risks and to
highlight significant matters to the Board and the
audit committee

G-VISION INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED BHNEREEERAR
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS
(Continued)
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The Company has adopted the “Guidelines on Disclosure
of Inside Information” issued by the Securities and
Futures Commission as its own guidelines in handling
and dissemination of inside information. Unauthorised
use of confidential information is strictly prohibited. The
Group has established procedures to identify and
evaluate events or circumstances which potentially
involve or constitute inside information. Prior to
disclosure, the Board is responsible for ensuring that any
inside information relating to the Group is kept strictly
confidential and restricting access to inside information
to a limited number of parties on a need-to-know basis.
The Group would strive to ensure disclosure of inside
information to be made in a manner that provides for
equal, timely and effective access by the public.

The Board through the executive management team, the
internal control team and the audit committee had
conducted an annual review on the risk management
and internal control systems of the Group and
considered that the systems in place are adequate and
effective. Apart from the annual review, the Internal
Control department performs regular reviews for all
material control areas and focus. The process involves
the identification of risks associated with each of the
financial, operational and compliance controls, the
assessment of risk level, the implementation of control
procedures to monitor or mitigate the risks and the
report of issues to the Board on an ongoing basis.
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Code provision C.2.1 sets out that the roles of the
chairman and the chief executive should be separate and
should not be performed by the same individual.
Currently, Mr. Cheng Hop Fai assumes the role of both
the chairman and the managing director (equivalent to
the role of a chief executive) of the Company. The Board
considers that such arrangement will not result in undue
concentration of power and is, at this stage, conducive
to the efficient formulation and implementation of the
Group's strategies thus allowing the Group to develop
its business more effectively.

DIRECTORS’ TRAINING
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Code provision C.1.4 stipulates that all directors should
participate in continuous professional development to
develop and refresh their knowledge and skills to ensure
that their contribution to the Board remains informed
and relevant. The Company had received from each of
the Directors a record of training they received during
the year ended 31 March 2023. A summary of such
training is listed as follows:

EIEE
Type of
Name of Director training
Executive Director
CHENG Hop Fai A B
CHENG Pak Ming, Judy A, B
CHENG Pak Man, Anita A, B
CHENG Pak Lai, Lily A, B
Independent Non-Executive Director
LAW Toe Ming A, B
HUNG Chi Yuen, Andrew A, B
YUEN Shiu Cheong, Johnny A, B

A:  Attending training courses and/or seminars, conferences,

workshops or forums

B:  Reading journals and updates relevant to the Company’s

business or directors’ duties and responsibilities
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
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The Company has established a remuneration committee
since 14 July 2005. The principal function of the
remuneration committee is to make recommendations to
the Board on the remuneration packages of executive
Directors, INEDs and senior management. The terms of
reference of the remuneration committee adopted on 23
March 2012 are consistent with the code provisions set
out in the Code. During the year ended 31 March 2023,
the remuneration committee comprised three INEDs,
namely Mr. Law Toe Ming as chairman, Mr. Hung Chi
Yuen, Andrew and Mr. Yuen Shiu Cheong Johnny as
members. During the year ended 31 March 2023, the
remuneration committee held one meeting to review
and make recommendations to the Board on the
remuneration packages of the Directors with reference
to the level of responsibilities of the individual director,
the scope of operation of the Group as well as the
prevailing market conditions. Individual attendance of
each remuneration committee member is as follows:

FHEZEEERERR Name of HER

remuneration committee member Attendance
B (F/E) LAW Toe Ming (Chairman) 1/1
HEER HUNG Chi Yuen, Andrew 11
RABE YUEN Shiu Cheong, Johnny 1/1

REEES

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

RRAFIR2012F3A23BK I IEEZ B
2 - REZEGZTIEBREAZIEFR
HREFEZRE BE #HAaKkEZT
bt YRENEFEZRFAESTSRERRE
R NEREREEZ XK -

G-VISION INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED BN EREEERAT

The Company established a nomination committee on
23 March 2012. The principal function of the
nomination committee is to review the structure, size,
composition and diversity of the Board at least annually
with reference to the business needs and development
of the Company and make recommendations to the
Board on any proposed changes to the Board to
complement the Group’s corporate strategy.
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The terms of reference of the nomination committee are
consistent with the code provisions set out in the Code.
During the year ended 31 March 2023, the nomination
committee comprised the chairman and an executive
director, Mr. Cheng Hop Fai, who acts as the chairman
of the nomination committee and the two INEDs,
namely, Mr. Law Toe Ming and Mr. Hung Chi Yuen,
Andrew as members. During the year ended 31 March
2023, the nomination committee held one meeting to
review the composition and diversity of the Board as
well as to assess the independence of the INED who
offered himself for re-election at the annual general
meeting. Since the Board is composed of members
having a mix of core competencies in areas of
accounting and finance, business management, industry
knowledge and marketing strategies, the nomination
committee considered the Board possessed a diversity of
perspectives which is up to the standard of the Code
and was appropriate to the Group’s requirements.
Individual attendance of each of the nomination
committee members is as follows:

REZEERENR Name of HE R

nomination committee member Attendance
A (FE) CHENG Hop Fai (Chairman) 1/1
EBEHR LAW Toe Ming 11
HEER HUNG Chi Yuen, Andrew 11

2022/23 Annual Report 3R
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Board Diversity

The nomination committee has adopted a policy
concerning the diversity of Board members (the
“Policy”). Pursuant to the Policy, in reviewing the
Board’s diversity, the Board will consider including but
not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills,
knowledge and length of service. New directors, being
individuals who are suitably qualified and expected to
make a positive contribution to the performance of the
Board and having due regards to the criteria stated in
the Policy, will be identified and submitted to the Board
or shareholders for approval either to fill vacancies on
the Board or to be appointed as additional directors.

As at the date of this annual report, the Board consists
of four male Directors and three female Directors.
Accordingly, the Directors consider that gender diversity
of the Board has been achieved. The Board will continue
to pay due regard to gender parity in the succession
planning process to ensure that a diverse pipeline of
potential successors to the Board is available.

The Board also recognises the importance of achieving
diversity at the workforce level. As at 31 March 2023,
the workforce of the Group (including senior
management) consists of 49% male to 51% female.
Accordingly, the Board considers that the gender
diversity of the workforce has been achieved.
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The Company has established an audit committee since
1999. The primary functions of the audit committee
include:

(a)

To make recommendations on the appointment,
reappointment and removal of auditor and to
consider the terms of such appointments;

To review and monitor the auditor’'s independence;
to develop and implement policies on the
engagement of auditor for non-audit services;

To monitor the integrity of the financial statements,
annual and interim reports and the auditor’s report;
to review the Group’s financial and accounting
policies and practices and to ensure that the
information presents a true and fair assessment of
the Group’s financial position;

To review the Group’s financial controls, risk
management and internal control systems; to ensure
management has fulfilled its duty to have effective
systems and to review and monitor the effectiveness
of the internal audit function;

To consider major investigation findings on risk
management and internal control matters as
delegated by the Board or on its own initiative and
management’s response to these findings; and

To review the auditor’'s management letter and any
guestions raised by the auditor to management, and
management’s response.
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The terms of reference of the audit committee adopted
on 23 March 2012 are consistent with the code
provisions set out in the Code. During the year ended
31 March 2023, the audit committee comprised three
INEDs namely, Mr. Hung Chi Yuen, Andrew as chairman,
Mr. Law Toe Ming and Mr. Yuen Shiu Cheong, Johnny
as members.

During the year ended 31 March 2023, the audit
committee held three meetings and has reviewed with
senior management and the auditor their respective
audit findings, the interim and annual financial

mEE® BEEEHN2022/23FEH statements and the accounting principles and practices
Hﬁ#&i)}i#ﬁ EREZEEeKKEFAAL adopted by the Group. The audit committee
FERAT recommended the Board to adopt the interim and
annual reports for 2022/23. Individual attendance of
each member of the audit committee is as follows:
EREZEEHREN®E Name of HE =
audit committee member Attendance
HEE(FE) HUNG Chi Yuen, Andrew (Chairman) 3/3
% 18 7 LAW Toe Ming 3/3
RAE YUEN Shiu Cheong, Johnny 3/3
2B R 2 B = AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION
HE2023F3HA3MBIEFE - AR AIZE The remuneration payable in respect of the year ended

AAERBR (BE) @stEEHMAR
NAE R EM AR A S B RE R ES MOF
B REHENBMEOT

31 March 2023 for audit and non-audit services
provided to the Group by the Company’s auditor, PKF
Hong Kong Limited and other firms, is as follows:

T LA
Amount in HKD'000

$E+/\ Audit Fees 462
FEETE Non-Audit Fees B
462

¥ BN b B RS B AT VR R Rt & A AR
fRFES8F66H °

G-VISION INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED BN EREEERAT

The statement made by the auditor in respect of their
reporting responsibilities is set out on pages 58 to 66 of
this annual report.
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governance duties as set out below:-

(@) To develop and review the Company’s policies and
practices on corporate governance and make
recommendations to the Board;

(b) To review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of directors and senior
management;

(c) To review and monitor the Company’s policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements;

(d) To develop, review and monitor the code of conduct
and compliance manual (if any) applicable to
employees and directors; and

(e) To review the Company’s compliance with the Code
and its disclosure requirements in the Corporate
Governance Report.

The Board has reviewed the Group’s policies and
practices on corporate governance practices and
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements
including compliance with the Code for the year ended
31 March 2023.
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Ms. Cheng Pak Ming, Judy, an executive director of the
Company, has been the Company Secretary since 17
February 2006. Ms. Cheng complied with the
qualification and training requirements under the Listing
Rules for the year ended 31 March 2023.
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The Group is committed to maintaining a high degree of
transparency to ensure the investors and the shareholders
of the Company will are provided with ready, equal and
timely access to clear and comprehensive information
about the Company. The Company has established
several channels to communicate with the shareholders,
namely (i) publication of annual reports, interim reports,
announcements and circulars; (ii) all corporate
communications and corporate information on the
Company’s website at www.g-vision.com.hk and the
Stock Exchange’s website at http://www.hkexnews.hk;
and (iii) annual general meetings and other general
meetings which provide a forum for the shareholders to
make comments and exchange views with the Directors
and senior management.

Shareholders are also encouraged to maintain direct
communication with the Company. Shareholders who
have any questions for the Board may write directly to the
Company Secretary at the Company’s Hong Kong principal
place of business, Unit 108, 1st Floor, East Ocean Centre,
98 Granville Road, Tsimshatsui East, Kowloon, Hong Kong,
or send emails to info@g-vision.com.hk. The Company
Secretary will direct the questions to the Board.

Any questions regarding the shareholdings of the
shareholders can be addressed directly to the Company’s
branch share registrar, Computershare Hong Kong
Investor Services Limited at Shops 1712-1716, 17th floor,
Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong.
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Shareholders’ Meetings

Shareholders are encouraged to participate in general
meetings or to appoint proxies to attend and vote at
meetings if they are unable to attend the meetings.

The process of the Company’s general meeting will be
monitored and reviewed on a regular basis, and, if
necessary, changes will be made to ensure that
shareholders’ needs are best served.

Board members, in particular, either the chairman of
Board committees or their delegates, appropriate
management executives and external auditor will attend
annual general meetings to answer shareholders’
questions.

Procedures for shareholders to convene and put
forward proposals at shareholders meeting

If the shareholders of the Company wish to call a special
general meeting, it must be convened according to the
Company’s bye-laws. In summary:

(a) Shareholders holding not less than one-tenth of
the paid up capital of the Company can, in
writing to the Board or the Company Secretary,
request a special general meeting to be called by
the Board to transact any business specified in
such request.

(b)  The signed written request, which should specify
the purpose of the meeting, should be delivered
to the Company’s principal place of business in
Hong Kong. The meeting will be held within two
months after receipt of the request. If the Board
fails to proceed to convene such meeting within
twenty-one days after receiving the request, the
shareholders themselves may do so in accordance
with the provisions of section 74(3) of the
Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda.

The Board has reviewed the implementation and
effectiveness of the shareholders’ communication
arrangement and considers that the Company’s
communication with shareholders is effective during the
year under review.
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There was no significant change to the Company’s
memorandum of association and bye-laws (the
“Constitutional Documents”) during the year ended 31
March 2023. The latest version of the Constitutional
Documents are available on the Company’s website at
www.g-vision.com.hk and the Stock Exchange’s website
at http://www.hkexnews.hk.

Pursuant to the Company’s announcement dated 29
June 2023, the Board proposed that certain
amendments (the “Proposed Amendments”) be made to
the existing bye-laws (the “Existing Bye-laws"”) by way of
adoption of a new set of bye-laws (the “New Bye-laws")
in order to (i) reflect the latest amendments to Appendix
3 of the Listing Rules concerning the core shareholder
protection standards and the prevailing requirements
under the applicable laws of Bermuda; (i) provide more
flexibility in relation to the conduct of general meetings
of the Company by allowing general meetings to be held
at different physical locations simultaneously or as
hybrid meetings or electronic meetings; and (iii) bring
the Existing Bye-laws up-to-date and incorporate certain
consequential and housekeeping amendments for clarity
and consistency with other provisions of the Existing
Bye-laws. The New Bye-laws are subject to consideration
and approval by the shareholders of the Company by
way of a special resolution at the forthcoming annual
general meeting. A circular containing, among other
things, particulars relating to the Proposed Amendments
and the New Bye-laws will be despatched to the
shareholders of the Company in due course.
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Mr. Cheng Hop Fai, aged 79, appointed as a director
on 12 June 1992, is the chairman of the Company and
managing Director and the chairman of the nomination
committee of the Company. He is also a director of
various subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Cheng is one
of the founders of the Group and has over 30 years’
experience in the restaurant business. He has been
instrumental in the formulation and implementation of
the business policies of the Group and is responsible for
the general management and strategic planning of the
Group. Mr. Cheng is also a director of Golden Toy
Investments Limited (“Golden Toy”) and Kong Fai
International Limited (“Kong Fai”) which own
approximately 8.88% and 65.62%, respectively, of the
issued shares of the Company. Mr. Cheng is the father
of Ms. Cheng Pak Ming, Judy, Ms. Cheng Pak Man,
Anita and Ms. Cheng Pak Lai, Lily who are all executive
directors of the Company.

Ms. Cheng Pak Ming, Judy, aged 52, was appointed
as an executive Director on 25 September 1992. She
was also appointed as the company secretary of the
Company on 17 February 2006. Ms. Cheng is a daughter
of Mr. Cheng Hop Fai and a sister of Ms. Cheng Pak
Man, Anita and Ms. Cheng Pak Lai, Lily. She holds a
Bachelor degree in Economics from the University of
Sydney and a Master of Commerce degree from the
University of New South Wales, Sydney. She is a
Certified Practising Accountant of CPA Australia and a
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. She is responsible for the internal control
and company secretarial functions of the Group.
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Ms. Cheng Pak Man, Anita, aged 51, was appointed
as an executive Director on 30 September 2004.
Ms. Cheng is a daughter of Mr. Cheng Hop Fai and a
sister of Ms. Cheng Pak Ming, Judy and Ms. Cheng Pak
Lai, Lily. She holds a Bachelor of Commerce degree from
the University of New South Wales, Sydney and a Master
of Applied Finance degree from Macquarie University,
Sydney. She is a Certified Practising Accountant of CPA
Australia and a member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Prior to joining the Group,
Ms. Cheng has worked in the investment banking and
accounting fields in Hong Kong for over 5 years. She is
responsible for the business development, marketing
and strategic planning functions of the Group.

Ms. Cheng Pak Lai, Lily, aged 50, was appointed as an
executive Director on 1 April 2011. Ms. Cheng is a
daughter of Mr. Cheng Hop Fai and a sister of
Ms. Cheng Pak Ming, Judy and Ms. Cheng Pak Man,
Anita. She joined the Group in 2006. Ms. Cheng is
responsible for the administration, financial and strategic
planning functions of the Group. Prior to joining the
Group, Ms. Cheng had extensive finance and accounting
experiences in multinational audit firm, investment bank
and a renowned chemical company. She holds a
Bachelor of Commerce degree from the University of
New South Wales, Sydney and is a Certified Practising
Accountant of CPA Australia.
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Mr. Law Toe Ming, aged 81, was appointed as an INED
on 1 December 1994. He is the chairman of the
remuneration committee of the Company and a member
of the audit committee and nomination committee of
the Company. Mr. Law has over 40 years’ experience in
business management. He is a director of Texful Textile
Limited.

Mr. Hung Chi Yuen, Andrew, aged 54, was appointed
as an INED and a member of the Company’s
remuneration committee, nomination committee and
audit committee on 18 June 2019. He was appointed as
the chairman of the audit committee on 23 June 2021.
Mr. Hung is currently the director of Norton Rowland
CPA Limited. He received his professional training in
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu during the period from 1991
to 1993 and had worked in UBS Investment Bank as
business unit controller for seven years. Mr. Hung holds
a Bachelor's Degree of Arts (Hons) in Accountancy from
The Hong Kong Polytechnic University and a Master’s
Degree in Applied Finance from University of Western
Sydney. He is a practising Certified Public Accountant, a
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and a fellow member of the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants. Mr. Hung was an
independent non-executive director of AKM Industrial
Company Limited (stock code: 1639, the shares of which
were delisted from the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange with effect from 28 July 2022) ("AKM
Industrial”) from 10 October 2011 to 28 July 2022, and
FDG Kinetic Limited (stock code: 378, the shares of
which were delisted from the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange with effect from 20 February 2023) (“FDG
Kinetic”) from 1 July 2008 to 20 February 2023.
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Mr. YUEN Shiu Cheong, Johnny, aged 50, was
appointed as an INED and a member of the Company’s
remuneration committee and audit committee on 23
June 2021. Mr. Yuen began his career in KPMG and has
over 25 years of experiences in financial management,
accounting, auditing and administration. He held various
senior positions in other listed companies in Hong Kong
before joining IRC Limited (stock code: 1029) which is
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.
Mr. Yuen is currently the finance director, the company
secretary and authorised representative of IRC Limited.
Mr. Yuen did not hold any directorship in other listed
companies in the last three years. Mr. Yuen holds a
Master of Business Administration degree from the
Manchester Business School of University of Manchester
and is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants.
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The Directors present their annual report and the
audited consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 March 2023.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES
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The Company is an investment holding company. Its
principal subsidiaries are engaged in the operation of
restaurants in Hong Kong which specialise in Chiu Chow
Cuisine as well as property development in Australia.

RESULTS
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The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March
2023 are set out in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income on pages 67-68
of this annual report.

The Board has resolved not to recommend the payment
of a final dividend for the year ended 31 March 2023
(2022: Nil).

BUSINESS REVIEW
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A fair review of the business of the Group as well as a
discussion and analysis of the Group’s performance
during the year as required by schedule 5 to the
Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the laws of Hong
Kong) including a discussion of the principal risks and
uncertainties facing the Group and a discussion of the
Group's likely future development can be found in the
Chairman’s Statement and the Management Discussion
and Analysis of this annual report. The financial risk
management objectives and policies of the Group are
shown in note 6 to the consolidated financial
statements. Those discussions form part of this report of
the Directors. The environmental, social and governance
report of the Company to be published within five
months after the end of the financial year shall also
form part of the business review.

COMPLIANCE WITH RELEVANT LAWS AND
REGULATIONS
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During the year under review, as far as the Board and
the management are aware, there was no material
breach of or non-compliance with the applicable laws
and regulations by the Group that has a significant
impact on the business and operations of the Group.

G-VISION INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED BHNEREEERAR

39



40

EEEWE
Report of the Directors

HET ZTFRFAMHEENERE

RELATIONSHIP WITH EMPLOYEES, CUSTOMERS
AND SUPPLIERS
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The Group understands the importance of maintaining a
good relationship with its employees, customers and
suppliers to meet its immediate and long-term business
goals. During the year under review, there were no
material and significant disputes between the Group and
its employees, customers or suppliers.

MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS
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For the Group’s restaurant operations, the aggregate
purchases attributable to the largest supplier and five
largest suppliers of the Group were 19% and 53%,
respectively, of the Group's purchases for the year. The
aggregate revenue attributable to the five largest
customers of the Group was less than 30% of the
Group's revenue for the year.

None of the Directors, their respective close associates
nor any shareholder, (which to the knowledge of the
Directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s share
capital), has an interest in any of the five largest
suppliers of the Group.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND
PERFORMANCE
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The Company is committed to the sustainable
development of the environment and the society. The
Group has endeavoured to comply with the laws and
regulations regarding environmental protection and
adopted effective environmental practices to ensure the
business meet the required standards and ethics in
respect of environmental protection. Further details of
the Group's environmental policies and performance are
disclosed in the environmental, social and governance
report of the Company for the year under review to be
published together with this annual report.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
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Details of the movement of property, plant and
equipment of the Group during the year are set out in
note 18 to the consolidated financial statements.
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DONATIONS
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During the year under review, there was HK$10,000
charitable donation made by the Group (2022: Nil).

g 75 SHARE CAPITAL

RABIRASE FIESEHPERS SRR Details of the movements in the Company's share capital

F¥25 ¢ are set out in note 25 to the consolidated financial
statements.

] RESERVES
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Details of the movements in the reserves of the
Company and the Group for the year ended 31 March
2023 are set out in note 26-27 to the consolidated
financial statements and the consolidated statement of
changes in equity.

As at 31 March 2023, there were no distributable
reserves of the Company.

DIRECTORS
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The Directors during the year and up to the date of this
report were:

Executive Directors:

CHENG Hop Fai (Chairman and Managing Director)
CHENG Pak Ming, Judy

CHENG Pak Man, Anita

CHENG Pak Lai, Lily

Independent non-executive Directors:
LAW Toe Ming

HUNG Chi Yuen, Andrew

YUEN Shiu Cheong, Johnny

G-VISION INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED BHNEREEERAR
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DIRECTORS (Continued)
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In accordance with Bye-law 87(1) of the Company’s
Bye-laws, Ms. Cheng Pak Ming, Judy, Ms. Cheng Pak
Man, Anita and Mr. Yuen Shiu Yuen, Johnny will retire
from office by rotation at the forthcoming annual
general meeting and, being eligible, offer themselves for
re-election.

None of the Directors proposed for re-election has a
service contract with the Company or any of its
subsidiaries which is not determinable by the Group
within one year without payment of compensation
(other than statutory compensation).

CHANGES OF BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF
THE DIRECTORS
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The biographical details of the Directors of the Group as at
the date of this report are set out in the section headed
“Directors and Senior Management” to this report.

Mr. Yuen Shiu Cheong, Johnny was the acting chief
financial officer of IRC Limited. Since 1 July 2022, he has
been redesignated as the finance director of IRC Limited.

Mr. Hung Chi Yuen, Andrew ceased to be an
independent non-executive director of AKM Industrial
and FDG Kinetic following the withdrawal of the listing
of the shares of AKM Industrial and the delisting of the
shares of FDG Kinetic on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange with effect from 28 July 2022 and 20 February
2023, respectively.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES
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As at 31 March 2023, the interests of the directors and
the chief executive and their associates in the shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any
associated corporations which (a) were required to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the Securities
and Futures Ordinance (the “"SFO"); or (b) were required,

B EMARRM S0 HMIZESTR] - BB pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the
HMARANT BT EERET : register referred to therein; or (c) were required,
pursuant to the Model Code as set out in Appendix 10
to the Listing Rules, to be notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange were as follows:
A Long positions
(1) MARANBGREEIETE KR (1) Long positions in ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each
HE of the Company:
EARATE
ERITREAZ
BABF I
BEERT Approximate
EERHA percentage of
B REZME Number of issued the issued
EEpA Capacity and ordinary share capital
Name of director nature of interest shares held  of the Company
LIy EnEEA
Cheng Hop Fai Beneficial owner 6,900,000 0.35%
518 EREXmA (Hita)
Cheng Hop Fai Beneficiary of trusts (note a) 1,450,037,841 74.50%
18 EEXmA (Hia)
Cheng Pak Ming, Judy Beneficiary of trusts (note a) 1,450,037,841 74.50%
BHK EaZmA (fita)
Cheng Pak Man, Anita Beneficiary of trusts (note a) 1,450,037,841 74.50%
BRE EEXmA (Hia)
Cheng Pak Lai, Lily Beneficiary of trusts (note a) 1,450,037,841 74.50%
#iEH X E 2B (HiEb)
Law Toe Ming Interest of controlled corporation
(note b) 2,000,000 0.10%
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES
(Continued)
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Long positions (Continued)

(1)

Long positions in ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each
of the Company: (Continued)
Notes:

(a) Golden Toy Investments Limited (“Golden Toy"”)
and Kong Fai International Limited (“Kong Fai”)
held 172,869,780 shares (or 8.88% interest) and
1,277,168,061 shares (or 65.62% interest) of the
Company, respectively. Golden Toy and Kong Fai
are wholly-owned by two discretionary trusts of
which family members of Mr. Cheng Hop Fai,
including Mr. Cheng Hop Fai, Ms. Cheng Pak Ming,
Judy, Ms. Cheng Pak Man, Anita and Ms. Cheng

Pak Lai, Lily are discretionary objects.

(b) Mr. Law Toe Ming is deemed to be interested in the
2,000,000 shares held by Jubilee Trade Holdings
Limited (“Jubilee”) by virtue of his interest in

Jubilee.

Long positions in share options:

The Company adopted a share option scheme on
10 May 2010 (the “2010 Scheme”) which expired
on 8 May 2020. By shareholders’ resolution
passed at the annual general meeting held on 3
August 2020, the Company adopted a new share
option scheme (the “2020 Scheme”, and,
together with the 2010 Scheme, the “Schemes”).
Unless terminated earlier in accordance with the
rules of the 2020 Scheme, the 2020 Scheme shall
be valid and effective until 3 August 2030.
Particulars of the Schemes are set out in note 28
to the consolidated financial statements.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES,

i (8g) UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES
(Continued)
#e (&) Long positions (Continued)
(2) BREZITE: (8) (2)  Long positions in share options: (Continued)
B =2023F3A31H IEFERIE Details of movements in the share options granted
2010F s8I TESHNERES to the directors under the 2010 Scheme for the
EIEONE year ended 31 March 2023 are set out below:
BREHE
Number of share options
®2022% 120235
4518 RERHH 3A31H
BRESEA REAH s BRITEE" 4 RATEE g e R AT
Expired/
Exercise Outstanding granted  Outstanding
price as at during as at
Share Options Holders ~ Date of grant  Exercisable period @  per share @ 1.4.2022 the year 31.3.2023
LI 2017104238 2017F10A238%
20256108226
Cheng Hop Fai 23.10.2017 23.10.2017 -
22.10.2025 HK$0.177 6,000,000 - 6,000,000
LIaL 2017108238 2017F10A23A%
2025104220
Cheng Pak Ming, Judy 23.10.2017 23.10.2017 -
22.10.2025 HK$0.177 6,000,000 - 6,000,000
gpd 2017F10A238  2017%10A238%
2025610A22H
Cheng Pak Man, Anita 23.10.2017 23.10.2017 -
22.10.2025 HK$0.177 6,000,000 - 6,000,000
g68 2017%F10A238  2017F10A236%
2025%10A22H
Cheng Pak Lai, Lily 23.10.2017 23.10.2017 -
22.10.2025 HK$0.177 6,000,000 - 6,000,000
EEH 2017104238 2017%10A236%
2025610A22H
Law Toe Ming 23.10.2017 23.10.2017 -
22.10.2025 HK$0.177 2,000,000 - 2,000,000
FRZEY 2017%10A238  2017F10A236%
2025108226
Mark Yiu Tong, William ®  23.10.2017 23.10.2017 -
22.10.2025 HK$0.177 2,000,000 (2,000,000 -
28,000,000 (2,000,000) 26,000,000
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES
(Continued)
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B LB 2D - BEKMG K
EFHEAEMNEMERIRE
ZERRDRARQEREBE(EF K
HIE 15 01) EXVES 7 K85 2 @ &N
A A R B R sk(b) IR 1K (GE
N EAE 16 01) £352{6 BB BN E L
fit s KOBRBZELETREBAOAR
A R B R Py o
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Long positions (Continued)

(2)

Long positions in share options: (Continued)
Notes:

(a) The total estimated fair value at the date of grant
of the share options on 23 October 2017 was
HK$2,906,000. 30% of total number of the share
options were vested immediately on the date of
grant, 23 October 2017. 30% of total number of
the share options were vested on 23 October 2018
and the remaining 40% were vested on 23 October
2019. The closing price of the Company’s share
immediately before the date of grant was
HK$0.177.

(b) Mr. Mark Yiu Tong, William passed away on 24
January 2023 and his share options lapsed on the

same date.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2023,
none of the Directors and the chief executive of
the Company was, under Divisions 7 and 8 of Part
XV of the SFO, taken to be interested or deemed
to have any other interests or short positions in
the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company or any associated corporations which (a)
would have to be notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8
of Part XV of the SFO, or (b) which were required
to be entered into the register referred to therein
pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, or (c) which
were required to be notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.
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ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

BR Lt BB RSN - AR - HAEM
B QAR AR EEAMB AR
AFEENEIRE2EEMEIH  NEEE
AE 5 48 18 W IE AR 1 m) s (] AR A B8
B R0 B 1B 25 T S 2 o

FERR

Other than the options disclosed above, at no time
during the year was the Company, any of its subsidiaries
or holding company, or any subsidiary of its holding
company, a party to any arrangements to enable the
Directors to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition
of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any
other body corporate.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

B baisiE TESRBEMEDI - 12023
F3A318 - ARARECGEFRBEE)
E3BHEBEFNEIEBRREMBETR T
ATEBEBAARRRERECGEF M E K
1) EXVER 52 K370 #R A AR A w4 R A R
ARREBETRATZBREEDSSAR
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Other than the interests disclosed above in respect of
certain Directors, as at 31 March 2023, the register of
substantial shareholders maintained by the Company
pursuant to section 336 of the SFO indicated that the
following persons had notified the Company of interests
or short positions in the issued share capital of the
Company which fall to be disclosed to the Company
under Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO:
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FERR (F)

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS (Continued)

wr

RABFREENETZ BB

=1

Name

Golden Toy
Golden Toy

Kong Fai
Kong Fai

Alpadis Trust (HK) Limited
Alpadis Trust (HK) Limited

Alpadis Group Holding AG
Alpadis Group Holding AG

Alain Esseiva
Alain Esseiva

Dominik Philipp Heer
Dominik Philipp Heer

Long positions

B RESMEE

Capacity and
nature of interest

Em#EA A
Beneficial owner

BB A

Beneficial owner

EREXFA
Trustee of trusts

HERItRER
Interest of controlled corporation

REHhEsER
Interest of controlled corporation

HEHItRzER
Interest of controlled corporation

G-VISION INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED BN EREEERAT

iR E
RITEBRREE

Number of
issued ordinary
shares held

172,869,780@

1,277,168,061@

1,450,037,841@

1,450,037,841®

1,450,037,841©

1,450,037,841©

Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each of the Company:

EERF
EBITREZ
BHAESH
Approximate
percentage of
the issued
share capital

of the Company

8.88%

65.62%

74.50%

74.50%

74.50%

74.50%
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FERR (&) SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS (Continued)
" (&) Long positions (Continued)
et - Notes:

(a) BEIEBFLAEGRD EFLARE2ER
st 8 7 (¥ B Golden ToyXKong Faiz
100%#%5) 2 ZFE A » Alpadis Trust (HK)
Limited# 18 &M Golden ToyMKong Faifft
& HERESE ZHEIF1,450,037,841 % iR
MBS -

(b) Alpadis Group Holding AG (BT & AAlpadis
Group Holding SA) FREZ AR EEZRE
BAMELEREEREES RPEROE KRR
Alpadis Trust (HK) Limited# 5 2 # 25 M
18 /RP1,450,037,84 1B AR 10 R HE B A 25 o

(0) Alain EsseivaX&Dominik Philipp Heer s %
ZHEATZRRBAELRERBEZTSFR
H & 169 % S 7 Alpadis Group Holding
AGHF B 2 HE & i B AR & 501,450,037,841
ARRE D HE B M S o

Br Eat B EE SN - BLE BT A - R20234F3
A318 ' WEAREMATRARRAR 2K
DERBERDP ZEAERSORR - AR
ARXRBBEBEURBEESFLRBAERISE
336RTFEZERMA -

BRABULFATES

(a) Alpadis Trust (HK) Limited is deemed under the SFO to have
an interest in the same 1,450,037,841 shares, in aggregate,
beneficially owned by Golden Toy and Kong Fai by virtue of
it being the trustee of two discretionary trusts which own

100% of the shares of Golden Toy and Kong Fai.

(b) The corporate substantial shareholder notice filed by
Alpadis Group Holding AG (formerly known as Alpadis
Group Holding SA) indicated that it is deemed to be
interested in the 1,450,037,841 shares under the SFO by
virtue of its interest held in Alpadis Trust (HK) Limited.

(0) The individual substantial shareholder notice filed by Alain
Esseiva and Dominik Philipp Heer indicated that they are
deemed to be interested in the 1,450,037,841 shares under
the SFO by virtue of their interests held in Alpadis Group
Holding AG.

Save as disclosed above, the Directors are not aware of
any other persons who, as at 31 March 2023, had any
interests or short positions in the shares or underlying
shares of the Company that were required to be entered
into the register kept by the Company pursuant to
section 336 of the SFO.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENT
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

ARAREWB S BLIIFATESERELD
MAEIIBGRBEENFERF LRSS -
ARRIRBABELIFNITES I RBEL -

EERBEFEBPNES

The Company has received, from each of the INEDs, an
annual confirmation of independence pursuant to rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers that
all of the INEDs are independent.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

REOBEFERN TEEEAREZENE
EHMBEA(EER ETRA) EEZHHE
BREAREEXBHRFAAERFHEBET
BT R -
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During the year under review, none of the Directors or
their respective close associates (as defined in the Listing
Rules) had any interests in a business that competed or
was likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with
the business of the Group.
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EERANRBEERZTHESR

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN CONTRACTS AND
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

(@) ANEB B20025F5A6H #E [ B F| 2%
BERRA (EHDHEBRETYWE
EREEHELEZA -

2021548308 » A % B 85 F
BAREEBRY A —F HHA
2021953 1H # £2022F4H30H
IF 20214518 # £2021410
A318 A 7#H240,000/% 7T ;20214
1MB1B #£ £2022F4 8308 A
360,000 T (" BIEZf - EEE
kAR E) HEZS 41,080,000
Bwe AHMBEIINE 2B miEME
TMET BETHEZFBHAAR
NEIR2021F4A30HBEHNAE -

MR2022F4 829 » AN & E H R F
BREZKHAD  AH—F HHAH
2022F 58 1H #£ £2023F4H30H
IF 202245818 # E2022410
A318 A 240,000/ 7t ;20224
11A1H # £2023F4A30H A M
360,000 T (" BIEZf - EEE
kAR E) HEH$ /1,080,000
B ARBRINERFL2EMIEA
TMET BETHEZFBHAR
NEIR2022F4A29B B HINAE -

TERIRE Bt AR F R EZ A
% /3,600,000 7T °

76 & JhGolden Toyz 2 & W B A
B BMBRARRARMITESRTTAIES
£ BT B LT RE
BELXLTZHMES  WRE TR
AR R ARR 2 BEEANT -

50 G-VISION INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED BN EREEERAT

(a)

The Group has leased from Homley Development
Limited (“Homley”) certain properties for the
Group’s restaurant operations since 6 May 2002.

On 30 April 2021, the Group renewed the
tenancy agreement with Homley for a further
period of one year commencing 1 May 2021 to
30 April 2022 at a monthly rental of HK$240,000
from 1 May 2021 to 31 October 2021 and
HK$360,000 from 1 November 2021 to 30 April
2022 (exclusive of rates and management and
air-conditioning fees) and a rental deposit of
HK$1,080,000. The monthly rental was
negotiated with Homley with reference to the
market rents. Details of the arrangement are set
out in the announcement dated 30 April 2021
issued by the Company.

On 29 April 2022, the Group renewed the
tenancy agreement with Homley for a further
period of one year commencing 1 May 2022 to
30 April 2023 at a monthly rental of HK$240,000
from 1 May 2022 to 31 October 2022 and
HK$360,000 from 1 November 2022 to 30 April
2023 (exclusive of rates and management and
air-conditioning fees) and a rental deposit of
HK$1,080,000. The monthly rental was
negotiated with Homley with reference to the
market rents. Details of the arrangement are set
out in the announcement dated 29 April 2022
issued by the Company.

Rentals charged by Homley during the year under
the said tenancy agreement amounted to
HK$3,600,000.

Homley is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Golden
Toy and therefore is an associate of the executive
Directors of the Company, namely, Mr. Cheng
Hop Fai, Ms. Cheng Pak Ming, Judy, Ms. Cheng
Pak Man, Anita and Ms. Cheng Pak Lai, Lily, and
is regarded as a connected person of the
Company under the Listing Rules.
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DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN CONTRACTS AND
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(b)

7N £ B 5200551 A31 8 & A 5= W
EEERAR([ZH ) EA—@EE
ERNEEN °

R2022F2H1H - AREBEHEZPH
RELBEY) BE—F 0 520227
2A1H £ E2023F1A318 1+ © A
75,0008 L (T~ BEEEZMW - B1E
BRARE) MHER 150,000
Lo AHEANES2BEMESEHES
METE o

M2023%F1 8318 @ A% B H =
BREEMY  BH—F 52023
F2ATHEE2024F1A318 1k -
A 75,0008 (T"REZM &
BENARE)RBEE£150,000
Bwe AMMBIINE A 2RMIGH
CMERE °

SRR LA AR F R
% /900,000 7T °

Z . JhGolden Toyz & &M B A
A MARRRRITEEBE B
£ BERAZT AL RE
BEXTZHMES  WRE LR
AR ARAR ZBEAL -
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(b)

The Group has leased from Hover City Industrial
Limited (“Hover City”) a unit of a residential
building since 31 January 2005.

On 1 February 2022, the Group renewed the
tenancy agreement with Hover City for a further
period of one year commencing 1 February 2022
to 31 January 2023 at a monthly rental of
HK$75,000 (exclusive of rates and management
and air-conditioning fees) and a rental deposit of
HK$150,000. The monthly rental was determined
by both parties with reference to market rents.

On 31 January 2023, the Group renewed the
tenancy agreement with Hover City for a further
period of one year commencing 1 February 2023
to 31 January 2024 at a monthly rental of
HK$75,000 (exclusive of rates and management
and air-conditioning fees) and a rental deposit of
HK$150,000. The monthly rental was determined
by both parties with reference to market rents.

Rental charged by Hover City during the year
under the said tenancy agreement amounted to
HK$900,000.

Hover City is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Golden
Toy and therefore is an associate of the executive
Directors of the Company, namely, Mr. Cheng
Hop Fai, Ms. Cheng Pak Ming, Judy, Ms. Cheng
Pak Man, Anita and Ms. Cheng Pak Lai, Lily, and
is regarded as a connected person of the
Company under the Listing Rules.
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DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN CONTRACTS AND
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(@

AREBBH2012F1 308 £ A F 4%
KEBRRAR (A& ER—Hi

AEo

AN

R2022%F1 8318 AE B HEHF
BRXEEMRY  BAH—F 82022
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A 7100,0008 L (T~ BEZM - &
BERARE) MHEL$240,854
Bwe AMHABIINE F2RBmiEHA

MR2023F 18318 » A& B HEF %
BREEMY  BH—F 52023
F2ATHEE2024F1A318 1k -
A 100,000 L (TREZM - &
BERLSRE) MHER£240,854
Bwe AMMBIINE A 2RBRMIEH

FERE BN FAWRER 2 HE
% /$1,200,0007 7T ©

AEDEW2E2ENB AR M
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A MARRARRITESEEEL
£ EBAPLZLt BAsL L RE
BEZRETHER  WRELETHR
AR BAR QR ZEEAL -
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The Group has leased from Sky Global Investments
Limited (“Sky Global”) an office since 30 January
2012.

On 31 January 2022, the Group renewed the
tenancy agreement with Sky Global for a further
period of one year commencing 1 February 2022
to 31 January 2023 at a monthly rental of
HK$100,000 (exclusive of rates and management
and air-conditioning fees) and a rental deposit of
HK$240,854. The monthly rental was determined
by both parties with reference to market rents.

On 31 January 2023, the Group renewed the
tenancy agreement with Sky Global for a further
period of one year commencing 1 February 2023
to 31 January 2024 at a monthly rental of
HK$100,000 (exclusive of rates and management
and air-conditioning fees) and a rental deposit of
HK$240,854. The monthly rental was determined
by both parties with reference to market rents.

Rental charged by Sky Global during the year
under the said tenancy agreement amounted to
HK$1,200,000.

Sky Global is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Hover
City which in turn is a direct wholly-owned
subsidiary of Golden Toy and therefore is an
associate of the executive Directors of the
Company, namely, Mr. Cheng Hop Fai, Ms. Cheng
Pak Ming, Judy, Ms. Cheng Pak Man, Anita and
Ms. Cheng Pak Lai, Lily, and is regarded as a
connected person of the Company under the
Listing Rules.
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DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN CONTRACTS AND
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Continued)
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The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the
Group’s continuing connected transactions in
accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance
Engagements 3000 (Revised) “Assurance Engagements
Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740
“Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions
under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The
auditor has issued its unqualified letter containing its
findings and conclusions in respect of the continuing
connected transactions disclosed by the Group in (a) to
(c) above in accordance with rule 14A.56 of the Listing
Rules. A copy of the auditor’s letter has been provided
by the Company to the Stock Exchange.

The INEDs have reviewed the continuing connected
transactions and the report of the auditor and have
confirmed that the transactions have been entered into
by the Company in the ordinary course of its business,
on normal commercial terms and in accordance with the
terms of the agreement governing such transactions that
are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
shareholders of the Company as a whole.

Save as disclosed above, none of the related party
transactions set out in note 33 to the consolidated
financial statements constitutes connected transactions
or continuing connected transactions of the Company
which is required to be disclosed under the Listing Rules.
The Company confirmed that it was in compliance with
the disclosure requirements in Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.

Save as disclosed above, there was no other transaction,
arrangement or contract of significance, to which the
Company, any of its subsidiaries or holding company, or
any subsidiary of its holding company was a party and in
which a Director had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisting at the end of the year or
at any time during the year.
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EEAEK

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

REEBEFENRN  WERAEEZ KA
EABDEBZEERITHAILKFEAR
#) o

BE - HEIFEERD

No contracts concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of
the business of the Group were entered into or in
existence during the year under review.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF SHARES

REEFERA - ARBHEAAHE R
WHEEE HEXBLRARFZBD -

B R

There was no purchase, sale or redemption of the
Company’s shares by the Company or any of its
subsidiaries during the year under review.

REMUNERATION POLICY

ARAEBEZENSREEAENFMA
FMZBEeEZRARAINKERE @
ARBE LA HEEZ TSGR BURIRRE

AEBEZRESREEEHN  BRMEE
ESHM -

RN R PR2020F8 A3 E B 4l B8 A i 5t 2
([20205H &) © H20205T BB #E - B A
EEhCERRERHRPER AFER
BEEFSATHIE - BREGEI2FIRC
FHIINERE M RR M 28
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The remuneration of all Directors and senior
management of the Company are decided by the
remuneration committee, having regard to the
Company’s operating results, individual performance and
comparable market statistics.

Employees of the Group are compensated based on their
merit, qualifications and competence.

The share option scheme (2020 Scheme”) was adopted
by the Company on 3 August 2020. The 2020 Scheme
provides long-term incentives to Directors and eligible
employees and also serves as a retention tool for high
performing staff. Details of the 2020 Scheme are set out
in note 28 to the consolidated financial statements.
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The Board has absolute discretion to declare and
distribute dividends to the shareholders of the Company
in accordance to the memorandum of association and
bye-laws of the Company and subject to all applicable
laws and regulations. The Company has no fixed
dividend pay-out ratio. In recommending or declaring
dividends, the Board will take into consideration the
following factors, including, but not limited to:

(@ the Company’s actual and expected financial
performance;

(b) the level of retained earnings and distributable
reserves of the Company and its subsidiaries;

() the Group's debt-to-equity ratio; return on equity
and other relevant financial indicators;

(d) the restrictions and financial covenants on
payments of dividends imposed by the Group’s

creditors;

()  the Group’'s liquidity conditions, cashflow
forecasts and business development plan;

(f) the Group’s working capital and other capital
expenditure requirements;

(g)  the macroeconomic factors and other changes in
business, financial or economic conditions; and

(h) any other factors the Board may consider relevant.

The Board will review the dividend policy as appropriate
from time to time.
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BEERBEE

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

RRR) 2 A AR B R & A I 3 A ]
BAREE MEARBFRULIMEES
P R B E R AR -

REZRBIEFRE

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Bye-laws, or the laws of Bermuda, which
would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a
pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

BREEAHESHNENMAEEZMM  ES
WRARNNTEE2023F3A31HIEFE R
HEAREBH —ERBEANQARFR

=
=-°

E R RER

Based on the information that is publicly available and
within the knowledge of the Directors, the Directors
confirm that the Company has maintained a sufficient
public float throughout the year ended 31 March 2023
and up to the date of this report.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY

RIEARMAIEI66(K EFEHRE K
HEM#EAAN - BEBATASEEARL
A1 17 73 T B B Sk AT BEHR B E FF 0 P B 5
MR WE B BEMRAS K
ARREEMMBEREFBEMRE
FHEEXEBEE FAERPHRAERESS
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1B 1t B 1B NS HE R == B AR ] B3l A B AT RE
e ERSRERZ  WERL - MFFHK
THEBBONEIMER-

REBFERN  ARBRERERNMERTEE
B RER - ARIEF BEET Y HE E0EER

A e
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Under Bye-law 166(1) of the Company’s Bye-laws, the
Directors shall be indemnified and secured harmless out
of the assets and profits of the Company from and
against all actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and
expenses which they or any of them, their or any of
their heirs, executors or administrators, shall or may
incur or sustain by or by reason of any act done,
concurred in or omitted in or about the execution of
their duty, or supposed duty, in their respective offices
or trusts, provided that this indemnity shall not extend
to any matter in respect of any wilful negligence, wilful
default, fraud or dishonesty which may attach to any of
said persons.

During the year under review, the Company has taken

out and maintained appropriate insurance to cover
potential legal actions against its Directors.
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EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS
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The Company has share option scheme, the details of
which are set out in the section headed “Share Option
Scheme” in this annual report. Save as the aforesaid, no
equity-linked agreements were entered into by the
Group or existed during the year ended 31 March 2023.

AUDITOR

BEHEIEOR2022F4 8218 B EAR R A
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RSM had resigned as the auditor of the Company with
effect from 21 April 2022. PKF Hong Kong Limited
("PKF") was appointed as the auditor to fill the vacancy
and its appointment was approved by the shareholders
of the Company at the special general meeting held on
25 May 2022.

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for
the year ended 31 March 2023 have been audited by
PKF. A resolution will be submitted at the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company to re-appoint
PKF as the auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

CHENG HOP FAI
CHAIRMAN

Hong Kong
19 June 2023
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Independent Auditor’s Report

26/F, Citicorp Centre
18 Whitfield Road
Causeway Bay

Hong Kong
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TO THE MEMBERS OF
G-VISION INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION
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We have audited the consolidated financial statements
of G-Vision International (Holdings) Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out
on pages 67 to 147, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 March 2023, the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of
changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including a summary
of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements
give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial
position of the Group as at 31 March 2023, and of its
consolidated financial performance and its consolidated
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (the “HKICPA”) and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements
of Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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BASIS FOR OPINION

ATERBEEBGAMAGRHZERE
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We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Group in accordance
with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the
Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

FEREZEEERBEATZEEHE R
B ANPEAMERENERZRAEEY
EH ATERBERBBGAVBRER
TEAEERNEBHERE MASHESE
EEEBREER - A1TTREHREZ
EIEMAT :
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Key audit matters are those matters that, in our
professional judgement, were of most significance in our
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters. The key audit matters we identified are:

G-VISION INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED BN EREEERAR
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

HAREZER
Key Audit Matter

WA &R

Revenue recognition

FE2HREMBRENNISNEERS
ZE A B T 5E4(0) ©

Refer to note 8 to the consolidated
financial statements and note 4(o) of
significant accounting policies. -

Our

i /@%%%2 5 E ZKTTWU}I”&AEE -
R HEAREZEE -
We |dent|f|ed recognition of revenue from
restaurant operations as a key audit
matter due to the volume of transactions -
of restaurant operations. -

BUE2023F3A31B ILFE - KRB BEEE
W A\ #945,181,0008 7T (5f & 8 m R H -
RREBER) - ABSRARRSRE -
AREE -

For the year ended 31 March 2023, revenue =
from restaurant operations amounted to -
approximately HK$45,181,000 (consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income). Vast majority of
revenue was settled in cash or by credit

card.

G-VISION INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED BN EREEERAF

FITMAHEARERSERETER
How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

ATHBEEXHEBANEZREFEHE

procedures in relation to revenue from restaurant

operations included:

BRI A RIS mAZ M B AR 2 R SR 4 T A 1T OB
Al

Obtaining an understanding of the revenue business
processes and testing key controls over revenue
recognition;

U A FE ek - A AT AR
Performing tests of details, on a sample basis, on
recorded revenue;

AAFRBEANEE : K&

Testing revenue cut-off at year-end; and

ETOMMREFHREEANTISEHORARRN -
Performing analytical procedures to identify any
unusual patterns of revenue.

2022/23 Annual Report &3k
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

HAREZER (&)
Key Audit Matter (Continued)

V¥ BERIEANEHEEEZHE

FITMAHERERSETHETER (B)
How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
(Continued)

Impairment of property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets

EREEAEEEARAEZEHIIKES
HBATNARETRE  AEECERES
REBEBZME  BERRXBMERE
BEETRERNE - RBFRETR KT
EBEB 2 - BERREBMNERE
B ER W E & 7R E S B K HI T R kst
BREEEWANEEBEBZENX - 138
TR EHERR ©

The Group’s management performed
impairment assessment of property, plant
and equipment and right-of-use assets for
restaurant operations where impairment
indicators were identified by estimating
the recoverable amounts of the property,
plant and equipment and right-of-use
assets based on value in use calculations.
Significant judgements and estimates were
involved in the identification of
impairment indicators and in the
assessment of the recoverable amounts of
the property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets of those restaurant
operations, including assumptions on the
budgeted revenue and gross margin of
restaurant operations, discount rate and
growth rate.

2022/23 Annual Report 3R

RTEEYME  BMENRBAREREEEZRENIEF
BIE

Our procedures in relation to the impairment of
property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets
included:

- THERENMMEYME BEMREBEUARCHAEEE
EITRERT A

— Understanding how management performs
impairment assessment on property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets;

- FMEREHRSRIEA  HEBUMERNBERR
® o BEEEERA BEENX 2ZEEXE
MEBERHANEREZ B - ARFETREE
BRI

—  Evaluating the reasonableness of the operating cash
flows forecast and the key assumptions used,
including evaluating the reasonableness of the
budgeted revenue, budgeted gross margin,
expected growth rate with reference to the past
performance and management’'s expectation, and
evaluating the suitability of the discount rate used;

G-VISION INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED BN EREEERAR
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

AREZSER (&)
Key Audit Matter (Continued)

9T
How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

MAHERERSHETER (H)

(Continued)

W¥E BERIREHREHELEEZHE (&)

Impairment of property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets (Continued)

B E2023F3A31BILFE - 22 5I8Y —
X BMELRRBREREEERIABES

18 4,564,000 & TK& 7,511,000 AT ° -
During the year ended 31 March 2023,
impairment losses of HK$4,564,000 and
HK$7,511,000 in respect of property,

plant and equipment and right-of-use —
assets have been recognised respectively.

BEME  BELRZENEAEEE 2R
BERE EHIRGKETBEHREROME
5,18 % 19%/F °

The significant accounting judgements
and estimates and disclosure of balance of
property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets are included in notes 5,
18 and 19 respectively to the consolidated
financial statements.

G-VISION INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED BN EREEERAF

AERERERAEF 2 ERE  AF2ERRR
MBASELEBMARZAIRR

Evaluating the historical accuracy of the cash flow
forecast and actual performance for the year and
future prospect from the cash generating unit; and

ERBAERANGRES T HRENENEER
2 o

Evaluating the potential impact of the impairment
assessment based on sensitivity analysis of the

budgeted revenue.
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OTHER INFORMATION

ARRIEFAHEMBERAERT - Hit
BHBERENFHR2E2HER  ELBR
ERRAPBRR L BEIRE

ARG EMBBRERFH2BRLTRE
HMER TR FERBERETMT
X H RS ©

RATTERGEAMBEHREMS  ATZE
ERHEELMER EMEEEMLENE
BHGEAMBRRIEARNTEEZBRE
TEEXZCERGFEERNTE  SUFE
EERNBEREML - HATTEREHITZ T
tF BREMBERFEENERRL - K
TEREABEE - Bt ATALEEM
EHATARE -

EENEEENGRES M BRRAKE
ZEE

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
other information. The other information comprises all
of the information included in the annual report other
than the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements
does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated
financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether
the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge
obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have
performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required
to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE
CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ARREFARERRBBGAMOER
Mz EBMBRELENREE ARG
WERTE  WEAGREVHRE - AELR
EMBRREHEEMAFZE2HR 1%
EESRARVEZHMAERETE - IELR
EMBBRRZBETFHERRFHEHERT
EYZERERBEL

EREGAVBHRERE KRIFEFEAE
# BEEEBFRIELLE U2
FIEEMERATZERTR  BAES
ARBE BERERELEZEN X
EEERATREERSERLLERAR S
B WEERANFELERER 2 EDE -

il

IE]
AASY

NAN
/H

AR REEARENMBHRERE
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The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs
issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal
control as the directors determine is necessary to enable
the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group's ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or
have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for
overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.

G-VISION INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED BN EREEERAR
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REMBERGEMBBRR2EE

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

AITHBR  RHGEAMBEHRRERBRED
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o EEEANEENARMERR
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G-VISION INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED BN EREEERAF

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to
you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the
Bermuda Companies Act, and for no other purpose. We
do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability
to any other person for the contents of this report.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we
exercise professional judgement and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e |dentify and assess the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

e  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

2022/23 Annual Report &3k
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)
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A e R AR B A
2 o

HESRANFELCE ST ERDY
ta 8 MIE o AR R AT EEELA
BRBRE FERRERYE B&
BREKLEENELEANRBNE
HEBRAREFEERNEEN
MRATRBFEENTHEE M
QB EERHBENRETRFEER
FIREAMBRAMNEREBE
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Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the
directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’
use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a
material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we
are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the
date of our auditor’s report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and
content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the
consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence
regarding the financial information of the entities or
business activities within the Group to express an
opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

G-VISION INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED BN EREEERAR
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RBMERGREMBRER ZEE (B)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

ATHEECZEEN (AR EE)EFERTL
R B E MR L BEA R ERRZE
B BRATRERBRES L AE
ZOEREARMBETER -

AIMAEZZERRERIER  HHAKXTT
EETHEBB Y ENARERENR AW E
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tEEZZESBANEED  ATHEE
MLEHEAAHRREMBRROEBZR
RER YREAMBKBEREZSZE - K17
RiZBMmm &R ZEEE  RIFER
FERTAFLCRAREZSZTZR  RX1E
EENBERAT  ATTRRBEZSFEEA
TRAEERHNIRERBBERARME
% FERA MR MORTE MRS RE
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HARNB Y ZBERENEZRABEER
AIBIE (MEEERIEPO3499) ©

RERER(FR)EHAEBEAERLE
I E S

BB
202396 A19H

G-VISION INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED BN EREEERAF

We communicate with the Audit Committee, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to
communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit
Committee, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these
matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

The engagement director on the audit resulting in this

independent auditor’s report is Hui Lai King (Practising
Certificate Number: P03499).

PKF Hong Kong Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong
19 June 2023

2022/23 Annual Report &3k



FeBnkEMDEKG
Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

H = 2023 4 3 A 31 HILFJE For the year ended 31 March 2023

20234 20224
2023 2022
B 7 FET FET
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
WA Revenue 8 45,181 114,637
$5E A AN Cost of sales (13,700) (79,129)
ER Gross profit 31,481 35,508
H U A K B A I a Other income and other gains and
NE1R losses 9 3,354 2,033
8 TR AR Staff costs (22,458) (19,186)
MEENAES Short-term lease rentals (4,846) (6,230)
e Depreciation (3,616) (3,321)
ME - WE MR Impairment loss on property, plant
2 BE and equipment (4,564) (1,890)
EHAEEEZRE Impairment loss on right-of-use
assets (7,511) (3,110)
MZE - BE K& Write off of property, plant and
Z 5 equipment - (2,005)
Hih & ES B Other operating expenses (12,795) (14,169)
KREER Loss from operations (20,955) (12,370)
B 7% & A Finance costs 11 (631) (1,406)
BrBi AT E 1B Loss before tax (21,586) (13,776)
B8 7 & F Income tax expense 12 (44) (304)
2022/23 Annual Report 3 G-VISION INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED BR EEEEERA T
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

#H = 2023 & 3 A 31 HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2023

2023%F 20224
2023 2022
B 7 FERT FHET
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
FEEFER Loss for the year and loss
AATRRREMER attributable to owners of the
Company 13 (21,630) (14,080)
Ht 2 (&IE) W : Other comprehensive (loss)/
income:
TEEFTHEZE Items that will not be reclassified
BmHE - to profit or loss:
BRATESAHMEE  Fair value changes of equity
W (M2 FEFA investments at fair value through
HhezmEkzE]) 2 other comprehensive income
BREIAEAEATEES ("FVTOCI") (154) (125)
HEAEET 7 EE Items that may be reclassified
BEmEE - subsequently to profit or loss:
MEFINERELEZ Exchange differences arising on
PE i =58 translating foreign operations (28) 116
FERBAZEMEMEEE Other comprehensive loss for
the year, net of tax (182) 9)
EAFIBREREGEFE Total comprehensive loss for
*HEBEER the year attributable to
owners of the Company (21,812) (14,089)
BREEXR Loss per share (basic and
BEEE B diluted) (cents) 17 (1.11) (0.72)

D&  G-VISION INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED RHEMEEARAT 2022/23 Annual Report ¥
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

7 2023 4 3 A 31 H As at 31 March 2023

2023%F 20224
2023 2022
B 7 FHET FET
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
kREBEE Non-current assets
ME  BENEKE Property, plant and equipment 18 821 6,000
ERAEEE Right-of-use assets 19 _ 9,711
MERERS Property rental deposits 1,369 1,330
2,190 17,041
RBEE Current assets
TE Inventories 20 663 768
JEUBR X ~ FARTBR X Trade receivables, prepayments
&N and other receivables 21 1,669 1,319
MEHRELRS Property rental deposits 1,481 1,481
BAFEFTAHEM Equity instruments as at FVTOCI
ZHERZBELA 22 977 1,131
RITRIRE &5 Bank and cash balances 24,523 31,730
29,313 36,429
RBEE Current liabilities
JENBEZ MR EMENZ  Trade and other payables 23 8,074 5,830
JE BT TR Tax payables 44 -
HEEE Lease liabilities 24 2,843 2,443
10,961 8,273
REBEEFE Net current assets 18,352 28,156
HEERABER Total assets less current
liabilities 20,542 45,197
FREBEE Non-current liability
HEBE Lease liabilities 24 7,977 10,820
EEFE NET ASSETS 12,565 34,377
IR 2 R & Capital and reserves
&N Share capital 25 194,631 194,631
& Reserves 27 (182,066) (160,254)
FESBEE TOTAL EQUITY 12,565 34,377

R2023F6H19F EE =<tk BH Approved by the Board of Directors on 19 June 2023

FIEERERE - and are signed on its behalf by:
BEE =R
CHENG Hop Fai CHENG Pak Man, Anita

2022/23 Annual Report 3 G-VISION INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED BR EEEEERA T 69
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Consolldated Statement of Changes in Equity

#H = 2023 & 3 A 31 H For the year ended 31 March 2023

REEf BRE EX
R R EE RAGE fife i i ZREE ag
Investment Share
Share Share Capital revaluation options  Translation ~ Accumulated
capital premium reserve reserve reserve reserve losses Total
(Bt 270)0) -~ (Wt 270)) (i 2716)i)
(note 27(b)(i))  (note 27(b)(ii) (note 27(b)ii))
Thr TAL T TR ThT ThT AR ThT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
1202164818 At 1 April 2021 194,631 88,794 84,123 @) 2,906 (89) (321,857) 48,466
EEAENE/(BE)EE  Total comprehensive income/
(loss) for the year - - - - - 116 (14,080) (13,964)
BATEFAEM2EREZ Change in fair value of equity
RETAEATEEY instruments at FVTOC| - - - (125) = = - (125)
BRERR Lapse of share options - - - - (186) - 186 -
EEREERY Changes in equity for the year - - - (125) (186) 116 (13.894) (14,089)
#202263A318 At 31 March 2022 194,631 88,794 84,123 (167) 2,720 21 (335,751) 34,377
R202254A1R t 1 April 2022 194,631 88,794 84,123 (167) 2,720 21 (335,751) 34,377
EEREEREE Total comprehensive loss for the
year - - - - - (28) (21,630) (21,658)
RATE AL M2EYEZ Change in fair value of equity
REIAENTEES instruments at FVTOC| - - - (154) - - - (154)
ERERN Lapse of share options - - - - (186) - 186 -
EEREEEY Changes in equity for the year - = - (154) (186) (28) (21,444) 21812)
H2023%3A31A At 31 March 2023 194,631 88,794 84,123 (321) 2,534 (1) (357,195) 12,565

G-VISION INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED BN EREEERAF
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

H = 2023 4 3 A 31 HILFJE For the year ended 31 March 2023

2023%F 20224
2023 2022
THERT FHET
HK$'000 HK$'000
RETHMEEZRERE CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING
ACTIVITIES
B %5t Bl 5 18 Loss before tax (21,586) (13,776)
FEESSE Adjustments for:
ME . HERSEZITE Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment 1,416 927
TREEEZITE Depreciation of right-of-use assets 2,200 2,394
ME - MENLREZBE Impairment loss on property, plant and
equipment 4,564 1,890
TREEEZRE Impairment loss on right-of-use assets 7,511 3,110
Bf 7% & Finance costs 631 1,406
ME - HME LG Write off of property, plant and
equipment - 2,005
MaREEKA Interest and dividend income (472) (219)
LBEBLELEHA KL EIE Operating loss before working capital
changes (5,736) (2,263)
FERD Decrease in inventories 105 180
B AL B AR D Decrease in capitalised costs = 45,807
JEUWBR TN « AN IR K (Increase)/decrease in trade receivables,

At E U 3k (3% 00), R > prepayments and other receivables (313) 2,869
HEZRE D Decrease in property rental deposit - 1,215
FERBEZ N H M ENS Increase/(decrease) in trade and other

#hn, G d) payables 2,240 (5,960)

(AR /KraRgexBs e Cash (used in)/generated from operations (3,704) 41,848
ERMETEH Income tax paid = (304)
HEBGBRNA Interest on lease liabilities (597) (438)

(AR),/ KEREEE) 2 Net cash (used in)/generated from
P | operating activities (4,301) 41,106

2022/23 Annual Report 3R
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

#H = 2023 & 3 A 31 HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2023

20235 20224
2023 2022
FTER TET
HK$'000 HK$'000
REZHMELEZRERE CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING
ACTIVITIES
BEYE  FENMRE Purchases of property, plant and
equipment (801) (8,277)
REEHPRITHER Withdrawal of pledged bank deposits - 417
2 F B &R e Interest and dividend received 433 69
AREE LTS v RE R Net cash used in investing activities (368) (7,791)
MEZHFELEZRERE CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING
ACTIVITIES
HESTH2Zz2ERE&HH Principal elements of lease payment (2,443) (991)
REKEFRNAZER Loan raised from the ultimate parent = 23,000
MREEATIEEBER Loan repayment to the ultimate parent - (43,000)
SN ®E RN B E R E Loan interest paid to the ultimate parent - (1,060)
BREEES 2 IRE )F5E Net cash used in financing activities (2,443) (22,051)
iﬁﬁ:&iﬁﬁ%ﬁlﬁ B NET (DECREASE)/INCREASE IN CASH
mA) N K AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (7.112) 11,264
EXRGH s w & Effect of foreign exchange rate changes (95) (1,001)
RAB1BZEER CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT
Re%EER 1 APRIL 31,730 21,467
M3A31AZEER CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT
HEZEIER 31 MARCH 24,523 31,730
REeERBEEZEHEBDN ANALYSIS OF CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS
BARES &S Bank and cash balances 24,523 31,730

7 2 G-VISION INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED BN EREEERAF
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GENERAL INFORMATION

RRBEEEERAR ((AAF])
REREAMK L AEXREER A
7] o H 7t fft ¥ = &R H 4k AClarendon
House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM
11, Bermuda> EE* B L X2 AH
P& NLBE R ) 1E 51 BF hn & B & B985 IR
EEEFRLIEI08E - KRR ZKH
REBBMERSFBRAF ([BXR
Frl) £k £ o

ADRIR—RRELEBRAA - HH B
REZ EBXBHN GRS M BHHREM
29 e

RKRBEERR REBREAHES
# it X 32 ZKong Fai International
Limited B H&ZZER AT - HEIE R
E (x4 ]) REREKER/RART]
ZEREEYERRTT o

fm L EL2E

G-Vision International (Holdings) Limited (the
“Company”) was incorporated in Bermuda as an
exempted company with limited liability. The
address of its registered office is Clarendon House,
2 Church Street, Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda. The
address of its principal place of business is Unit 108,
1st Floor, East Ocean Centre, 98 Granville Road,
Tsimshatsui East, Kowloon, Hong Kong. The
Company’s shares are listed on the Main Board of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”).

The Company is an investment holding company.
The principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out
in note 29 to the consolidated financial statements.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company,
Kong Fai International Limited (“Kong Fai”), a
company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands
(the "BVI"), is the ultimate parent. Mr. Cheng Hop
Fai (“Mr. Cheng”) and his family members are the
ultimate controlling parties of the Company.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

RIEEMBHRRIIBER LGSR
e ([BAGFMAE]) R ZMAE
BEREBMBREERN (BB KR
SEANDRR - BFEMBEHRELLE
EEBMBRESEN (BB BRSE
L))  HEGHEN([FESFE
) kg - AEEMBRERETA
BEBMERXIMAERABRESF LHR
AT EMARA) 2 BRAREGRIRE
B RGP (56228 ) 2 WERE -
REBERANETZSABREELT -

BEGHMASERME THA LK
ERIBEEUBBREEN  RAKEZ
ERIEHEEREMEAHRRERR
MoMEMEHARERAZFRAANE
B AR REE R ERIFEIRE
A BEE HENEMEERE
FBHEH  YERAEEMERERP
R BR
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These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with all applicable Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (the “"HKICPA"”). HKFRSs
comprise Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRS"); Hong Kong Accounting Standards
("HKAS"); and Interpretations. These consolidated
financial statements also comply with the applicable
disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the
“Listing Rules”) and with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance (Cap. 622). Significant accounting
policies adopted by the Group are disclosed below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised
HKFRSs that are first effective or available for early
adoption for the current accounting period of the
Group. Note 3 provides information on any changes
in accounting policies resulting from initial
application of these developments to the extent
that they are relevant to the Group for the current
and prior accounting periods reflected in these
consolidated financial statements.

G-VISION INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED BN EREEERAR
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#H = 2023 & 3 A 31 HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2023

3. EREEIEEVHKREEL

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO HKFRSs

(a) RAFERFERZEBITER

G-VISION INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED BN EREEERAF

B 75 3% 45 22 8

RAFE  AEBRESEUHK
WEABEHEXERATIHEES
sHAT A€ M I R2022F4 A 1H
8 2 1% A 2 F I BRI 0k B A K
2SI BB RS %R

BB SRR BEMEEAN-E
FEI7H 2B TEHZEA
HE

ER DT ER  YWE - BEER
F165R21& % - 1EBE A
I BRAIFTE R

|

BEME®RE BDEMBERESE
AR Z1EET BI2018FE &
ZiN 2020 2B

W

BBV BHE HHSERZR
% A 2 357 att
ZAERT AR

AEERAREITREVBRE
ZAHAEERAFREMBESF
B2 BHRRARKER R, HE K
HAVBHmARME 2 RELER
REAFE -

(@) Amendments to HKFRSs that are

mandatorily effective for the current year

In the current year, the Group has applied the
following amendments to HKFRSs issued by the
HKICPA for the first time, which are
mandatorily effective for the annual periods
beginning on or after 1 April 2022 for the
preparation of the consolidated financial
statements:

Onerous Contracts - Cost
of Fulfilling a Contract

Amendments to
HKAS 37

Amendments to
HKAS 16

Property, Plant and
Equipment - Proceeds
before Intended Use

Amendments to
HKFRSs

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2018-2020

Reference to the
Conceptual Framework

Amendments to
HKFRS 3

The application of the amendments to HKFRSs
in the current year has had no material impact
on the Group’s financial positions and
performance for the current and prior years
and/or on the disclosures set out in these
consolidated financial statements.
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3. BREETEBYBREER (F)

H = 2023 4 3 A 31 HILFJE For the year ended 31 March 2023

3. APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO HKFRSs
(Continued)

(b) B BB [ R £ Rz # 5T RAZ S
AERUMBREER
AREBWEEFER T 5B H M
BRARERZHFTREERTEE
MsmEER

BB EUNB 1R RB BN BERE
R BB E 2R 2 IEE] AN

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKFRS
Practice Statement 2

BB GRTERESH ZIEFT A

Amendments to HKAS 8

ERGFTERFE125 BRI A

Amendments to HKAS 12

BB HmE LR FE165% BT A

Amendments to HKFRS 16

BB G ERI 1R 28 5] A B 75 =R
K225

Amendments to HKAS 1 Presentation
of Financial Statements

EB ST ERFE 1R ZEFT AN 7 H
K227

Amendments to HKAS 1 Presentation
of Financial Statements

BEAREST (KB W mKk 2
27l

HK Interpretation 5 (Revised)
Presentation of Financial
Statements

BB BRELERFE105% &
BB G ERE285 ZEF] A

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28

: M2023%F1 A1 H 3k 2 1% [ 15 89
FEHRR A

2 A2024F1AVB R 2B HBNE
JEE R

P REEBEHAER

EEHEY - ERNALMAH R
RIZFTBEWH RS ERR AR
AR EHREMBERREK
BERFE-
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(b) New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue
but not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following
new and amendments to HKFRSs that have
been issued but are not yet effective:

BRI BERHKE
Disclosure of Accounting Policies'

BEHEFTNER

Definition of Accounting Estimates’

BE-RGTELANEENBERBNRERE

Deferred tax related to Assets and Liabilities
arising from a Single Transaction'

ExHEDrEE T F

Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback?

KEEIBRRBHIERE?

Classification of Liabilities as Current or
Non-current?

B 5 2 40 19 IE 7 B & &2
Non-current Liabilities with Covenants?
BRAHSEREREERINERERZ

Classification by the Borrower of a Term Loan
that Contains a Repayment on Demand

Clause?
REEHEAEBE AR RAELECHNEED
B EA3

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an
Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture?

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2023

Z Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2024

3 Effective date is to be determined

The directors of the Company anticipate that
the application of all above new and
amendments to HKFRSs will have no material
impact on the consolidated financial statements
in the foreseeable future.

G-VISION INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED BN EREEERAR
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#H = 2023 & 3 A 31 HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2023

4. TESED 4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

RIF W HBRRELE LK AIE DR
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M sESH 5 -

MENGEMBEREARAZEE
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Ro-MBRAREREASEYTELH
BN ER - EAKEBAR
SHEEREBEMEZEXERES
AIEBEIR WEBEHEER
¥ Bk b R - BN
ZER -BAEBHMBIRITES
MEEBRENIRITEZER 2
BB (BEEREOREKEAT
ZMEY) K ASBEAHER
HmEES -

EHEEER  AREEEE
HEBEERERAREMESTRA
MEBERRE - ERFEARE
RITEBRERZRENBRT 7
CEBHER -

B AREEFIEEEEAKH
Z A& A AR I G R
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G-VISION INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED BN EREEERAF

These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared under the historical cost convention,
unless mentioned otherwise in the accounting
policies below (e.g. certain financial instruments
that are measured at fair value).

The preparation of consolidated financial statements
in conformity with HKFRSs requires the use of
certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires
management to exercise its judgement in the
process of applying the Group's accounting policies.
The areas involving a higher degree of judgement
or complexity, or areas where assumptions and
estimates are significant to the consolidated
financial statements are disclosed in note 5.

The significant accounting policies applied in the
preparation of these consolidated financial
statements are set out below.

(a) Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include
the financial statements of the Company and
its subsidiaries made up to 31 March.
Subsidiaries are entities over which the Group
has control. The Group controls an entity when
it is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns
from its involvement with the entity and has
the ability to affect those returns through its
power over the entity. The Group has power
over an entity when the Group has existing
rights that give it the current ability to direct
the relevant activities, i.e. activities that
significantly affect the entity’s returns.

When assessing control, the Group considers its
potential voting rights as well as potential
voting rights held by other parties. A potential
voting right is considered only if the holder has
the practical ability to exercise that right.

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on
which control is transferred to the Group. They
are de-consolidated from the date the control
ceases.

2022/23 Annual Report &3k
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4., FEESFER (E) 4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(a) #EKRE (8)

(a) Consolidation (Continued)

B E M B QRS 2 WS
BREB IR 22 Z 1)
HERB 2R FEER L EZH
BRRIMRENEMFIRE 2 RF
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E 8 T BB R AR REHIMNEE
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BENARANMME R BES -
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The gain or loss on the disposal of a subsidiary
that results in a loss of control represents the
difference between (i) the fair value of the
consideration of the sale plus the fair value of
any investment retained in that subsidiary and
(ii) the Company’s share of the net assets of
that subsidiary plus any remaining goodwill and
any related accumulated foreign currency
translation reserve relating to that subsidiary.

Intragroup transactions, balances and
unrealised profits are eliminated. Unrealised
losses are also eliminated unless the transaction
provides evidence of an impairment of the
asset transferred. Accounting policies of
subsidiaries have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the
policies adopted by the Group.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity
in subsidiaries not attributable, directly or
indirectly, to the Company. Non-controlling
interests are presented in the consolidated
statement of financial position and
consolidated statement of changes in equity
within equity. Non-controlling interests are
presented in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income
as an allocation of profit or loss and total
comprehensive income for the year between
the non-controlling shareholders and owners of
the Company.

Profit or loss and each component of other
comprehensive income are attributed to the
owners of the Company and to the
non-controlling shareholders even if this results
in the non-controlling interests having a deficit
balance.

G-VISION INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED BN EREEERAR
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#H = 2023 & 3 A 31 HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2023

4. XEEIED (H) 4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(a) #EKRE (8)
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(a)

(b)

Consolidation (Continued)

Changes in the Company’s ownership interest
in a subsidiary that do not result in a loss of
control are accounted for as equity transactions
(i.e. transactions with owners in their capacity
as owners). The carrying amounts of the
controlling and non-controlling interests are
adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative
interests in the subsidiary. Any difference
between the amount by which the
non-controlling interests are adjusted and the
fair value of the consideration paid or received
is recognised directly in equity and attributed
to the owners of the Company.

In the Company’s statement of financial
position, investments in subsidiaries are stated
at cost less impairment loss, unless the
investment is classified as held for sale (or
included in a disposal group that is classified as
held for sale).

Foreign currency translation
(i) Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements
of each of the Group’s entities are
measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which
the entity operates (the “functional
currency”). The consolidated financial
statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars, which is the Company’s functional
and presentation currency.
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H = 2023 4 3 A 31 HILFJE For the year ended 31 March 2023

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(b) sh¥s]E ()
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(b) Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Transactions and balances in each
entity’s financial statements

Transactions in foreign currencies are
translated into the functional currency on
initial recognition using the exchange rates
prevailing on the transaction dates.
Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign
currencies are translated at the exchange
rates at the end of each reporting period.
Gains and losses resulting from this
translation policy are recognised in profit
or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured at
fair values in foreign currencies are
translated using the exchange rates at the
dates when the fair values are determined.

When a gain or loss on a non-monetary
item is recognised in other comprehensive
income, any exchange component of that
gain or loss is recognised in other
comprehensive income. When a gain or
loss on a non-monetary item is recognised
in profit or loss, any exchange component
of that gain or loss is recognised in profit
or loss.

Translation on consolidation

The results and financial position of all the
Group entities that have a functional
currency different from the Company’s
presentation currency are translated into
the Company’s presentation currency as
follows:

— Assets and liabilities for each
statement of financial position
presented are translated at the closing
rate at the date of that statement of
financial position;

G-VISION INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED BN EREEERAR
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#H = 2023 & 3 A 31 HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2023

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(b) sh¥s]E ()

(c)
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(b) Foreign currency translation (Continued)
(iii) Translation on consolidation (Continued)

— Income and expenses are translated at
average exchange rates for the period
(unless this average is not a reasonable
approximation of the cumulative effect
of the rates prevailing on the transaction
dates, in which case income and
expenses are translated at the exchange
rates on the transaction dates); and

— All resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in the
foreign currency translation reserve.

On consolidation, exchange differences
arising from the translation of monetary
items that form part of the net investment
in foreign entities are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in
the foreign currency translation reserve.
When a foreign operation is sold, such
exchange differences are reclassified in the
consolidated profit or loss as part of the
gain or loss on disposal.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising
on the acquisition of a foreign entity are
treated as assets and liabilities of the
foreign entity and translated at the closing
rate.

(c) Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment held for use in
the production or supply of goods or services,
or for administrative purposes, are stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at
cost, less subsequent accumulated depreciation
and subsequent accumulated impairment
losses, if any.

G-VISION INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED BREREBEAR AT 2022/23 Annual Report ¥



ire SRR R

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4. EESEEL (8)

H = 2023 4 3 A 31 HILFJE For the year ended 31 March 2023

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
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(c)

(d)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate
asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable
that future economic benefits associated with
the item will flow to the Group and the cost of
the item can be measured reliably. All other
repairs and maintenance are recognised in
profit or loss during the period in which they
are incurred.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
is calculated at rates sufficient to write off their
cost less their residual values over the
estimated useful lives on a straight-line basis.
The principal annual rates are as follows:

Over the lease term
or 2 - 5 years
Over the lease term

Furniture and restaurant
equipment
Leasehold improvement

The residual values, useful lives and
depreciation method are reviewed and
adjusted, if appropriate, at the end of each
reporting period.

The gain or loss on disposal of property, plant
and equipment is the difference between the
net sales proceeds and the carrying amount of
the relevant asset, and is recognised in profit or
loss.

Leases

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses
whether the contract is, or contains, a lease. A
contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an
identified asset for a period of time in
exchange for consideration. Control is
conveyed where the customer has both the
right to direct the use of the identified asset
and to obtain substantially all of the economic
benefits from that use.

G-VISION INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED BN EREEERAR

31



82

NN R RS e

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

#H = 2023 & 3 A 31 HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2023

4. XEEIED (H) 4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
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(d) Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessee

Where the contract contains lease component(s)
and non-lease component(s), the Group has
elected not to separate non-lease components
and accounts for each lease component and any
associated non-lease components as a single lease
component for all leases.

At the lease commencement date, the Group
recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease
liability, except for short-term leases that have
a lease term of 12 months or less and leases of
low-value assets which, for the Group are
primarily restaurant, office, director’s quarter
and storage room. When the Group enters into
a lease in respect of a low-value asset, the
Group decides whether to capitalise the lease
on a lease-by-lease basis. The lease payments
associated with those leases which are not
capitalised are recognised as an expense on a
systematic basis over the lease term.

Where the lease is capitalised, the lease liability
is initially recognised at the present value of
the lease payments payable over the lease
term, discounted using the interest rate implicit
in the lease or, if that rate cannot be readily
determined, using a relevant incremental
borrowing rate. After initial recognition, the
lease liability is measured at amortised cost and
interest expense is calculated using the
effective interest method. Variable lease
payments that do not depend on an index or
rate are not included in the measurement of
the lease liability and hence are charged to
profit or loss in the accounting period in which
they are incurred.
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The Group as a lessee (Continued)

The right-of-use asset recognised when a lease
is capitalised is initially measured at cost, which
comprises the initial amount of the lease
liability plus any lease payments made at or
before the commencement date, and any initial
direct costs incurred. Where applicable, the
cost of the right-of-use assets also includes an
estimate of costs to dismantle and remove the
underlying asset or to restore the underlying
asset or the site on which it is located,
discounted to their present value, less any lease
incentives received. The right-of-use asset is
subsequently stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses.

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is
reasonably certain to obtain ownership of the
underlying leased assets at the end of the lease
term are depreciated from commencement date
to the end of the useful life. Otherwise,
right-of-use assets are depreciated on a
straight-line basis over the shorter of its
estimated useful life and the lease term.

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted
under HKFRS 9 and initially measured at fair
value. Adjustments to fair value at initial
recognition are considered as additional lease
payments and included in the cost of
right-of-use assets.
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(d) Leases (Continued)

(e)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)

The lease liability is remeasured when there is a
change in future lease payments arising from a
change in an index or rate, or there is a change
in the Group’s estimate of the amount
expected to be payable under a residual value
guarantee, or there is a change arising from
the reassessment of whether the Group will be
reasonably certain to exercise a purchase,
extension or termination option. When the
lease liability is remeasured in this way, a
corresponding adjustment is made to the
carrying amount of the right-of-use asset, or is
recorded in profit or loss if the carrying amount
of the right-of-use asset has been reduced to
zero.

The lease liability is also remeasured when
there is a change in the scope of a lease or the
consideration for a lease that is not originally
provided for in the lease contract (“lease
modification”) that is not accounted for as a
separate lease. In this case the lease liability is
remeasured based on the revised lease
payments and lease term using a revised
discount rate at the effective date of the
modification.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and
net realisable value. Cost is determined using
the first-in, first-out basis. Net realisable value
is the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business, less the estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary
to make the sale.
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Other contract costs are either the incremental
costs of obtaining a contract with a customer
or the costs to fulfil a contract with a customer
which are not capitalised as inventory,
property, plant and equipment or intangible
assets.

Incremental costs of obtaining a contract are
those costs that the Group incurs to obtain a
contract with a customer that it would not
have incurred if the contract had not been
obtained. Incremental costs of obtaining a
contract are capitalised when incurred if the
costs are expected to be recovered, unless the
expected amortisation period is one year or less
from the date of initial recognition of the asset,
in which case the costs are expensed when
incurred. Other costs of obtaining a contract
are expensed when incurred.

Costs to fulfil a contract are capitalised if the
costs relate directly to an existing contract or to
a specifically identifiable anticipated contract;
generate or enhance resources that will be
used to provide goods or services in the future;
and are expected to be recovered. Costs that
relate directly to an existing contract or to a
specifically identifiable anticipated contract may
include direct labour, direct materials,
allocations of costs, costs that are explicitly
chargeable to the customer and other costs
that are incurred only because the group
entered into the contract. Other costs of
fulfilling a contract, which are not capitalised
as inventory, property, plant and equipment or
intangible assets, are expensed as incurred.
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(f)

(9)

Other contract costs (Continued)

Capitalised contract costs are stated at cost less
accumulated amortisation and impairment
losses. Impairment losses are recognised to the
extent that the carrying amount of the contract
cost asset exceeds the net of (i) remaining
amount of consideration that the group expects
to receive in exchange for the goods or services
to which the asset relates, less (ii) any costs
that relate directly to providing those goods or
services that have not yet been recognised as
expenses.

Amortisation of capitalised contract costs is
charged to profit or loss when the revenue to
which the asset relates is recognised.

Recognition and derecognition of financial
instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are
recognised in the consolidated statement of
financial position when the Group entity
becomes a party to the contractual provisions
of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are
initially measured at fair value. Transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and
financial liabilities (other than financial assets
and financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss (“FVTPL")) are added to or
deducted from the fair value of the financial
assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on
initial recognition. Transaction costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of financial
assets or financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss are recognised
immediately in profit or loss.
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(9)

(h)

Recognition and derecognition of financial
instruments (Continued)

The Group derecognises a financial asset only
when the contractual rights to the cash flows
from the asset expire, or when it transfers the
financial asset and substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of the asset to another
entity. If the Group neither transfers nor retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership and continues to control the
transferred asset, the Group recognises its
retained interest in the asset and an associated
liability for amounts it may have to pay. If the
Group retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of a transferred financial
asset, the Group continues to recognise the
financial asset and also recognises a
collateralised borrowing for the proceeds
received.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities
when, and only when, the Group’s obligations
are discharged, cancelled or have expired. The
difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognised and the
consideration paid and payable, including any
non-cash assets transferred or liabilities
assumed, is recognised in profit or loss.

Financial assets

All regular way purchases or sales of financial
assets are recognised and derecognised on a
trade date basis. Regular way purchases or
sales are purchases or sales of financial assets
that require delivery of assets within the time
frame established by regulation or convention
in the marketplace. All recognised financial
assets are measured subsequently in their
entirety at either amortised cost or fair value,
depending on the classification of the financial
assets.
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amortised cost, if the investment is held
for the collection of contractual cash flows
which represent solely payments of
principal and interest. Interest income from
the investment is calculated using the
effective interest method.

FVTOCI - recycling, if the contractual cash
flows of the investment comprise solely
payments of principal and interest and the
investment is held within a business model
whose objective is achieved by both the
collection of contractual cash flows and sale.
Changes in fair value are recognised in other
comprehensive income, except for the
recognition in profit or loss of expected credit
losses, interest income (calculated using the
effective interest method) and foreign
exchange gains and losses. When the
investment is derecognised, the amount
accumulated in other comprehensive income
is recycled from equity to profit or loss.
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(h) Financial assets (Continued)

Equity investments

An investment in equity securities is classified
as FVTPL unless the equity investment is not
held for trading purposes and on initial
recognition of the investment the Group makes
an election to designate the investment at
FVTOCI (non-recycling) such that subsequent
changes in fair value are recognised in other
comprehensive income. Such elections are
made on an instrument-by-instrument basis,
but may only be made if the investment meets
the definition of equity from the issuer’s
perspective. Where such an election is made, the
amount accumulated in other comprehensive
income remains in the fair value reserve
(non-recycling) until the investment is disposed
of. At the time of disposal, the amount
accumulated in the fair value reserve
(non-recycling) is transferred to retained
earnings. It is not recycled through profit or
loss. Dividends from an investment in equity
securities, irrespective of whether classified as
at FVTPL or FVTOCI, are recognised in profit or
loss as other income.

Trade receivables, prepayments and other
receivables

A receivable is recognised when the group has
an unconditional right to receive consideration.
A right to receive consideration is unconditional
if only the passage of time is required before
payment of that consideration is due. If revenue
has been recognised before the group has an
unconditional right to receive consideration, the
amount is presented as a contract asset.

Receivables are stated at amortised cost using
the effective interest method less allowance for
credit losses.
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()

(k)

U

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at
bank and on hand, demand deposits with
banks and other financial institutions, and
short-term, highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible into known amounts of cash
and which are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value, having been within three
months of maturity at acquisition. Bank
overdrafts that are repayable on demand and
form an integral part of the group’s cash
management are also included as a component
of cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of
the consolidated statement of cash flows. Cash
and cash equivalents are assessed for expected
credit losses (“ECL").

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments are
classified according to the substance of the
contractual arrangements entered into and the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity
instrument under HKFRSs. An equity instrument
is any contract that evidences a residual interest
in the assets of the Group after deducting all
of its liabilities. The accounting policies adopted
for specific financial liabilities and equity
instruments are set out below.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value,
net of transaction costs incurred, and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities
unless the Group has an unconditional right to
defer settlement of the liability for at least 12
months after the reporting period.
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(m) Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are recognised
initially at their fair value and subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method unless the effect of
discounting would be immaterial, in which case
they are stated at cost.

(n) Equity instruments
An equity instrument is any contract that
evidence a residual interest in the assets of an
entity after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity
instruments issued by the Company are
recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct
issue costs.

(o) Revenue and other income
Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue is recognised when control over a
product or service is transferred to the
customer, at the amount of promised
consideration to which the Group is expected
to be entitled, excluding those amounts
collected on behalf of third parties. Revenue
excludes value added tax or other sales taxes
and is after deduction of any trade discounts.

Restaurant operations

The performance obligation is the promise to
provide food and beverages. Revenue from
operation of Chinese restaurants is recognised
at a point in time when the food and beverages
are served to the customers. A receivable is
recognised by the Group when the services are
rendered to the customers at which the right to
consideration becomes unconditional, as only
the passage of time is required before payment
is due. Payment of the transaction price is due
immediately at the point the services are
rendered to the customers. For payments
settled by credit cards by customers, the
settlement period is normally within 2 days
from the trade date. As the provision of these
services are at a period of one year or less, as
permitted under HKFRS 15, the transaction
price allocation to the unsatisfied contracts is
not disclosed.
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(o)

(p)

Revenue and other income (Continued)
Property development
Revenue is recognised at the point in time

when control over the property has been
transferred to the customer.

Dividend income

Dividend income is recognised when the
shareholders’ rights to receive payment are
established.

Other income

Interest income is recognised as it accrues using
the effective interest method. For financial
assets measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI
(recycling) that are not credit-impaired, the
effective interest rate is applied to the gross
carrying amount of the asset. For credit
impaired financial assets, the effective interest
rate is applied to the amortised cost (i.e. gross
carrying amount net of loss allowance) of the
asset.

Employee benefits
(i) Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave and
long service leave are recognised when
they accrue to employees. A provision is
made for the estimated liability for annual
leave and long service leave as a result of
services rendered by employees up to the
end of the reporting period.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and

maternity leave are not recognised until
the time of leave.
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(p)

(a)

Employee benefits (Continued)
(ii) Pension obligations

The Group contributes to defined
contribution retirement schemes which are
available to all employees. Contributions to
the schemes by the Group and employees
are calculated as a percentage of
employees’ basic salaries. The retirement
benefit scheme cost charged to the profit
or loss represents contributions payable by
the Group to the funds.

(iii) Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the
earlier of the dates when the Group can
no longer withdraw the offer of those
benefits, and when the Group recognises
restructuring costs and involves the
payment of termination benefits.

Share-based payments

The Group issues equity-settled share-based
payments to certain directors and employees.

Equity-settled share-based payments to
directors and employees are measured at the
fair value (excluding the effect of non-market
based vesting conditions) of the equity
instruments at the date of grant. The fair value
determined at the grant date of the
equity-settled share-based payments is
expensed on a straight-line basis over the
vesting period, based on the Group’s estimate
of shares that will eventually vest and adjusted
for the effect of non-market based vesting
conditions.

Equity-settled share-based payments to
consultants are measured at the fair value of
the services rendered or, if the fair value of the
services rendered cannot be reliably measured,
at the fair value of the equity instruments
granted. The fair value is measured at the date
the Group receives the services and is
recognised as an expense.
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(s)

(t)

All borrowing costs are recognised in profit or
loss in the period in which they are incurred.

Government grants

A government grant is recognised when there
is reasonable assurance that the Group will
comply with the conditions attaching to it and
that the grant will be received.

Government grants relating to income are
deferred and recognised in profit or loss over
the period to match them with the costs they
are intended to compensate.

Government grants that become receivable as
compensation for expenses or losses already
incurred or for the purpose of giving immediate
financial support to the Group with no future
related costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they become receivable.

Taxation

Income tax represents the sum of the current
tax and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable
profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from
profit recognised in profit or loss because it
excludes items of income or expense that are
taxable or deductible in other years and items
that are never taxable or deductible. The
Group’s liability for current tax is calculated
using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.
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(t) Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax is recognised on differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities in the consolidated financial
statements and the corresponding tax bases
used in the computation of taxable profit.
Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised
for all taxable temporary differences and
deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent
that it is probable that taxable profits will be
available against which deductible temporary
differences, unused tax losses or unused tax
credits can be utilised. Such assets and
liabilities are not recognised if the temporary
difference arises from goodwill or from the
initial recognition (other than in a business
combination) of other assets and liabilities in a
transaction that affects neither the taxable
profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for
taxable temporary differences arising on
investments in subsidiaries except where the
Group is able to control the reversal of the
temporary difference and it is probable that the
temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is
reviewed at the end of each reporting period
and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be
recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that
are expected to apply in the period when the
liability is settled or the asset is realised, based
on tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period. Deferred tax is recognised in
profit or loss, except when it relates to items
recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, in which case the deferred
tax is also recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity.
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(t) Taxation (Continued)

The measurement of deferred tax assets and
liabilities reflects the tax consequences that
would follow from the manner in which the
Group expects, at the end of the reporting
period, to recover or settle the carrying amount
of its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for
leasing transactions in which the Group
recognises the right-of-use assets and the
related lease liabilities, the Group first
determines whether the tax deductions are
attributable to the right-of-use assets or the
lease liabilities.

For leasing transactions in which the tax
deductions are attributable to the lease
liabilities, the Group applies HKAS 12
requirements to right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities separately. Temporary differences
relating to right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities are not recognised at initial
recognition and over the lease terms due to
application of the initial recognition exemption.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset
when there is a legally enforceable right to set
off current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and when they relate to income taxes
levied by the same taxation authority and the
Group intends to settle its current tax assets
and liabilities on a net basis.
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(u) Impairment of non-financial assets

(v)

The carrying amounts of non-financial assets
are reviewed at each reporting date for
indications of impairment and where an asset is
impaired, it is written down as an expense
through the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income to its
estimated recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount is determined for an individual asset,
unless the asset does not generate cash inflows
that are largely independent of those from
other assets or groups of assets. If this is the
case, recoverable amount is determined for the
cash-generating unit (“CGU") to which the
asset belongs. Recoverable amount is the
higher of value in use and the fair value less
costs of disposal of the individual asset or the
CGU.

Value in use is the present value of the
estimated future cash flows of the asset/CGU.
Present values are computed using pre-tax
discount rates that reflect the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset/CGU
whose impairment is being measured.

Impairment losses for CGUs are allocated first
against the goodwill of the unit and then pro
rata amongst the other assets of the CGU.
Subsequent increases in the recoverable
amount caused by changes in estimates are
credited to profit or loss to the extent that they
reverse the impairment.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises a loss allowance for
expected credit losses on trade receivables. The
amount of expected credit losses is updated at
each reporting date to reflect changes in credit
risk since initial recognition of the respective
financial instrument.
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(v) Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for
trade receivables. The expected credit losses on
these financial assets are estimated using a
provision matrix based on the Group’s historical
credit loss experience, adjusted for factors that
are specific to the debtors, general economic
conditions and an assessment of both the
current as well as the forecast direction of
conditions at the reporting date, including time
value of money where appropriate.

For all other financial instruments, the Group
recognises lifetime ECL when there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition. However, if the credit risk on the
financial instrument has not increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group
measures the loss allowance for that financial
instrument at an amount equal to 12-month
ECL.

Lifetime ECL represents the expected credit
losses that will result from all possible default
events over the expected life of a financial
instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL
represents the portion of lifetime ECL that is
expected to result from default events on a
financial instrument that are possible within 12
months after the reporting date.
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(v) Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk on a
financial instrument has increased significantly
since initial recognition, the Group compares
the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument at the reporting date with the risk
of a default occurring on the financial
instrument at the date of initial recognition. In
making this assessment, the Group considers
both quantitative and qualitative information
that is reasonable and supportable, including
historical experience and forward-looking
information that is available without undue
cost or effort. Forward-looking information
considered includes the future prospects of the
industries in which the Group’'s debtors
operate, obtained from economic expert
reports, financial analysts, governmental
bodies, relevant think-tanks and other similar
organisations, as well as consideration of
various external sources of actual and forecast
economic information that relate to the
Group’s core operations.

In particular, the following information is taken
into account when assessing whether credit risk
has increased significantly since initial
recognition:

— an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the financial instrument’s
external (if available) or internal credit
rating;

— significant deterioration in external market
indicators of credit risk for a particular
financial instrument;

— existing or forecast adverse changes in
business, financial or economic conditions
that are expected to cause a significant
decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its
debt obligations;
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(v) Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

an actual or expected significant deterioration
in the operating results of the debtor;

— significant increases in credit risk on other
financial instruments of the same debtor;

— an actual or expected significant adverse
change in the regulatory, economic, or
technological environment of the debtor that
results in a significant decrease in the
debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above
assessment, the Group presumes that the credit
risk on a financial asset has increased
significantly since initial recognition when
contractual payments are more than 30 days
past due, unless the Group has reasonable and
supportable information that demonstrates
otherwise.

Despite the foregoing, the Group assumes that
the credit risk on a financial instrument has not
increased significantly since initial recognition if
the financial instrument is determined to have
low credit risk at the reporting date. A financial
instrument is determined to have low credit risk
if:

(i) the financial instrument has a low risk of
default,

(i) the debtor has a strong capacity to meet
its contractual cash flow obligations in the
near term, and

(iii) adverse changes in economic and business
conditions in the longer term may, but will
not necessarily, reduce the ability of the
borrower to fulfil its contractual cash flow
obligations.
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Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

The Group considers a financial asset to have
low credit risk when the asset has external
credit rating of “investment grade” in
accordance with the globally understood
definition or if an external rating is not
available, the asset has an internal rating of
“performing”. Performing means that the
counterparty has a strong financial position and
there is no past due amounts.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness
of the criteria used to identify whether there
has been a significant increase in credit risk and
revises them as appropriate to ensure that the
criteria are capable of identifying significant
increase in credit risk before the amount
becomes past due.

Definition of default

The Group considers the following as
constituting an event of default for internal
credit risk management purposes as historical
experience indicates that receivables that meet
either of the following criteria are generally not
recoverable.

— when there is a breach of financial
covenants by the counterparty; or

— information developed internally or
obtained from external sources indicates
that the debtor is unlikely to pay its
creditors, including the Group, in full
(without taking into account any collaterals
held by the Group).

Irrespective of the above analysis, the Group
considers that default has occurred when a
financial asset is more than 90 days past due
unless the Group has reasonable and
supportable information to demonstrate that a
more lagging default criterion is more
appropriate.
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Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or
more events that have a detrimental impact on
the estimated future cash flows of that
financial asset have occurred. Evidence that a
financial asset is credit-impaired includes
observable data about the following events:

— significant financial difficulty of the issuer
or the counterparty;

— a breach of contract, such as a default or
past due event;

— the lender(s) of the counterparty, for
economic or contractual reasons relating
to the counterparty’s financial difficulty,
having granted to the counterparty a
concession(s) that the lender(s) would not
otherwise consider;

— it is becoming probable that the
counterparty will enter bankruptcy or other
financial reorganisation; or

— the disappearance of an active market for
that financial asset because of financial
difficulties.

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when
there is information indicating that the debtor
is in severe financial difficulty and there is no
realistic prospect of recovery, including when
the debtor has been placed under liquidation
or has entered into bankruptcy proceedings, or
in the case of trade receivables, when the
amounts are over two years past due,
whichever occurs sooner. Financial assets
written off may still be subject to enforcement
activities under the Group’'s recovery
procedures, taking into account legal advice
where appropriate. Any recoveries made are
recognised in profit or loss.
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Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of expected credit losses is a
function of the probability of default, loss given
default (i.e. the magnitude of the loss if there
is a default) and the exposure at default. The
assessment of the probability of default and
loss given default is based on historical data
adjusted by forward-looking information as
described above. As for the exposure at
default, for financial assets, this is represented
by the assets’ gross carrying amount at the
reporting date.

For financial assets, the expected credit loss is
estimated as the difference between all
contractual cash flows that are due to the
Group in accordance with the contract and all
the cash flows that the Group expects to
receive, discounted at the original effective
interest rate. For a lease receivable, the cash
flows used for determining the expected credit
losses is consistent with the cash flows used in
measuring the lease receivable in accordance
with HKFRS 16.

If the Group has measured the loss allowance
for a financial instrument at an amount equal
to lifetime ECL in the previous reporting period,
but determines at the current reporting date
that the conditions for lifetime ECL are no
longer met, the Group measures the loss
allowance at an amount equal to 12-month
ECL at the current reporting date, except for
assets for which simplified approach was used.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or
loss in profit or loss for all financial instruments
with a corresponding adjustment to their
carrying amount through a loss allowance
account.
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(w) Provisions and contingent liabilities

(x)

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of
uncertain timing or amount when the Group
has a present legal or constructive obligation
arising as a result of a past event, it is probable
that an outflow of economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made. Where the time value of
money is material, provisions are stated at the
present value of the expenditures expected to
settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required, or the amount
cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation is
disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow is remote. Possible
obligations, whose existence will only be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of
one or more future events are also disclosed as
contingent liabilities unless the probability of
outflow is remote.

Events after the reporting period

Events after the reporting period that provide
additional information about the Group’s
position at the end of the reporting period or
those that indicate the going concern
assumption is not appropriate are adjusting
events and are reflected in the consolidated
financial statements. Events after the reporting
period that are not adjusting events are
disclosed in the notes to the consolidated
financial statements when material.
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In the application of the Group’s accounting
policies, which are described in note 4, the directors
of the Company are required to make judgements,
estimates and assumption about the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. The estimates and
underlying assumptions are based on historical
experience and other factors that are considered to
be relevant. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an on-going basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period in
which the estimate is revised if the revision affects
only that period, or in the period of the revision and
future periods if the revision affect both current and
future periods.

Impairment of property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets

Property, plant and equipment and right-of-use
assets are stated at costs less accumulated
depreciation and impairment, if any. In determining
whether an asset is impaired, the Group has to
exercise judgment and make estimation, particularly
in assessing: (1) whether an event has occurred or
any indicators that may affect the asset value; (2)
whether the carrying value of an asset can be
supported by the recoverable amount, in the case
of value in use, the net present value of future cash
flows which are estimated based upon the
continued use of the asset; and (3) the appropriate
key assumptions to be applied in estimating the
recoverable amounts including cash flows
projections and an appropriate discount rate. When
it is not possible to estimate the recoverable
amount of an individual asset (including right-of-use
assets), the Group estimates the recoverable
amount of the CGU to which the assets belong.
Changing the assumptions and estimates, including
the discount rates or the growth rate in the cash
flow projections, could materially affect the
recoverable amounts.
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#H = 2023 & 3 A 31 HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2023

8-

KEY SOURCE OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

NE BERIEBEUREAREEZ
WAE ()

BN - HIACOVID-19% B A 17 ok
MMEIBERFEE AR SR T ISR
B iEASEEHEERBEES(EE
¥C2RKR AFERESARETAEA -
REMBEIREEBE KA THETEME -

7202343 HA31H  ER IR EKIZ
AEBAMURNEBERNEENDE K
EEREREREEED RIERR
8 &5 184,564,000/ 7T }%7,511,000/%
TToME BEARERFAEEE
KB ERT A B ERMIEE18 %197 o

IEFE B 1B

7202338310 REEH BRI
FA R TE E518 49248,599,000/% 7T (2022
£ :241,935,000/8 7T) A A R K
BEEHM - RS B EEFREED
ERETER - MY ERZ W REAHRIE
EEERECHEEE BHRER
Fiom A ZRIEH - BRI TBE E 0]
HIRE AR BRAERBART AR
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Impairment of property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets (Continued)

Further, the cash flows projections, growth rate and
discount rate are subject to greater uncertainties in
the current year due to uncertainty on how the
COVID-19 pandemic may progress and evolve and
volatility in financial markets, including potential
disruptions in the Group’s restaurant operation.

As at 31 March 2023, in view of impairment
indicators, the Group performed impairment
assessment on property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets. Impairment losses of
HK$4,564,000 and HK$7,511,000 have been
recognised for the property, plant, and equipment
and right-of-use assets respectively, in relation to
the restaurant located in Kwun Tong. Details of the
impairment assessment of property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets are disclosed in
notes 18 and 19.

Deferred taxation

At 31 March 2023, the Group had unused tax
losses of HK$248,599,000 (2022: HK$241,935,000)
available for offset against future profits. No
deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of
such unused tax losses due to the unpredictability
of future profit streams. In cases where the actual
future profits generated are greater than expected,
a material recognition of deferred tax assets may
arise, which will be recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which such recognition takes place.
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6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

AEBZ EBAZ SR HBER : 5
ERk ERER- - EERR R
MER R KRR E R o AEEANEER
BREEAEI KPR BT IENTHEE
- WSIOREE SR EBEM KRR
NEENFZE -

(a) HER K
ARREB D B E A HNEE 5 &
ERTTAER AR T ([BRT]) 5
B SASEBEEINERER - 1t
Sh ARRBRBARIZENE
B AEERAINEEE - TR
SEEEINEREBS

AEBBREINER Z - BEM
BERAIINEHIERK AEE
15 2% 5 B2 5% HOSNE LR - 30 AS R
BERERZREIPEAINERL

2023538318 F BB T H
BTERES% MAABEMES
RETE  AIXFENRELRA
&5 18 & 2 1N 49596,000/% 7T (2022
% :1,319,0008 L) r EEEH
RUGRITTEH B R RITMIR & 858
ZHNEETIE o WA EEMATE #
ERFTAEMNBRT  BITEB
TEXRFT FHR5% @ Bl AREEY
18 4R & B 1B 15 % K 49596,000
778 (20224 : 1,319,000/ 7T)
FEEHRINELURITEHERIRE
FTHNIR S AT IE H s -
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The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of
financial risks: foreign currency risk, price risk, credit
risk, liquidity risk and interest rate risk. The Group’s
overall risk management programme focuses on the
unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to
minimise potential adverse effects on the Group's
financial performance.

(a) Foreign currency risk

Some of the subsidiaries of the Company has
foreign currency sales or bank balances in
Australian dollar (“AUD") which expose the
Group to foreign currency risk. In addition, the
Company has intra-group balances with
subsidiaries denominated in foreign currency
which also expose the Group to foreign
currency risk.

The Group currently does not have a foreign
currency hedging policy in respect of foreign
currency transactions, assets and liabilities. The
Group will monitor its foreign currency
exposure closely and will consider hedging
significant foreign currency exposure should
the need arise.

At 31 March 2023, if AUD had weakened 5 per
cent against HK$ with all other variables held
constant, consolidated loss after tax for the
year would have been approximately
HK$596,000 (2022: HK$1,319,000) higher,
arising mainly as a result of the foreign
exchange loss on bank and cash balances
denominated in AUD. If the AUD had
strengthened 5 per cent against HK$ with all
other variables held constant, consolidated loss
after tax for the year would have been
approximately HK$596,000 (2022:
HK$1,319,000) lower, arising mainly as a result
of the foreign exchange gain on bank and cash
balances denominated in AUD.
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For the year ended 31 March 2023

6. BIEEKREE (&) 6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
(b) E%ER (b) Price risk

G-VISION INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED BN EREEERAF

(c)

AEBFZRBIRERAEZSM
EAEXRAERRER EEEBR
A TR E A E RAR R R E
HERBEEBELER - ANEE
mkmEWﬂsz%$FE%
RET ETHIRE B S

INTEREDSTE2BEHREHEK
M ZBREERRARMET °

R EH £2023F3 8318 1k F
ERREBKE LR T®KI0%
(20224 : 10% ) ' Hiptr & WK
=5 R 4 4998,0005 T

(20224 : 113,000 7T) ° & =
ERANAFEFAHEMEEY
EMEREENRAFEZEF
g(o

EERE

AEEBHRRHHEFREBITH
EEMEHNEAEERREKS
R A MBI RFTE & IAE
REREEMNEREIE -

AEERBEREESEERRAR
AEEMESREEFERER
Qﬁﬂ%ﬁ%ﬁ%%%Z%ﬁ%
- fME B VRERREER

EE $%l%ﬁmA%E
EER - AEERIGHEREE
FEEREARRAREARAR
EEARKEREEM ARARES
Ry BYBRERR  AKES
BEENERRRILEBZELN

REBERA M} Eﬂﬁﬁﬂ%ﬁ%ﬁf
EASEmHEEERR -

(c)

The Group is exposed to equity price risk
mainly through its investment in equity
securities. The management manages this
exposure by maintaining a portfolio of
investments with different risk and return
profiles. The Group’s equity price risk is mainly
concentrated on equity securities quoted on
the Stock Exchange.

The sensitivity analysis below has been
determined based on the exposure to equity
price risk at the end of the reporting period.

If equity prices had been 10% (2022: 10%)
higher/lower, other comprehensive income for
the year ended 31 March 2023 would increase/
decrease by approximately HK$98,000 (2022:
HK$113,000). This is mainly due to the changes
in fair value of financial assets at FVTOCI.

Credit risk

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk
in the event of the counterparties failure to
perform its obligations is arising from the
carrying amounts of the respective recognised
financial assets as stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position.

The Group applies ECL model under which the
Group measures the loss allowance equal to
12-month ECL for all the Group’s financial
assets, unless when there has been a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition in
which circumstance the Group recognises
lifetime ECL. The Group considers the
probability of default upon initial recognition of
asset and whether there has been a significant
increase in credit risk on an ongoing basis. The
directors of the Company believe that there are
no significant increase in credit risk of the
Group's financial asset since initial recognition.

The Group does not provide any other

guarantees which would expose the Group to
credit risk.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
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(c) Credit risk (Continued)

Trade receivables

Customer credit risk is managed by each
business unit subject to the Group's established
policy, procedures and control relating to
customer credit risk management. Individual
credit evaluations are performed on all
customers requiring credit over a certain
amount. These evaluations focus on the
customer’s past history of making payments
when due and current ability to pay, and take
into account information specific to the
customer as well as pertaining to the economic
environment in which the customer operates.
Trade receivables are due within 30 days from
the date of billing. Debtors with balances that
are more than 90 days past due are requested
to settle all outstanding balances before any
further credit is granted. Normally, the Group
does not obtain collateral from customers.

The Group measures loss allowances for trade
receivables at an amount equal to lifetime
ECLs, which is calculated using a provision
matrix. As the Group's historical credit loss
experience does not indicate significantly
different loss patterns for different customer
segments, the loss allowance based on past
due status is not further distinguished between
the Group’s different customer bases. The
expected loss rate of current trade receivables
and contract assets are assessed to be 0%. As
at 31 March 2023 and 2022, there is no loss
allowance provision for these balances.

Other receivables/property rental deposits/
bank balances

No allowance has been recognised for other
receivables and property rental deposits as the
expected loss for these balances is immaterial
under 12-month ECL model based on the
Group's assumption on the rates of default of
respective counterparties taking into account
forward-looking information.
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6. MBERERE (&) 6.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

() FERRE)
BAER YFEEERE R
1TATEF (&)
RITEBRNEERRER AR
REZHFREFEFREBRT
SEEFRORIT - ELHBREH
BHREEBRBELTEKX -

(d) REEREER
AN 5= B Y SR A2 TE B BE ORI 3R B K
BHMRBDESTE  BRAERRE
WREHE AmeHEEHRE
HZRBELFE -

AEBEFMTESRBEREOR
BRRERENDT BB R D0

s @
R2023%3A31R At 31 March 2023
EREHREMENK Trade and other payables
HEak Lease liabilities
R2022%3A31R At 31 March 2022
EEGES T IR Trade and other payables
HEER Lease liabilities
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(c)

(d)

Credit risk (Continued)

Other receivables/property rental deposits/
bank balances (Continued)

The credit risk on bank balances are limited
because the counterparties are banks with high
credit ratings assigned by credit-rating
agencies. The ECL for these balances was
insignificant.

Liquidity risk

The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor
current and expected liquidity requirements to
ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves of
cash to meet its liquidity requirements in the
short and longer term.

The maturity analysis based on contractual
undiscounted cash flows of the Group’s
non-derivative financial liabilities is as follow:

NETHHE ERAMER 1825 2558 ag
Weighted ~ On demand Between Between
average or within 1and 2and
interest rate 1year 2 years 5 years Total
TiEn iR TER TR
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FERANA 8,074 - - 8,074
5.00% 3310 3430 5,050 11,790
MERNA 5,830 = = 5,830
5.00% 3,040 3310 8,480 14,830
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(e)

(f)

(9)

M=RE R

AEEEHHERBELENR
REEMNXER (BE24) - R
2023%F3H31H k202263 A31
B A"EEEHELRTSFEZ
RITEHRBBZHESREN XA
R AKEEEERS A5H
MIRITERFTAENRBR Y TS
R HRABRTEHRSERY
NEH - FitEASRAESKKE
DT REE B AT EE R
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FEOUATNELERSHEAR
FREMSFE R YL -

(e) Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate
risk which arises from lease liabilities (note 24).
The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate
risk in relation to variable-rate bank balances as
at 31 March 2023 and 2022. The management
of the Group considers the Group’s exposures
of the bank balances are not significant as
interest bearing bank balances are within short
maturity period and thus they are not included
in sensitivity analysis. The Group currently does
not have a policy on cash flow hedges of
interest rate risk. However, the management of
the Group monitors interest rate exposure and
will consider hedging significant interest rate
risk should the need arise.

The effect of changes in interest rates is not
significant to the consolidated financial
statements. Except as stated above, the Group
has no other significant interest-bearing assets
and liabilities and the Group’s income and
operating cash flows are substantially
independent of changes in market interest
rates.

SRIAER (f) Categories of financial instruments
20234 20224
2023 2022
F&T FETT
HKS$'000 HK$'000
EMEE . Financial assets:
ISR ARNET E M S & E  Financial assets measured at
amortised cost 28,540 35,377
AT EF AEMEEUE Financial assets measured at
WeEMEE — #EamTHA FVTOCI — equity instruments 977 1,131
EtHmaE: Financial liabilities:
B SERNANETE M S F A& Financial liabilities measured at
amortised cost 8,074 5,830

AVE
AR B A A TR B
SRAERSRMEEHEEER
HEAMATERE -
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(g) Fair values

The carrying amount of the Group’s financial
assets and financial liabilities as reflected in the
consolidated statement of financial position
approximate their respective fair values.
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7. XFEE %

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS
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Fair value is the price that would be received to sell
an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the
measurement date. The following disclosures of fair
value measurements use a fair value hierarchy that
categorises into three levels the inputs to valuation
techniques used to measure fair value:

Level 1 inputs: qguoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical
assets or liabilities that the
Group can access at the
measurement date.

Level 2 inputs: inputs other than quoted
prices included within level 1
that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly
or indirectly.

Level 3 inputs: unobservable inputs for the
asset or liability.

The Group's policy is to recognise transfers into and
transfers out of any of the three levels as of the
date of the event or change in circumstances that
caused the transfer.

N ESRBEE Disclosures of level in fair value hierarchy:
120235 720224
3HA31H 3H31H
AEETE NEEFE
Fair value Fair value
measurements measurements
as at as at
31 March 31 March
2023 2022
FE1ER F1H]
Level 1 Level 1
FTERT AT
HK$'000 HK$'000
1 A Description
REMAFETE: Recurring fair value
measurements:
BAFEFAEMEEYZE Equity instruments at FVTOCI
ZBRHELA
- FTRREAE S — Listed equity securities 977 1,131
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8. WA 8. REVENUE
(d) WMADE (a) Disaggregation of revenue
RERNEREFEZE 26 R AR Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with
RFSIEE KDL : customers by service line for the year is as
follows:
2023%F 20224
2023 2022
FHET FAT
HK$'000 HK$'000
REEBIHKREER Revenue from contracts with
F1SHEEARNZEF  customers within the scope of
ICLON HKFRS 15
HEEERSRGS Disaggregated by major products or
oAl service lines
- R RE — Operation of Chinese restaurants 45,181 40,577
- MEER — Property development - 74,060
45,181 114,637
AEFBRE —BEEEYUTEE The Group derives revenue from the transfer of
E O AR N 30 32 [ 35 ) 7 o D AR 7 goods and services at a point in time in the
R ESRA o following major product lines and geographical
regions.
ERER LA &3t
Restaurant operations  Property development Total
223E 2022 223 20226 2023 20225
BEIANALEE For the year ended 31 March 2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022
TEn i Tin TiEn TiEn TiEn
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
e ity Geographical market
e Hong Kong 45,181 40,577 - = 45,181 40,577
. Australia - - - 74060 - 74060
45,181 40,577 - 74,060 45,181 114,637
BARE Timing of recognition
RE-BHEER Transferred at a point in time 45,181 40,577 = 74,060 45,181 114,637
2022/23 Annual Report 3 G-VISION INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED BR EEEEERA T
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8. WA (&) 8.

REVENUE (Continued)

(b) EBHEE
EEERE
BHOREERERHERMMAKM
o RERINEBHWARE
[7) /B8 5 B2 1L 4 AR O K — B [ B By
ReoBEEFEEAREFPREH
PR 745 By i 0 S {1 U ER A (B R
) - ME TR AR R — BRI A B A K
HR -RXZEREERTFREME
AR 75 B BN B B BA S A » B P 2A
ERREENTE  GEH R
RERXHBEEFHNBMAA - BR
BERBOHRS—FL IR —
F o B REERB MRS ER
FISHHRE  BEFRERET
BRZRHER -

VEF A
AREERRMNABEETEDE - K
ABRMEEHIERNE — B HEFH
BEEEPRKTIAER -
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(b) Performance obligation

Restaurant operations

The performance obligation is the promise to
provide food and beverages. Revenue from the
operations of Chinese restaurants is recognised
at a point in time when the food and beverages
are served to the customers. A receivable is
recognised by the Group when the services are
rendered to the customers at which the right to
consideration becomes unconditional, as only
the passage of time is required before payment
is due. Payment of the transaction price is due
immediately at the point the services are
rendered to the customers. For payments
settled by credit cards by customers, the
settlement period is normally within 2 days
from the trade date. As the provision of these
services are at a period of one year or less, as
permitted under HKFRS 15, the transaction
price allocation to the unsatisfied contracts is
not disclosed.

Property development

The Group develops residential properties in
Australia. Revenue is recognised at the point in
time when control over the property has been
transferred to the customer.
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9. HitWAREMKERER 9. OTHER INCOME AND OTHER GAINS AND
LOSSES
2023%F 20224
2023 2022
THERT FHET
HK$'000 HK$'000
Hapr A Other income
MBI A —EITFER Interest income - bank deposits 360 2
% B g A Dividend income 73 67
HMIERA Sundry income 8 437
HEBE Rental concession 1,144 -
AT Bh (BT 7E) Government subsidies (Note) 2,275 2,050
HEEF B WA Imputed interest income 39 150
3,899 2,706
Hit W=k EiE Other gains and losses
T IE N R Net exchange loss (545) (673)
Bet Total 3,354 2,033
it - Note:

RER  NEBIREEBERITTIERERTIR
HZRUENEREREN (X RER) BB
5T EIM582,275,000% 7T (20224 : 2,050,000
B 7T) ELCOVID-19487F 2 fHBL & 58 -

10. D EBE X 10.

During the year, the Group recognised government grants of
HK$2,275,000 (2022: HK$2,050,000) in respect of COVID-19
related subsidies, which related to the Employment Support
Scheme and the Catering Business (Social Distancing) Subsidy
Scheme provided by the Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region Government.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

BEERE - RABKE
R

MEER PN B 3%
i E

AEB A HRED ARG FEm
MRS REERG RN - BREE
RISF T B A BN & B R S D
AR - B & E o B o B A
g o

The Group has two operating segments as follows:

Restaurant —  Operation of Chinese
operations restaurants in Hong Kong

Property - Property development in
development Australia

The Group’s reportable segments are strategic
business units that offer different products and
services. They are managed separately because each
business requires different expertise and marketing
strategies.
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10. 7 HEHR ()

ima&

For the year ended 31 March 2023

10. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

BRAKEDHZ
R APMWELZ
TEERD T

ED+/%E|J
S AEE - HEE
TR - Mk A R

YNGR

ﬂ SA - D MEETBRERITRR

585 o S E

ETBEARD REM
AREMENK - EERE

+ 58
HEE

Z% EARAREERERDEMFAERIR

@] I=EL TT 4 o

WARBINBEE -REMER > 2

EIPAR NI h=—

REMFERN  HELEEXEKZFE AR
BEAEBEBRAZ10% °

TERE s MIEE - EENEGEER:

The accounting policies of the operating segments
are the same as those described in note 4 to the
consolidated financial statements. Segment profits
or losses do not include unallocated administrative
expenses, other income and interest income.
Segment assets do not include bank and cash
balances. Segment liabilities do not include
unallocated trade and other payables. This is the
measure reported to the chief operating decision
maker for the purposes of resource allocation and
performance assessment.

Revenue are generated from external customers.
There were no inter-segment sales in both years.

There is no customer contributing over 10% of the
total revenue of the Group for both years from
restaurant operations.

Information about operating segment profit or
loss, assets and liabilities:

REBZ
IR
Restaurant
operations in
Hong Kong
FET
HK$'000
B E2023F3A31HLEE Year ended 31 March 2023
REIIBEE ZWA Revenue from external customers 45,181
o B E 1R Segment loss (22,344)
FMEXH Interest expense (631)
BT i Bh Government subsidies 2,275
M- BERZBITE Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment (1,416)
EREEENE Depreciation of right-of-use assets (2,200)
M - BB REEZRE Impairment loss on property, plant and
equipment (4,564)
ERAEEEZRE Impairment loss on right-of-use assets (7.511)
EINEDLIEREEE Additions to segment non-current assets 801
71202353 H31H As at 31 March 2023
S EE BE Segment assets 5,969
DESEE Segment liabilities (18,731)

G-VISION INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED BN EREEERAF
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10. D EPEF (F)

H = 2023 4 3 A 31 HILFJE For the year ended 31 March 2023

10. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

TERE s MiEE - EENEEER:

(%)

BZE202263831A L EE

USRI ON
A (BR) /W
ME Xt
T #2l i
WE - BERREITE
EREEENE
ME  BEMREBZRE
EREEEZRE

FrigtiE R
EMESBIERBDEE

R2022%3A31H
DR E
LR E

Information about operating segment profit or

loss, assets and liabilities: (Continued)

Year ended 31 March 2022

Revenue from external customers

Segment (loss)/profit

Interest expense

Government subsidies

Depreciation of property, plant
and equipment

Depreciation of right-of-use assets

Impairment loss on property, plant
and equipment

Impairment loss on right-of-use
assets

Income tax expense

Additions to segment non-current
assets

As at 31 March 2022
Segment assets
Segment liabilities

REBZ
BE X
Restaurant
operations

in Hong Kong
TEL
HK$'000

40,577
(21,371)
(1,406)
2,050

(927)
(2,394)

(1,890)

(3,110)

22,791

20,608
(18,713)

RBM

NEER ks
Property
development

in Australia Total

THT FHET

HK$'000 HK$'000

74,060 114,637

7,447 (13,924)

- (1,400)

- 2,050

- (927)

- (2,394)

- (1,890)

- (3,110)

(304) (304)

- 22,791

1 20,609

(305) (19,018)
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#H = 2023 & 3 A 31 HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2023

okt

BE* ()

10. 7o

10. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

2B A KB 2 H ik

Reconciliations of segment revenue and profit or

loss:
20234 20224
2023 2022
FHET FA7T
HK$'000 HK$'000
L'ON Revenue
7 EB AU A Total revenue of reportable segments 45,181 114,637
e WA Consolidated revenue 45,181 114,637
B Profit or loss
o E 4B IR Total profit or loss of reportable
segments (22,344) (13,924)
AN e Unallocated amounts:
THEA Administrative expenses (321) (139)
B U A Interest revenue 399 152
HIE N B8R Net exchange loss (545) (673)
ST & A Income tax expense (44) -
HAth R B U A Other unallocated income 1,225 504
FESEEER Consolidated loss for the year (21,630) (14,080)
DEHEEMBEZHIR . Reconciliations of segment assets
and liabilities:
EE Assets
o E AR B E Total assets of reportable segments 5,969 20,609
BAFEFAEMETE  Equity instruments at FVTOCI
Wz RETA 977 1,131
RITRIR S & Bank and cash balances 24,523 31,730
H b & WK Other receivables 34 _
CEBEE Consolidated total assets 31,503 53,470
=R Liabilities
o EbAE B E Total liabilities of reportable segments 18,731 19,018
H b FE A K Other payables 207 75
CEEAE Consolidated total liabilities 18,938 19,093
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1. BB EH 1. FINANCE COSTS
2023%F 20224
2023 2022
FERT FET
HK$'000 HK$'000
HEAGBZHNERAX Interest expenses on lease
(B15%19) liabilities (note 19) 597 438
R ARRHEER Interest on loan from the
F B R X ultimate parent - 948
HEENERXZ Imputed interest expense 34 20
631 1,406
12. FRiiEHEH 2. INCOME TAX EXPENSE
B PR N £ (B 1A 45 WA 4F (A 1 £ FE AR AR No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax is required
o Rt EEREENER IR ERE o since the Group has no assessable profit for both
years.
7N & B 8RN 5 B Sz 2 MY B A Al The Group’s subsidiary incorporated in Australia
7B 152 BR25% H i 3R &% 45 38 M BT 18 74 was subject to Australian income tax at a rate of
(20224 : 25%) ° 25% (2022: 25%).
RNERZHETE m%%gﬁﬂﬁﬁ T B The taxation for the year can be reconciled to the
FEMEEKRER ZGHRATEEBE Y loss before tax per the consolidated statement of
BRan T - profit or loss and other comprehensive income is
shown as follows:
2023%F 20224
2023 2022
FTERT FET
HK$'000 HK$'000
BRI &R Loss before tax (21,586) (13,776)
REBMNEBNE16.5% Tax at Hong Kong Profits Tax rate
(2022%F : 16.5% )stE 2 FiIE of 16.5% (2022: 16.5%) (3,562) (2,273)
BEARBMBAZBHBZE Tax effect of income that are not
taxable (710) (1,218)
O AEHBRFIES H 2 78 Tax effect of expenses that are not
wa deductible 2,389 1,579
AERTRIAER 2 HETE Tax effect of tax losses not
recognised 1,921 1,442
TEHE Withholding tax - 304
EEMANEEERL LB Effect of different tax rates of a
YNCIENEV s -2 - subsidiary operating in other
jurisdiction 6 470
FrigtiE R Income tax expense 44 304
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12. FREHE A ()

12.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

RBEEHRAEEHEFJHABE
BHERR BN z2E KRB AHEEE
18 #49248,599,0005# JT (20224 :
241,935,000/%8 70) ° A R BEFEE K
s FI SRR+ B s R B) B R IB
B3 18 #7248,599,0005%8 7T (20224 :
241,935,000 L) BRELEFREE
EoASE i ARESHZHIEEIE R
REEARBEEAR T - EMF A
EEBRERBLE -

13. FEKE

13.

At the end of the reporting period the Group has
unused tax losses of HK$248,599,000 (2022:
HK$241,935,000) available for offsetting against
future profits. No deferred tax asset has been
recognised in respect of HK$248,599,000 (2022:
HK$241,935,000) due to the unpredictability of
future profit streams. The aforesaid unused tax
losses of the Group have not yet been agreed by
respective tax authorities. All tax losses may be
carried forward indefinitely for both years.

LOSS FOR THE YEAR

AEBEFEBEECHRATSE:

The Group's loss for the year is stated after
charging the following:

20234 20224

2023 2022

FHET FA57T

HK$'000 HK$'000

2% S5 B BN & Auditor’s remuneration 462 504

EIBE N E Building management fee and rates 3,925 4,513

2 BEEFEER A Cost of inventories consumed 13,700 12,766

BEKAR Construction cost - 66,363

we Depreciation

— UE  BEREE — property, plant and equipment 1,416 927

— EREEE - right-of-use assets 2,200 2,394
BB Impairment loss on

— WX WENRKRE — property, plant and equipment 4,564 1,890

— ERAEEE — right-of-use assets 7,511 3,110

8 T AN Staff costs 22,458 19,186

HEHHEOES Short-term lease rentals 4,846 6,230

FIE B8 Net exchange loss 545 673

NAEERBERER Utilities and cleaning expenses 4,002 3,557
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14. EERABEX

H = 2023 4 3 A 31 HILFJE For the year ended 31 March 2023

14. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE

2023 20224

2023 2022

FET FETT

HK$'000 HK$'000

e o TEA ROERL Salaries, bonuses and allowances 21,677 18,544
RIRAE F 5T 814 3 Retirement benefits scheme

contributions 781 642

22,458 19,186

AUBEEHEMAL
AEESSHFMZRELALH  HAH
POz (20224 : OfL) B AR B HTT
EX(EMeR TXMEI15REE) -
BT —fr At (20226 : —fi1) 2 &
EmMemT :

Five highest paid individuals

The five highest paid individuals in the Group
during the year included four (2022: four) directors
whom emoluments are reflected in the analysis
presented in note 15. The emoluments of the
remaining one (2022: one) individual are set out
below:

20235 20224

2023 2022

FET TFET

HK$'000 HK$'000

Fre MoERL Salaries and allowances 447 329

ZMe BN TS E

The emoluments fell within the following band:

20234 20224

2023 2022

A A

Number of Number of

individuals individuals

0/&7C 2 1,000,000/ 7T HK$Nil to HK$1,000,000 1 1

KM ER - AR BB E R KB RERA
BEEXDABZRFMALTIAME -
PAGR (£ ELAE S IIA KR I AR ER B I
REBNL 2 F1E -

RWFER - HERERETCAMNE -

2022/23 Annual Report 3R

No emoluments were paid by the Group to any of
the employees of the Group or the five highest paid
individuals as an inducement to join or upon joining
the Group or as compensation for loss of office for
both years.

None of the employees has waived any emoluments
for both years.
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#H = 2023 & 3 A 31 HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2023

15. ESmAIRER 15. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
EECHS Directors’ emoluments
BNEEOEHMAOT : The remuneration of every director is set as below:

AEAALERES (TRATARAENEAR)
FRftRESARELNMHE
Emoluments paid or receivable in respect of a person’s services as a director,
whether of the Company or its subsidiary undertaking

BRI
ik Hé  BAHBHR BEEEE @
Employer's
contribution to
a retirement Housing
Fees Salaries benefit scheme allowance Total
THx ThR THR THR Thr
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
HiTES: Executive directors:
BRELE Mr. Cheng Hop Fai
(fTH#E%) (Chief Executive) - 240 - 900 1,140
HRATT Ms. Cheng Pak Ming, Judy - 360 18 - 378
gRfat Ms. Cheng Pak Man, Anita = 480 18 240 738
gRERtL Ms. Cheng Pak Lai, Lily 2 480 18 - 498
BUFHTES: Independent non-executive
directors (“INED"):
BERLA Mr. Law Toe Ming 7 - _ _ 7
HEREL Mr. Hung Chi Yuen, Andrew 7 - - - 7
REAERE Mr. Yuen Shiu Cheong, Johnny* 7 - - - n
2023 M5t Total for 2023 216 1,560 54 1,140 2,970
* o A2021566 A23E EE(E 2 BT IEHTT *  Appointed as INED on 23 June 2021
=
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15. EEREAN RER (B)

15.

H = 2023 4 3 A 31 HILFJE For the year ended 31 March 2023

BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
(Continued)

BEECME (E) Directors’ emoluments (Continued)
REMALIERES (FRAAATIENBAA)
R R E N AR E
Emoluments paid or receivable in respect of a person’s services as a director,
whether of the Company or its subsidiary undertaking
EFRHK
e e BRI FERK it
Employer's
contribution to
a retirement Housing
Fees Salaries  benefit scheme allowance Total
TEL TER TEL TEL TEL
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
UES: Executive directors:
Y i Mr. Cheng Hop Fai
(fTHEH) (Chief Executive) - 240 - 900 1,140
HRHTL Ms. Cheng Pak Ming, Judy - 360 18 _ 378
gafnt Ms. Cheng Pak Man, Anita - 720 18 - 738
gEBxt Ms. Cheng Pak Lai, Lily - 480 18 - 498
BUFHTES: Independent non-executive
directors (“INED"):
BERLE Mr. Law Toe Ming 72 - - - 72
RREBRE Mr. Leung Tai Chiu* 16 - - - 16
REEEE Mr. Hung Chi Yuen, Andrew 72 - - - 72
REBELA Mr. Yuen Shiu Cheong, Johnny* 56 - - - 56
20225 B3t Total for 2022 216 1,800 54 900 2,970

* 20216 A23H B EZ B I EHITES
& M2021F6 AR BEEE 2 B ERITES

TRAHSIERNETHORBEELAFE
REAH M (20225 : &) -

RAFEE AKEMERTEFNESES
NS - AR EEAERINANEE K
RINAR KB AER/RERL 2 FE -

2022/23 Annual Report 3R

* Resigned as INED on 23 June 2021
2 Appointed as INED on 23 June 2021

Neither the chief executive nor any of the directors
waived any emoluments during the year (2022:
HKS$Nil).

During the year, no emoluments were paid by the
Group to any of the directors as an inducement to
join or upon joining the Group or as compensation
for loss of office.
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#H = 2023 & 3 A 31 HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2023

16. K2 16. DIVIDEND
AR R F AN EIR S KRR No dividend has been paid or declared by the
(20224 : £&) o Company during the year (2022: HK$Nil).

17. BRE8B 17. LOSS PER SHARE
FAREAR R EEEE JIRIE A T E - The calculation of basic and diluted loss per share is

based on the following:

2023%F 2022%F
2023 2022
TERT FHET
HK$'000 HK$'000
BB Loss
RAEIREREG BB Loss attributable to owners of the
Company (21,630) (14,080)
g = Number of shares
FARstEEREAREEZ  Weighted average number of
TEMINEFTE (#/7£)  ordinary shares for the purpose of
calculating basic loss
per share (Note) 1,946,314,108 1,946,314,108
it - Note:
ARAREMEZERELSEEEEEL R There was no dilutive potential ordinary share for the
% o Company’s share option for both years.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

H = 2023 4 3 A 31 HILFJE For the year ended 31 March 2023

18. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

BRRBRRE EEIR b
Furniture and
restaurant Leasehold
equipment  improvements Total
TET TET FET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
R{E Cost
72021F4A1H At 1 April 2021 14,927 - 14,927
NE Additions 1,128 7,149 8,277
FH Write off (5,985) - (5,985)
M202263HA318 & At 31 March 2022 and
2022641 H 1 April 2022 10,070 7,149 17,219
NE Additions 801 - 801
7202343H31H At 31 March 2023 10,871 7,149 18,020
Rt ERRE Accumulated depreciation
and impairment
R2021F4H1H At 1 April 2021 12,382 - 12,382
FRAZH (Ha13) Charge for the year (note 13) 519 408 927
B (B13E13) Impairment (note 13) 258 1,632 1,890
5 Write off (3,980) - (3,980)
M202243A318 & At 31 March 2022 and
2022431 H 1 April 2022 9,179 2,040 11,219
FRZH (BE13) Charge for the year (note 13) 259 1,157 1,416
WAE (H1aE13) Impairment (note 13) 612 3,952 4,564
7A2023%F3H31H At 31 March 2023 10,050 7,149 17,199
REE Carrying amount
7202343H31H At 31 March 2023 821 - 821
7202243 H31H At 31 March 2022 891 5,109 6,000
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18. W% - MERRE (&)

18. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(Continued)

MR2023F3A31H AEBEREEE
RAMRBENEERBFERE -
M EEYE - BE k&R ERER
EEMEEATKE S5 - BZEER
ZHReEEBMNMTKESETIER
FRMRBERELTENERE
BEMEE FRRESREEZMERD
FTERZLABRNEHENITRE R
E HEEMEREFERE AEEF
Al Rk B AT 5 5 B 5 fE (A A 5
HRREEEEMNETRRDRE
ATEL RAFTITIRE - MR RAIRIR S
EXBENKEEBMTENREGTF
HEREREERBEY -FAEENRE
EEBDNREBEATRREFERMISR
RAEM -

AEBERBEEEMAEZEHTY KA
HE U EBRER1IINAERER
(2022%F : 1.6% ) iR BB HIZ XS
HEYEHEHSKTHH B RERE
Al e ZLE R T BBHEBMENTEEER
HiE R K o

BERBRASEZBEXKEE 2B
HAERERENITEEX A10.46%
(20224 : 10.69%) ©

MRBESEELEBMMATKE©REK
RO BEERERERAEEES
BHRMEE - AR E £2023F3H31
BIEFEE=ET  UE - BERK
BRERAEEED FIERBREEEY
4,564,000/ 7T 57,511,000 7T 19 &
HEELEBNESE -

120  G-VISION INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED B EMEEERAT

As at 31 March 2023, the management of the
Group identified the restaurant located in Kwun
Tong that continued to underperform. They
estimated the corresponding recoverable amounts
of the property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets. The recoverable amounts of the
restaurant operation cash generating unit (“CGU")
have been determined on the basis of their value in
use using discounted cash flow method. The key
assumptions for the discounted cash flow method
are those regarding the discount rate, growth rate
and budgeted gross margin and revenue during the
period. The Group estimates discount rates using
pre-tax rates that reflect current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to
the CGU. The growth rates are based on long-term
average economic growth rate of the geographical
area in which the businesses of the CGU operate.
Budgeted gross margin and revenue are based on
past performance and expectations on market
development.

The Group prepares cash flow forecasts derived
from the most recent financial budgets approved by
the directors over the remaining lease term of the
leased properties of restaurant operation using the
Hong Kong's inflation rate 1.7% as growth rate
(2022: 1.6%). This rate does not exceed the
average long-term growth rate for the relevant
markets.

The rate used to discount the forecast cash flows
from the Group’s operating restaurant activities are
10.46% (2022: 10.69%).

As the recoverable amount of CGU is lower than
the respective carrying amounts of property, plant
and equipment and right-of-use assets, impairment
losses of approximately HK$4,564,000 and
HK$7,511,000 were recognised on property, plant
and equipment and right-of-use assets in the profit
or loss for the year ended 31 March 2023 so arising
from the CGU, respectively.
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H = 2023 4 3 A 31 HILFJE For the year ended 31 March 2023

19. EHEEE 19. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS
HEWHE
Lease
properties
AT
HK$'000
2021464818 At 1 April 2021 1,796
NE Addition 14,514
e (Hit13) Depreciation (note 13) (2,394)
IEE A Termination of lease (1,095)
BE (K17t 13) Impairment (note 13) (3,110)
7202293 H31H Kk2022F4 /818 At 31 March 2022 and 1 April 2022 9,711
e Hit13) Depreciation (note 13) (2,200)
BAE (K15 13) Impairment (note 13) (7,511)
7A2023F3HA31H At 31 March 2023 -
MN2023F3A31H - HEABEHD Lease liabilities of approximately HK$10,820,000
10,820,000 7T (20224 : 13,263,000 (2022: HK$13,263,000) are recognised with related
Bor) R EAEREE B EE E (2022 right-of-use assets of approximately HK$Nil (2022:
£ 114,514,000/ 7)) #FER o HK$14,514,000) as at 31 March 2023.
20234 20224
2023 2022
FHET FHTT
HK$'000 HK$'000
ERAEEEZITEER Depreciation expenses on
right-of-use assets 2,200 2,394
HEaBZFERAX Interest expense on lease liabilities
(BIEEYBEER) (included in finance costs) 597 438
HEHEERMER Expenses relating to short-term
lease 4,846 6,230
HXEEEEMESEB2ER Expenses relating to leases of
(BiEEEMEEER) low value assets (included in
other operating expenses) - 5
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19.

19. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (Continued)

EAEEE (&)
MERSRHAR ZFBHIINHEE
30(b) °

REMBEFE AEBEETHEY
¥R EERR HEARKERE
1ZE5FFE (20224 : 1254 ) 5] °
HEKREERBHEN BEFESF
18 A~ [7) B9 16 SRR 6 15 o FE R 8 78 B AN
TR 2 BARR B - ANEE B E A
ARMNEELEEARATAITTHER -

F A E 2 AT E 18855 M
5518 °

Details of total cash outflow for leases are set out
in note 30(b).

For both years, the Group has various leased
properties for its operations. Lease contracts are
entered into for fixed term of 1 to 5 years (2022: 1
to 5 years). Lease terms are negotiated on an
individual basis and contain a wide range of
different terms and conditions. In determining the
lease term and assessing the length of the
non-cancellable period, the Group applies the
definition of a contract and determines the period
for which the contract is enforceable.

Details of the impairment assessment of right-of-use
assets are disclosed in note 18.

20. & 20. INVENTORIES
20234 20224
2023 2022
FHET FHE T
HK$'000 HK$'000
B K& ek Food and beverage 663 768

G-VISION INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED BN EREEERAF
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H = 2023 4 3 A 31 HILFJE For the year ended 31 March 2023

21. BIRERF » AR KR EMEU 21. TRADE RECEIVABLES, PREPAYMENTS AND

=h
TA

OTHER RECEIVABLES

20234 20224
2023 2022
FET FHET
HK$'000 HK$'000

REBEER 2 EBERR Trade receivables from
restaurant operations 180 =
TETER R Prepayments 502 483
B Ath & U 5k Other receivables 987 836
1,669 1,319

BEBERZURASMERARER -

AEBIHETHEMAEPNERD
30K o AN 5 B B B AE il B WUR
R -EXZSTHETHHHRE -

B B 3R PR B IR B B 5 RO B
BRI ST I T

0 £ 30 H 0 to 30 days

Most of the restaurant customers settle in cash and
credit cards.

The credit terms of the Group granted to other
customers were 30 days on average. The Group
seeks to maintain strict control over its outstanding
receivables. Overdue balances are reviewed regularly
by the directors.

The ageing analysis of trade receivables from
restaurant operations, based on the invoice date,
and net of allowance, is as follows:

20234 20224
2023 2022
FET FET
HK$°000 HK$'000
180 -

M2023%F3A310 - HIEEK L EE
B %80 8 2 FE Uk BR 20 im R BURE (2022
FE) o

R 98 B R B UL S A B 55 S A (IR
7 o B TS 2 75 ORR SR AB
SHE -

As of 31 March 2023, no trade receivables from
restaurant operations were past due but not
impaired (2022: HK$Nil).

The Group does not hold any collateral over these
balances. All trade receivables from restaurant
operations are denominated in HK$.
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#H = 2023 & 3 A 31 HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2023

22. BAFEFAEMERENE 2K 22. EQUITY INSTRUMENTS AT FVTOCI
IR
20234 20224
2023 2022
THExT F&7T
HK$'000 HK$'000
BAFEZBERREES Equity securities, at fair value

EBLTRE Listed in Hong Kong 977 1,131
DA Analysed as:

MBEE Current assets 977 1,131
TS AFEEREINE AR The fair values of the listed securities are based on
& o current bid prices.

BAFEFAEMEE WD ZRETL Equity investments at FVTOC| are denominated in
BABTEE - HKS.

23. B BRA K HEMENSR 23. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

20234 20224

2023 2022

FExT FA7T

HK$'000 HK$'000

FERTBR SR (KT 22) Trade payables (Note) 2,516 1,013

B e 3R Other payables 2,175 1,468

BEERA Reinstatement costs 1,183 1,149

Bt REIRF & Long service payables 2,200 2,200

8,074 5,830
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H = 2023 4 3 A 31 HILFJE For the year ended 31 March 2023

23. EERZ R EMENST (E) 23. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (Continued)
Kt - Note:
FERBRFIZBKE B BARREDITAT The ageing analysis of trade payables, based on the date of

receipt of goods, is as follows:

20235 20224
2023 2022
THET FHET
HK$'000 HK$'000
0£60H 0 to 60 days 2,459 167
60H X Over 60 days 57 846
2,516 1,013
DITAT : Analysed as:

2023F 20224
2023 2022
THET FHET
HK$'000 HK$’'000
mEAE Current liabilities 8,074 5,830

B /5 FE < BR R ER AT T HE - All trade payables are denominated in HK$.
2022/23 Annual Report 3 G-VISION INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED BR EEEEERA T
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#H = 2023 & 3 A 31 HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2023

24. THEEE

24. LEASE LIABILITIES

BREREMNT

Minimum lease payments

RERENRZERE

Present value of minimum
lease payments

20235 20225 20235 2025
2023 2022 2023 2022
TR THL TR TET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
—ER Within one year 3,310 3,040 2,843 2,443
SR—F  BABAME More than one year, but not exceeding
two years 3,430 3,310 3,109 2,843
SR_F BETRBRF More than two years, but not more
than five years 5,050 8,480 4,868 7,977
11,790 14,830 10,820 13,263
W RRABER Less: Future finance charges (970) (1,567)  FEANA  TEEANA
HEELMBE Present value of lease obligations 10,820 13,263 10,820 13,263
W EENABRES Less: Amount due for settlement within
Mo (BRE 12 months (shown under
RHERE) current liabilities) (2,843) (2,443)
T A% EBRFIE Amount due for settlement
after 12 months 1,977 10,820

BARA G INE TGS E KA =X
£5.00% (20224 : 5.00%) °

MEHEREBEHABITE

G-VISION INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED BN EREEERAF

All lease liabilities are denominated in HK$.

The weighted average incremental borrowing rates
applied to liabilities were 5.00% (2022: 5.00%,).
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H = 2023 4 3 A 31 HILFJE For the year ended 31 March 2023

25. R 25. SHARE CAPITAL
20234 20224
2023 2022
THERT FHET
HK$’'000 HK$'000
SETE ¢ Authorised:
5,000,000,000% % E & 5,000,000,000 ordinary shares
0.10% T 2 ik of HK$0.1 each 500,000 500,000
BEEITRER Issued and fully paid:
1,946,314,108F iz H & 1,946,314,108 ordinary shares
0108 T2 EBR of HK$0.1 each 194,631 194,631

AEEEREANERREELARE
FEKENREN  LRBER(CEKN
BRERBERRSIHZA@ME -

AEBIZREBRLIIREERNSHE - KN
SERBEKENNNECMBEEE
MEBRFEKEEE NGB L HE
THRE RTERAABELRERE
AEEATREERHBREMNT - BT
A MBARE BMHMERS  BE
REEBAILEEEARDER

AEBERBRRERL REZER -
TR ERARIANREETE - R
REBBREBA RO BN BMEA
&1 e

AREEME— RN E RNB K
2 BHREFBEEBIMAO ET  ©A
BEELUNNARFTRE -

AEBZSAHINIRKREBRNDBEE
REREREARNERNDRSE - ZW
EETTHELRARERE - YBERBT
P ENEEBT25%HREE - B20234F
3A31H  #Bi825% (20224 : i@
25%) MR EBEARFESR -
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The Group's objectives when managing capital are
to safeqguard the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern and to maximise the return to the
shareholders through the optimisation of the debt
and equity balance.

The Group sets the amount of capital in proportion
to risk. The Group manages the capital structure
and makes adjustments to it in the light of changes
in economic conditions and the risk characteristics
of the underlying assets. In order to maintain or
adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust
the payment of dividends, issue new shares,
buy-back shares, raise new debts, redeem existing
debts or sell assets to reduce debts.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the
shareholders equity ratio. This ratio is calculated as
total share equity divided by total assets. Total share
equity comprises share capital, retained profits and
other reserves.

The only externally imposed capital requirement for
the Group is in order to maintain its listing on the
Stock Exchange, it has to have a public float of at
least 25% of the issued shares.

The Group receives a report from the share
registrars monthly on substantial share interests
showing the non-public float and it demonstrates
continuing compliance with the 25% limit
throughout the year. As at 31 March 2023, over
25% (2022: over 25%) of the shares were in public
hands.
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26. NAT BN RE N FEEH 26. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND
RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY
(a) &2 AMBARRER (a) Statement of financial position of the
Company
20234 20224
2023 2022
B 7% THET F&7T
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
REBEE Current asset
BITRE &% Bank and cash balances 174 179
REAE Current liability
fEETE A Accruals 15 15
EERE Net assets 159 164
BEXR#E Capital and reserves
i Share capital 25 194,631 194,631
i Reserves 27(b) (194,472) (194,467)
B Total equity 159 164
MR2023F6A19HEE == Approved by the Board of Directors on 19 June
E OEBTIEEREREEZ 2023 and are signed on its behalf by:
BEE &
CHENG Hop Fai CHENG Pak Man, Anita

134  G-VISION INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED B EMEBERAT 2022/23 Annual Report F#



Notes to the

26. AR RMBRR KRR ERED ()
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Consolidated Financial Statements

H = 2023 4 3 A 31 HILFJE For the year ended 31 March 2023

26. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND
RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY
(Continued)

(b) ARFRELD

(b) Reserve movement of the Company

RiEE Raie BRERG 2ifEE a3t
Share
Share Capital option  Accumulated
premium reserve reserve losses Total

(Wit27b))  (Wat27e)i)

(note 27(b)(i)  (note 27(b)(i))
THT THL THL THIL THIL
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

M2021%F4A18 At 1 April 2021 88,794 113,143 2,906 (399,308) (194,465)
FEEE Loss for the year - - - 0 2)
BRELN Lapse of share option - = (186) 186 =
M202263A318 k202264 A18 At 31 March 2022 and

1 April 2022 88,794 113,143 2,720 (399,124) (194,467)
EEER Loss for the year - - - (5) (5)
BRE RN Lapse of share option - - (186) 186 -
12023534318 At 31 March 2023 88,794 113,143 2,534 (398,943) (194,472)

27. f#1E 27. RESERVES

(a) x&EH (a) Group

AEEZ HESERERDHE
HRGABRRE LR ERER
R ARHBBE -

(b) REZHERRZ
() REE
BREGEREANBBESR®E
EHNERBETREMELN
wmE - BOEERNERR
BRECIBIFERAE) L
;EO

2022/23 Annual Report 3R

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and
movements therein are presented in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income and consolidated
statement of changes in equity.

(b) Nature and purpose of reserves
(i) Share premium

Share premium represents premium arising
from the issue of shares at a price in
excess of their par value per share. The
application of the share premium account
is governed by the Companies Act 1981 of
Bermuda.
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#H = 2023 & 3 A 31 HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2023

27. f#1& (&)

27. RESERVES (Continued)

(b) REZHERAR (&)

(i) BR*#E
AEBWKRARFHEZHR
1992F10AETTHNEEEH
MELH - RARHEREAR
AR 1T /O B AN &Y 48 T {8 B Y
BRARMNBRAHEERREZ
RIEVERE -

(iii) B2 @5
EXFHEEREBREFINE
B AR A R 15 mR M E LM
P INEZ 5 - R IRIEAR
& 75 3R K Y TEA(b) T 8L 2
SRTBREE

28. BB HERT &

(b) Nature and purpose of reserves (Continued)
(ii) Capital reserve

The capital reserve of the Group arose as a
result of the group reorganisation in
October 1992. It represents the difference
between the aggregate nominal amount of
the share capital issued by the Company in
exchange for the aggregate nominal
amount of the share capital of subsidiaries.

(iii) Translation reserve

The translation reserve comprises all
foreign exchange differences arising from
the translation of the consolidated
financial statements of foreign operations.
The reserve is dealt with in accordance
with the accounting policies set out in
note 4(b) to the consolidated financial
statements.

28. SHARE OPTION SCHEME

KA FIR2010F5 5108 4~ B8 %
52 (1201051 311) 7£2020F5 A8
HEIH - A& KR2020F8 A3 H £
TZRFBAFRE LERERERB
Hsh AR #E 5T 20 (202051 81 82
20105128 - # W [5H281]) - R#%2010
FTERBE— S ZERETIEM -
R+ AT AR ITE 201051 B4R H
MBI ESEETHITE  BAXE
SEIZIERURBEBBAR AR
2R (BT FEH EMRA (T EH
MAID E17ZFTRER - BrIERE2020
&I T 2 BRI E &R LE - B RI2020
e ERAEEE2030F8A3H A
JJ: °
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The Company adopted a share option scheme on
10 May 2010 (the “2010 Scheme”) which expired
on 8 May 2020. By shareholders’ resolution passed
at the annual general meeting held on 3 August
2020, the Company adopted a new share option
scheme (the “2020 Scheme”, and, together with
the 2010 Scheme, the “Schemes”). No further share
options may be offered under the 2010 Scheme.
However, any outstanding share options granted
under the 2010 Scheme shall continue to be
exercisable subject to the rules of the 2010 Scheme
and the provisions of Chapter 17 of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) (the” Listing Rules”). Unless terminated
earlier in accordance with the rules of the 2020
Scheme, the 2020 Scheme shall be valid and
effective until 3 August 2030.
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28. B AEsT & (&)

H = 2023 4 3 A 31 HILFJE For the year ended 31 March 2023

28. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

2010518l 2 B D HER A T EERZ
B3 7 AR N B BT 3% BB AR T A
Pt DB 2 2R ¢

(a) NEBEEMKERAEEKE
ERpER ENER(KREE
£l - HEAEREXES (B
WITES FATEERBUFE
HITESE)

(b) AEETAKEBERITMNKREE
BZEAER - BXEMR FX
RE KB -#A88 BT =
mE/ARGRES  REER
H-EFQUBETREZENREA

ITHASEIREER (RFIE
) 1E 2 B BUR 5201051 & 1
BRAEER K&

(0 EFgETAECEIFTER/A
SEIREER (RFER) L
BEIZEMAL-

20205t 8l EMREARAAAIMAE
BEMEBxBREES &aTHA

SREEBAERESE (BEBL
FWITEE) TEREUALRESTZ
EPERBBRECHAIEE 2 X5 - %
BRAEREHERMERNEEBRM -
BAA HER EEEIHEBRE
BE  ERBEIER  ULEER
%ﬂﬁ%ﬁ$%§¢ﬁ2§%omm
R ASEREERERAA
HEEARR o HE - MAEMTE
1=

(a) BBAER

KB EERANEE N &®
MmBFAERREER K&

-
I,

n
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The purpose of the 2010 Scheme is to recognise the
commitments and contributions of the following
eligible participants by granting options to them as
incentives or rewards:

(@) any employee or director (including executive
director, non-executive directors and
independent non-executive director) of any
member of the Group or any entity in which
any member of the Group holds an equity
interest (the “Invested Entity”);

(b) any advisor, consultant, professional, agent,
contractor, customer, provider of goods and/or
services, business or joint-venture partner of
any member of the Group or any Invested
Entity whom the Board in its sole discretion
considers eligible for the 2010 Scheme on the
basis of his or her contribution to the Group or
the Invested Entity (as the case may be); and

() any person whom the Board in its sole
discretion considers has contributed or will
contribute to the Group or to the Invested
Entity (as the case may be).

The purpose of the 2020 Scheme is to enable the
Company to grant options to any full-time or
part-time employees, chief executives, officers or
directors (including independent non-executive
directors) of the Group, substantial shareholders
and any professional advisers, consultants, suppliers,
customers and distributors who, in the sole opinion
of the Board, will contribute or have contributed to
the business affairs, development and growth of the
Group as incentives or rewards to recognise and
acknowledge their contributions to the Group. The
2020 Scheme will provide the eligible participants
an opportunity to have a personal stake in the
Company with the view to achieving the following
objectives:

(a) to motivate the eligible participants to optimise
their performance efficiency for the benefit of
the Group; and
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28. B AEET & (&)

28. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

(b) W3l - BBIAEMTANELF
YA SHARE s REZERSE
NMZBEERZRERTHERD
B °

M2023F3A31H » AR RIRE 2
M) AR 4% 17 {5 2 B iR 7 /226,000,0000%
(20224 : 28,000,000) ' {5 A R @] 3%
HE Z1TRMBEA1.3% (20224 -
1.4%) °

BAE20205T &I ] B 2 BERRRERR D 48
HENAl B H194,631,4100% © K%
A20205 BRI ARQE 23T
R2Z10% @ HEELESKREE—TH#
HEEBRIN - REFTE  TBEEEE M
RITEZ B EETEREIT 2R
MEE  EEE FRAEREBUR
RATREEITRANZ30% 5 LR -

B IE20105t 81 F120205t 81 & B 2 5t
B BRAARARIZERNES -2
THRABRETEREXFESESEZAE
B8 AL R HBRER  B0E
RAMBBMIERITESHE - WE
AARAEBRRIIBILIIERNITES
IEESAZEMBBALTE K
HERE 2EHANRAAEERE
AEXZHBEREBALTERSBE
RZITABREETERTETRE
FET2ARBKG  AFTEBAA
FIDBITRMN 20.1% @ HIBRERE B
f& 1 I Th B 5T & < A {E B #5,000,000
BT BIMBESARRIRRZEL
##E TERBELEMRAEET ZA
DREBA - HBB AL RATEZL
BEAT AR RERZER S Al
— R BERAE -
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(b) to attract, retain or otherwise maintain an
on-going business relationship with the eligible
participants whose contributions are or will be
beneficial to the long-term growth of the
Group.

At 31 March 2023, the Company had 26,000,000
(2022: 28,000,000) share options outstanding
under the Schemes, which represented
approximately 1.3% (2022: 1.4%) of the shares of
the Company in issue at that date.

The total number of shares in respect of which
options may be granted under the 2020 Scheme
shall not in aggregate exceed 194,631,410 shares
(approximately 10% of the issued share capital of
the Company at the time the 2020 Scheme was
established) unless further shareholders’ approval
has been obtained. The overall limit in the number
of shares which may be issued upon exercise of all
outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised
under the Schemes shall not exceed 30% of the
shares of the Company in issue from time to time.

Pursuant to each of the 2010 Scheme and the 2020
Scheme, each grant of options to any director, chief
executive or substantial shareholder of the
Company, or any of their respective associates,
must be approved by all independent non-executive
directors of the Company. Where any grant of
options to a substantial shareholder or an
independent non-executive director of the
Company, or any of their respective associates,
would result in the shares of the Company issued
and to be issued upon exercise of all options already
granted or to be granted to such person in the
12-month period up to and including the date of
such grant representing in aggregate over 0.1% of
the shares of the Company in issue and having an
aggregate value, based on the closing price of the
shares at the date of such grant, in excess of
HK$5,000,000, such further grant of options must
be approved by the shareholders of the Company,
with the grantee(s), his associates and all core
connected persons (as defined under the Listing
Rules) of the Company abstaining from voting in
favour.
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H = 2023 4 3 A 31 HILFJE For the year ended 31 March 2023

28. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

X L EFRR - RE20105 & A0
202051 &% 8 25T & - REM12{E A
HEAS2EERERAGER ZBR
BB (BRETERERTEZRE
PetE)  MEITEERET RS T %
TZBRMEE  TABBAAEE %
TN Z1% - EAE-—FRLEER
it ERRZ RERAE - AEVSBUR AL A
Mz E2mENEBE AT AR

ERR -

RIF20105t IR 2 BRBEB EY
BHE30HANAEEEAESR - KRIEE
Pt B 78 XN RB » 1R1%20205T 3
ARRARREL B HIRI0MEE % B R
ARARAEARZBRENEEE
Bz BHOXHRINERN T ARA
Z1.00B T AR ERBERK L E
Bz KER BERENGEERT
ERALE LR

BREREASIZITEETT IR
T=FFe&a®E  (ZEREBK
#zB EfA@EZXRBARE RN
EBXMEBRARERMAR FHET
B ()NEBEHNB(AREXR)ARF
Bin R R P A mERAR T
& KA QA PRMDEE -
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Subject to the aforesaid, pursuant to each of the
2010 Scheme and the 2020 Scheme, the total
number of shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of the options granted and to be granted
to each participant (including both exercised and
outstanding options) in any 12-month period must
not exceed 1% of the shares of the Company in
issue. Any further grant of options in excess of the
limit shall be subject to the shareholders’ approval
with such participant and his associate abstaining
from voting.

Options granted under the 2010 Scheme must be
accepted in writing within 30 days from the date of
offer. No consideration is payable on grant of
option. Pursuant to the 2020 Scheme, an option
shall be deemed to have been granted to the
grantee and to have taken effect when the
duplicate offer document constituting acceptance of
the offer for such option duly signed by the
grantee, together with a non-refundable remittance
in favour of the Company of HK$1.00 by way of
consideration for the grant thereof, is received by
the Company within 30 business days after the date
of offer.

The exercise price under the Schemes of the option
shares shall at least be the highest of (i) the average
closing price of the shares of the Company as
stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations
sheets for the five business days immediately
preceding the date of offer; (ii) the closing price of
the shares of the Company as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date of
offer, which shall be a business day; and (iii) the
nominal value of the shares of the Company.
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28. B AEET & (&)

28. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

RETE EFERBYAIBITREM
REFREBBEBRT  HOBRETE
M2EE Rtz AXANEAE
EZEH%%EETETT AR BRERE R
RAOKETBEITEEBREE -

RIBET S AZXAAREFEHEER
BAZ AR EIE AT E B - Bk
HETSEETF(ARLBRERAE
ETFHARE-REXBRLL) -

RIBEFTERN 2B E EEFEB
LA 2 7202343 A31H k202243 H
3B 2 &I T

$5% RLAH e
Participants Date of grant Exercisable period
(Hita)
(note a)
] 178104238 201751038 %

2025510A22R

Directors 23 October 2017 23 October 2017 to

Pursuant to the Schemes, a share option may be
granted to any participant by the Board at its
absolute discretion and subject to any conditions as
it may think fit. Save for this, there is neither any
performance targets that need to be achieved by
the grantee nor any minimum period for which a
share option must be held before a share option
can be exercised.

Pursuant to the Schemes, a share option may be
exercised by the grantee at any time during a period
determined and notified by the Board of Directors
provided that such period shall be not more than 10
years commencing from the date of grant and
expiring on the last business day of such 10-year
period.

Details of movements in the share options granted
under the Schemes and the balances at 31 March
2023 and 31 March 2022 are set out below:

#2023%

2021545 RER  H002F4R RER  3A31H

SRTEE 1AMATE ANAWE 1BHAGE  AMIPE  HAGE

Lapsed/ Lapsed/ Outstanding

Exercise Outstanding expired Outstanding expired as at

price as at during as at during 31 March

per share 1 April 2021 the year 1 April 2022 the year 2023
AT (Hitc) (Wit
HKS$ (note ) (note b)

22 October 2025 0.177 28,000,000  (2,000,000) 26,000,000 - 26,000,000
£3/BRWH0) 017F10A88  017F10ABEE

20254104228
Director/Consultant 23 October 2017 23 October 2017 to
(note b) 22 October 2025 0.177 2,000,000 - 2,000,000 (2,000,000 -
REELTE

Exercisable at the end of the year

30,000,000  (2,000,000) 28,000,000  (2,000,000) 26,000,000
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H = 2023 4 3 A 31 HILFJE For the year ended 31 March 2023

28. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

HisE -

(a) M2017F10A23AREEREER 2
& 5 A F1E 52,906,000 Tt o %
i B 81 BN20174F 108238 BN B 55 /8 AV
BRI A BEM30% - BRELEN
3 9N30%5% B 7R 20184 108230 - H
#40%57 B R2019F10H238 - B2
B HI AT A A B B M (B A0.177
PBIT ©

(b) ZBREHRAN2019F6518HE LB
SEMITEE WK AR © B 1R2023F 1
H258 Bt o

(c) REEHBHEAN2021F68238EEBL
FEHMITEE ©

REBREZ2023F3A318 ILFE
BEAANRRABELMNBEREMERE
FA(2022%F - &) cAMERN ' KB
B ITE - REZ=2023F3 731
B 1IE € E - 2,000,0000% B A% # % 3%
(20224 : 2,000,0000%) °
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Notes:

(a) The total estimated fair value at the date of grant of the
share options on 23 October 2017 was HK$2,906,000.
30% of total number of the share options were vested
immediately on the date of grant, 23 October 2017.
30% of total number of the share options were vested
on 23 October 2018 and the remaining 40% were
vested on 23 October 2019. The closing price of the
Company's share immediately before the date of grant
was HK$0.177.

(b)  Mr. Mark Yiu Tong, William resigned as an INED and
acted as a consultant with effect from 18 June 2019, he

passed away on 25th January 2023.

(c)  Mr. Leung Tai Chi resigned as an INED with effect from
23 June 2021.

The Group did not recognise the expenses for the
year ended 31 March 2023 in relation to share
options granted by the Company (2022: HK$Nil).
No share options were exercised and granted for
both years. 2,000,000 share options lapsed during
the year ended 31 March 2023 (2022: 2,000,000).
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29. T EMMBE QA

29. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

HZE2023F3A31IA 2 EH B A A

SHIBEmR March 2023 are as follows:
KEZROER/  ARAFBERARE
£ AR g BRTRAZEE HEZLH TEEH
Proportion of
Class of shares nominal value of
Place of held/nominal value issued share capital held
Name incorporation/operation  of issued share capital by the Company Principal activities
ERfE
Directly held:
CCC Holdings (8VI) Limited KBRANE/BR Lk 100% RERR
187,325,513 %L
CCC Holdings (BVI) Limited British Virgin Islands Ordinary Investment holding
("BVI")/Hong Kong HK$187,325,513
BRERE
Indirectly held:
CCC Investments (BVI) Limited EBRUME/EF EEWET 100% 1REHER
CCC Investments (BVI) Limited BVI/Hong Kong Ordinary USS$1 Investment holding
AN ERERBRAR B EAR100E T 100% fRHERRH
(EREEELR
10,0008 7) *
City Chiu Chow Management & Hong Kong Ordinary HK$100 Provision of management
Consultants Company Limited (Non-voting deferred services
HK$10,000)*
AN ERER DA Bk Lak100ET 100% FeEE
(BRFEETRK
2,000,000 7C) *
City Chiu Chow Restaurant Limited ~ Hong Kong Ordinary HK$100 Restaurant operations
(Non-voting deferred
HK$2,000,000)*
ERERARAT R LiRR100% T 100% S2EE
(BERZEELR
20,000,000/t *
Honcert Development Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$100 Restaurant operations
(Non-voting deferred
HK$20,000,000)*
GV Australia Pty Ltd bl EERI00BT 100% WEZE
GV Australia Pty Ltd Australia Ordinary AUD10,000 Property development

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries as at 31

* EREZEEEREA A EEREEMA
PR A BES I EEMREARS K
RELRE BEAR FEEWERKS
RN EREESEM DK ° Br4,000,000
PZ BEE R B R A B ER ZREIELTR
RIINARALHERIN HEFMBERE
BEERY RA AR MERE -

* The non-voting deferred shares carry no rights to receive
notice of or to attend or vote at any general meeting
and have no rights to dividends or to participate in any
distribution on winding up. These non-voting deferred
shares were indirectly held by the Company except for
4,000,000 non-voting deferred shares of Honcert
Development Limited which were owned by outside
parties.
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0. ZEBHESRERMEE 30. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
() METBHELENEBZHE (a) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from
financing activities

TRFAINAEEREESHAMES The table below details changes in the Group's
BEZEE BEES MRS liabilities arising from financing activities,
oo MEEYELE CAEIE including both cash and non-cash changes.
HBESREXAKRRBERENAK Liabilities arising from financing activities are
SEEREAERERTHELAM those for which cash flows were, or future cash
BEHEA RS REZAE - flows will be, classified in the Group's

consolidated statement of cash flows as cash
flows from financing activities.

R2022% FSHX XfHE 1R2023F
4818 (He11) #BRLEHE HEER af 3A31A
At Interest Payment of At

1 April expenses lease 31 March
2022 (note 11) Non-cash  Cash flows liabilities 2023

TR TER TER TER TER TR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

HEBE (K H24)
Lease liabilities (note 24) 13,263 597 - - (3,040) 10,820
120216 MEFX THEE  R202%
4A18 (iz11)  FREER ReHEA =4 3A31H
At Interest Payment of At
1 April expenses lease 31 March
2021 (note 11) Non-cash  Cash flows liabilities 2022

TRT TAT TREL TAT TAT TRT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

BEGE(HiF24)
Lease liabilities (note 24) 565 438 13,689 - (1,429) 13,263

RERKF DR ZER

(Hzt)
Loan from the ultimate
parent (Note) 20,112 948 - (21,060) - -
20,677 1,386 13,689 (21,060) (1,429) 13,263
Bat: REZKEBRANERSER Note: The loan from ultimate parent was unsecured,
B FRNERS%  WREE interest bearing at 5% per annum, and was fully
2022F3A31BILFEL2EE repaid during the year ended 31 March 2022.
2022/23 Annual Report 3 G-VISION INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED BR EEEEERA T
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#H = 2023 & 3 A 31 HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2023

30. mERTMEBRME (&)

30. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)

(b) AREEZRERHARE
FeRERERTAREEZS
HERBEATRE:

(b) Total cash outflow for leases

Amounts included in the consolidated
statement of cash flows for leases comprise the
following:

20234 20224
2023 2022
THET FHET
HK$'000 HK$'000
RELEIMEREN Within operating cash flows 5,443 6,668
RRERERE Within financing cash flows 2,443 991
7,886 7,659
ZESHENTIERAR : These amounts relate to the following:
20234 20224
2023 2022
FET FET
HK$'000 HK$'000
=ENEik Lease rental paid 7,886 7,659

31. AREE

31. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

MR2023F3A31H - AN & B A7 £ T 7]

BEAFABE (202245 : &) o

32. KEMERH

32. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS

The Group did not have any significant contingent
liabilities at 31 March 2023 (2022: HK$Nil).

REBEREBEA

AEBETEHRER BRAENEEE
ERIMAEHEL - NREE B —FB
B -—BAASHSEFNRHEL -
& B

202343H31H - SEAHE A

IO ENEHEEERMAR R

HHEEHESEM -
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The Group as lessee

PN

The Group regularly entered into short-term leases
for restaurant, office and director's quarters. The
Group also entered into a long-term lease with 5
years lease term for a restaurant. As at 31 March
2023, the portfolio of short-term leases is similar to

the portfolio of short-term leases to which the
short-term lease expense disclosed in note 19.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

33. BEXRS

H = 2023 4 3 A 31 HILFJE For the year ended 31 March 2023

33. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(a)

RER AEERBINEER
RAR(IBFI BRETWE
EAREBREZR AXFEB
F Y EY 2 18 & £ 33,600,000/
T (BREERESRR) (20224F :
2,940,000 JT (B $£660,000/8
TTHEE R %)) » 202343 31
B fAE1%41,080,000/& T2 &
RERDMEREZRSF (2022
4 : 1,080,000 LB BFEER
FYERSZESF) - B20234F
N202293H318 » 8 A B
MEe RN TBA -

%% F| Z=Golden Toy Investments
Limited ([ Golden Toy|) 22 &
Bf/E Q7 - MGolden ToyJyH —
BEEETEEERE ZBET
ZEBmABEBEEEE  BH
At FRHXtERBHEX
T BAARRAZMITERILAR
Kong Fai ' BIAEEZKRERA
RICERBEEE -

RER AEBRIXKEES
RAarl (=) BMA—F=E%
¥R FRAKER S A
900,000/ 7t (20224 : 900,000
B Ir) ° 202343 H31H
€12 £150,000% T B BEER
FYEHREZRS P (2022F
150,000/ 7T B B IEE R B W) %
MEZEESH) - 12023F %2022
FI3IA3MB - WERBEEATHEEE
T -

S 2Golden ToyZ 2 EM B A
ﬁ} o
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(a)

(b)

During the year, the Group leased certain
properties for its restaurant operations from
Homley Development Limited (“Homley"”).
Rentals charged by Homley during the year
amounted to HK$3,600,000 (including HK$Nil
rental concession) (2022: HK$2,940,000
(including HK$660,000 rental concession)). At
31 March 2023, rental deposit of
HK$1,080,000 was included in current property
rental deposits (2022: HK$1,080,000 included
in current property rental deposits). At 31
March 2023 and 2022, no accrued rental
payable to Homley.

Homley is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Golden
Toy Investments Limited (“Golden Toy”) whose
entire issued share capital is beneficially owned
by a discretionary trust the objects of which
include Mr. Cheng Hop Fai, Ms. Cheng Pak
Ming, Judy, Ms. Cheng Pak Man, Anita and
Ms. Cheng Pak Lai, Lily who are also executive
directors of the Company and beneficial
owners of Kong Fai, the Company’s ultimate
holding company.

During the year, the Group leased an unit of a
residential building from Hover City Industrial
Limited (“Hover City”). Rental charged by
Hover City during the year amounted to
HK$900,000 (2022: HK$900,000). At 31 March
2023, rental deposit of HK$150,000 was
included in current property rental deposits
(2022: HK$150,000 included in current
property rental deposits). At 31 March 2023
and 2022, no accrued rental was payable to
Hover City.

Hover City is a wholly-owned subsidiary of
Golden Toy.

G-VISION INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED BN EREEERAR

145



NN R RS e

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

#H = 2023 & 3 A 31 HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2023

33. BEXRS (&)

33. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(Continued)

O RER AXEBRIERES
RARI (A% HERB—=87F
BYE - FERFRKER A
% /1,200,000 7T (20224 :
1,200,000/ 7T) ° ’R2023%F3 H
318 - HE & € £240,8548 7T
EREERSMERERZRESF
(20224 : 240,854 T E BIEE
MEBMEMREZRESF) - 12023
@ K2022F3 8318 @ R A JE
SAHEEMNTFEE -

BEDERZE2ERB AR - ™
Ik JhGolden Toyz HEEZEM
BAA] -

d RER AEEEBEZASER
NA([Bm]) ETRS - BB
mPRFE AL HE RE /273,000
7 7T (20224 : 438,000/ 7T) °
20234 202293 H31H -« &
W% # 2 E WIR A51,0000%8 7T
(20224 : &) ©

BAEDFEAZ L EMBAF
S, JhGolden TOyZE%%ﬁW
BAF -

(e) M2021%2H1H ° A% EEKong
FaigtKong Failal 7N £ B 42 f# &Y
40,000,000 TEHXRMEF L E
Ripek > WHR2021F981H #
— 2 4% K 50,000,000 T ° A
& E IR IR K IE B IR F R 5%
TR RFEAR - AEBERIK
T8 (20224 : 43,000,000/ 7T) °
B3 K IES R B A44,060,0008
TLER2021F108 BHEE -
Kong Faifd & A I & W EX F B
(20224 : 948,000/ 7T ) °
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(@)

During the year, the Group leased an office
from Sky Global Investments Limited (“Sky
Global”). Rentals charged by Sky Global during
the year amounted to HK$1,200,000 (2022:
HK$1,200,000). At 31 March 2023, rental
deposit of HK$240,854 was included in current
property rental deposits (2022: HK$240,854
was included in current property rental
deposits). At 31 March 2023 and 2022, no
accrued rental was payable to Sky Global.

Sky Global is a wholly-owned subsidiary of
Hover City which in turn is a direct
wholly-owned subsidiary of Golden Toy.

During the year, the Group entered into
transactions with Hung Yick Metal Company
Limited (“Hung Yick”). Sales to Hung Yick
during the year amounted to HK$273,000
(2022: HK$438,000). At 31 March 2023,
receivable from Hung Yick was HK$51,000
(2022: HK$Nil).

Hung Yick is a wholly-owned subsidiary of
Hover City which in turn is a direct
wholly-owned subsidiary of Golden Toy.

On 1 February 2021, the Group entered into a
loan agreement with Kong Fai for a loan facility
to the extent of HK$40,000,000 offered to the
Group by Kong Fai and further extent to
HK$50,000,000 on 1 September 2021. The
sum drawn down by the Group will bear
interest at 5% per annum. The total sum drawn
down by the Group was HK$Nil (2022:
HK$43,000,000) during the year. The loans and
accrued interest amounted to HK$44,060,000
were fully repaid in October 2021. Interest
charged by Kong Fai during the year amounted
to HK$Nil (2022: HK$948,000).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

H = 2023 4 3 A 31 HILFJE For the year ended 31 March 2023

33. BERS (&) 33. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)
) EHBE EEMERTEER (f) The remuneration of directors, which are key
AEMEEHMM T ¢ management personnel during the period was
as follows:

20234 20224
2023 2022
FHERT FET
HK$'000 HK$'000
e &kHMAE R Salaries and other benefits 2,700 2,700
RAIRE R AL AR Retirement benefits cost 54 54
2,754 2,754
2022/23 Annual Report 3 G-VISION INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED BR EEEEERA T
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Financial Summary

EF RESULTS
HBZ3A31BLEE
Year ended 31 March
20194 20204 20214 20224 20235
2019 2020 2021 2022 2023
FHT FAL TAT FHL FTHT
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS$'000
WA Revenue 85,372 67,413 37,173 114,637 45,181
BREIAIEE Loss before tax (12,802) (23,237) (8,517) (13,776)  (21,586)
Frafi e A Income tax expenses - - (243) (304) (44)
AABIREEWN 2 Loss for the year attributable to
FEEBE owners of the Company (12,802) (23,237) (8,760) (14,080)  (21,630)
EEHEAE ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
W3A31H
At 31 March
20194 20204 20214 20224 20234
2019 2020 2021 2022 2023
FET FET TET FET THET
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
BEBE Total assets 88,103 106,168 81,595 53,470 31,503
aERE Total liabilities (7,813)  (50,016)  (33,129)  (19,093)  (18,938)
BmaE Total equity 80,290 56,152 48,466 34,377 12,565

G-VISION INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED BN EREEERAF
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